
TO: Audit Committee 

THROUGH: Matthew Dent 

FROM: 

Audit Committee Chairman 

Paul Navazio 
Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: Status Report on 14 Points of Error in the CAFR for the Fiscal Year ending 
June 30, 2019 

DATE: July 22, 2020 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

That the Audit Committee receive the attached summary of Staff's review of concerns 
referred by the Audit Committee related to the District's CAFR for the year ended June 
30, 2019. 

II. BACKGROUND 

This agenda item has been prepared in order to provide the Audit Committee with a status 
update related to the review of 14 points of error in the CAFR for the Fiscal Year ending 
June 30, 2019 (from Cliff Dobler and Linda Newman) referred to Staff by the Audit 
Committee. 

Comments related to each of the concerns referred to Staff are provided in the Summary 
Table included as Attachment 1. Selected items are discussed in greater detail in this 
memo. 

As shared previously (verbal report to Audit Committee on June 30, 2020) the issues 
raised with respect to the District's FY2018/19 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) can be categorized into groupings based on the nature and import of each 
specific concern, which also necessarily considers the materiality of the concern as it 
relates to potential remedy or disposition of any valid concern. While the groupings 
necessarily represent Staff's subjective assessment of the underlying issue, these may 
prove helpful in the Audit Committee's overall understanding of both the issue raised and 
the Staff response and/or recommendation. 

At the outset, it is important to note that several of the issues raised related to the District's 
FY2018/19 CAFR are claimed, by the author(s), as rising to the level of requiring the 
District to re-state its audited financial statements. These claims are based on an 
assertion that certain accounting practices are illegal, or represent gross errors and 
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omissions that impact the materiality of the District's financial statements. It is also worth 
noting that many, if not all, of the questions and issues have been responded to by Staff 
previously, and have also been raised with the District's independent auditor as well as 
the State of Nevada Department of Taxation, with whom the District is required to file its 
annual financial audit in compliance with NRS 354.624. 

With the transition of responsibilities to a new Director of Finance, the Audit Committee 
has appropriately requested that each of the issues be reviewed with a fresh perspective 
and that a recommendation relative to disposition of each issue be provided for the Audit 
Committee's, and ultimately, the Board of Trustees' consideration. 

Summary of Staff Findings & Recommendations 

1) While selected questions may warrant additional consideration and remain under 
review, Staff does not believe that any of the issues raised relative to the 
District's FY2019/20 audited financial statements rise to the level warranting 
a re-statement (re-publication) of the District's CAFR for the year ending 
June 30, 2019. 

2) Several items identified in the constituent questions assert that District accounting 
and financial reporting practices are illegal, in violation of applicable Nevada 
Revised Statutes. Staff does not agree with any of these assertions and, to 
the contrary, finds that the District's financial statements conform to 
applicable laws and regulations. 
Provided via attachment to this report is a copy of the Compliance Letter from the 
State of Nevada Department of Taxation that states, in part, that : 

The Department of Taxation has examined your final budget in accordance with NRS 354.598. We find 
the budget to be in compliance with the law and appropriate regulations. 

3) Several issues raised also assert that the District's accounting practices or 
financial reporting for specific transactions or activities are inconsistent with 
Generally-accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Many of these assertions are 
based on interpretations of applicability of GAAP to the District's accounting 
practices or to individual transactions. While Staff acknowledges that. inherent 
subjectivity involved in interpreting GAAP as promulgated through GASS 
pronouncements, a difference of opinion between and amongst members of the 
public, management and/or the independent auditor, while noteworthy, again, do 
not rise to the level of requiring restatement of past audited financial statements. 

4) Acknowledging that many of the issues raised are valid questions and worthy of 
discussion, should past District accounting practices or interpretations warrant re­
consideration, these are best addressed or clarified in the context of preparation 
and audit of future financial statements. 

5) A subset of issues raised by constituents are best addressed through a review of 
existing Board policies and practices and, where appropriate, revisions to District 
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policies and practices that inform how the District accounts for and reports 
activities reflected in its audited financial statements. 

The following section addresses, in more detail, specific issues that are presented by 
constituent(s) as inconsistent with GAAP / GASB: 

Issue #1 - Improper change in accounting and reporting from Enterprise to Special 
Revenue 

It is Staff's opinion that this assertion represents the primary basis for the argument that 
the District's accounting practices do not conform with GASB requirements and, by 
extension, violate NRS requirements that local agency budgets must comply with GASB. 

As expressed, this assertion is based on provisions found in GASB 34 related to 
Proprietary (Enterprise) Funds. Specifically, while GASB provides guidelines for 
generally-accepted accounting practices, this section of GASB 34 establishes three 
criteria whereby Enterprise Fund accounting MUST be applied if any of the three criteria 
are met: 

67. Enterprise funds may be 'Used to report any activity for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services. Activities are required to be 
reported as enterprise furnis if any one of the following criteria ls met Govern­
ments should apply each of these criteria in the context of the activity's prinaipa! 
revenue sources,33 

a The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net 
revenues from fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a 
pledge of oet revenues from fees and charges q_J?dtne foll faith and cr~it of 
a related primary government or component unit-even n that government is 
not expected 10 make any payments-is not payable solely from fees and 
charges of the activity. {Some debt may be secured, in part, by a portion of 
its own proceeds but should be considered as payable "sofe!y' from the 
ri:,ivehues of the activity.} 

b. Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, 
iooluding capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service). be recovered 
with foos and charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues.'°34 

c. The pricing policies of the activity establish foes and ,charges designed to 
recover its costs, including capital costs (such as depreciation ,or debt 
service}. 

Having reviewed the above criteria in relation to the District's financial and accounting 
policies and practices, Staff finds that District does not meet ANY of the three criteria 
established by GASB 34 which require the use of Enterprise Funds. 

Criteria (a) -Activity financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of net revenues 
from fees and charges of the activity. 
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Application to IVG!D - in the context of the District's debt issued is support Community 
Services and Beach activities, this criteria is not met. 

In support of this conclusion, one need only reference the bond documents associated 
with our outstanding debt that, consistent with GASS criteria (a), the District's debt was 
issued as a General Obligation bond secured by the full faith and credit of the District. 
Below is an excerpt from the Board resolution authorizing the 2012 refunding bond 
issuance. This language is also contained in the bond purchase agreements . 

......... INCLINE 
'1iii'IVlllAGE 

Resolution No. 1812 

Page13of66 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE SY THE INCLINE VJLLAGE GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT OF fT'S GENERAL OBLIGATION (LIMITED TAX} (REVENUE 
SUPPORTED) RECREATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012, AND PROVIDING OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

protection and security of the owners of any and all of the outstanding Bonds, all 

of wh1ch, regardless of the time or times of their issue or maturity, shall 

be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction except as otherwise 

expressly provided in or pursuant to this Resolution. 

SECTION 10. General Obligations. All of the Bonds, as to the 

principal thereof, the interest thereon and any prior redemption premiums due in 

connection therewith (the "Bond Requirements"'), shall constitute generaf 

obligations of the District, which hereby pledges its full faith and credit for their 

payment. So far as possible, Bond Requirements shall be paid from Net 

Revenues. However, the Bonds as to al! Bond Requirements shall also be 

payable from the General Taxes ( except to the extent that other moneys such as 

Net Revenues are available therefor) as herein provided. 

Criteria (b) - Laws or regulations that require that the activity's costs of providing services, 
including capital costs be recovered by fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar 
revenues. 

Application to IVG!D - While the District, in practice, recovers the majority of its costs 
through fees and charges, there is no existing "law or regulation" that requires that this 
be the case. 

Moreover, consistently, guidance provided for application of GAAP/GASB requirements 
cite as state laws that require that unemployment compensation funds and public entity 
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risk pools as examples of application of this criteria (see below excerpt from 2020 
Governmental GAAP Guide for State and Local Governments). 

In addition, it is worth noting that as a General Improvement District established under 
NRS 318, the District is granted statutory taxing authority to support its activities. 

2. Laws or regul<1Uons 1:equire that the activity's costs of pro-vi· 
vices, including capital costs (such as depreciation or capital " 
vice-), be recovcreti with fees and d1arges, rather than ·wil.h ·. 
similar revenues. · ' 

OBSERVATION: GASS Cod. Sec, 1300 tn. 7 spei.::ilically requires 
unemployment .cornpensatfon funds to,be reported in enterprise fund 
this cr!lerlon, Public entity risk pools are also r0quired. to be re 
enterprise funds In accordance with GASB Cod. Sec. Po20.1 i 5. Admi' 
tl\ie oosis 6f the funds should be included in the general fund unless' 
requirements exist that require the ai::counling and ilnancial reporting 
resources in another fund. lflhe administrative activity is not required 
accounted for in an unemployment compensation enterprise fund, 0G 
Co-cl, Sec. 1300.705--S surmises that such a requirement would invalidat 
reasoning than an enterprise fund Is required as the charges are . 
designed to recover the cosis of administration. 

Criteria (c) - The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to 
recover its costs, including capital (such as depreciation and debt). 

Application to IVGID- Based on a review of existing Board policies and District practices 
related to the setting of pricing and fees, the Director of Finance has concluded that this 
criteria does not directly apply to IVGID for several reasons. 

First, while Board Policy 6.1.0, section 2.2 speaks to the setting of Fees and Charges for 
Services, this policy does not trigger the threshold contained in this GASB criteria. The 
policy merely speaks to adopting a process to set rates and "the extent to which" costs 
are recovered. 

Policy 6.1.0 
2.0 Revenue Understanding the revenue stream is essential to prudent 
planning. Most of these policies seek stability to avoid potential service 
disruptions caused by revenue shortfalls. 
2.1 Revenue Diversification. The District shall adopt a process that 
encourages a diversity of revenue sources in order to improve the 
ability to handle fluctuations in individual sources. 
2.2 Fees and Charges for Services. The District shall adopt process 
that identifies the manner in which fees and charges for services are 
set and the extent to which they cover the cost of the service provided. 

In addition, a review of recent rate-setting practices within the District's Community 
Services activities, and in particular golf and ski, pricing is not based (solely) on cost­
recovery, but rather is largely based on market pricing - in particular as it relates to non­
resident rates. Specifically, it is a long-standing practice that certain rates are based on 
the concept of "demand pricing" or "yield management", which allows pricing to be set 
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(and in some cases be modified) based on the availability of access. In simple terms, ski 
rates - and in particular day passes for non-residents - are set and adjusted based on 
the number of skiers frequenting Diamond Peak in relation to the capacity of the venue. 

Below is an excerpt from the February 21, 2020 Board memo for the agenda item where 
the Board of Trustees was asked to adopt season pass rates and resident rates for 
Diamond Peak. 

Excerpt from February 21, 2020 Board Memorandum, setting Diamond Peak Season 
Pass rates for 2020-21 season: 

Although to remain consistent with previous Community Services Memorandum's of 
Recommendations to Key Rates - ''The IVG!D Board of Trustees allows management to 
adjust prices to accomplish yield management provided the rate offered to the public is 
above the IVGID Picture Pass Holder rate. 

Similarly, in both the November 2019 Board memo related to the Board approval of Key 
Rates for golf activities as well as the budget workshop presentation provided to the Board 
in 2015, it is clearly stated that venue pricing practice includes consideration of yield 
management and, further, Staff is authorized by the Board of Trustees to adjust pricing 
accordingly. 

Excerpt from November 22, 2019 Board memo related to Golf Key Rates for 2020 season: 

Review, discuss and possibly -2-
approve 2020 Key Rates for the 
Championship Golf Course, Mountain 
Golf Course and Resident Play Passes 

November 22, 2019 

This fee structure allows the staff to plan for programs, yield management tactics, 
golf club scheduling, outside tournament bookings, and other operational planning 
objectives for the coming golf season. 

From March 31, 2015 Board Workshop re "Key Rates for Golf" 

Ngte jo Rate Sch<Miula: 
Rates have been provide(I only for !he 2015 season, 
2016 will be delerminad with !he next budge\ c;-cli:, 
The NGU) Soard of Tntslees .illow Staff to Eldjust prices to .iccomplish Oemo1nd P-ficing anti -Yield Management". 

Issue #5 - Unallowable Transfer of Funds for Central Services Cost Allocation 

The District's practice of allocating central services overhead costs incurred in the 
General Fund to activities funded by both Enterprise and Special Revenue funds is 
entirely consistent with GAAP and is thus allowable under the NRS. 

While the NRS (354.613) includes a provision establishing specific requirements for 
allocations of central services overhead to enterprise funds, this provision does not 
preclude the allocation of central services overhead on non-enterprise activities. 
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It is Staff's position that NRS 354.17, which requires that local public agency budgets 
conform to GAAP, provides authority to the District to assess a central services allocation 
to activities funded from sources beyond solely Enterprise-funded activities. 

Central services cost allocations are not only permitted, but also recommended as best­
practice in cases where an entity has as an objective the accounting and reporting of 
activities on a "full-cost" basis. The principal behind central services cost allocations is 
not grounded in fund accounting, but rather is a key principal and practice in proper cost­
accounting. 
Generally-accepted cost-accounting principles related to charges for recovery of 
overhead costs are largely independent of funding source. The requirements for any cost­
allocation plan to comply with generally-accepted accounting practices hinge on the 
methodology used to identify appropriate costs to be allocated as well as the basis of the 
overhead allocation to activities or functions support by the costs being allocated. (Note 
- most public agencies use guidance provided in the federal Office of Management and 
Budget (0MB) Circular 87 that spells out requirements for overhead costs allowable to 
be charged to federal grants). 

In the context of the District's Central Services Cost Allocation plan, both the Independent 
Auditor and the State of Nevada merely require that the District's plan is based on a sound 
methodology (i.e. not arbitrary), and, in the case of the State of Nevada, that the plan is 
approved annually by the Board of Trustees as part of the annual budget process. 

It needs to be noted that the District's Central Service Cost Allocation Plan is also 
governed by Board Policy 18.1 and Board Practice 18.2. When first adopted, this policy 
specifically referenced that Central Service Cost Allocation was applicable to Enterprise 
Fund activities. This was at a time when all District activities outside of the General Fund 
where accounted for under Enterprise Fund accounting (Community Services, Beach, 
Utilities and Internal Services). This policy was not updated when the District transitioned 
to Special Revenues funds for Community Services and Beach activities for the 2015/16 
fiscal year. Nonetheless, the District's budget continued to assess overhead charges to 
Community Services and Beach funds and thus did not conform to the letter of Policy 
18.1. The policy has since been amended (May 2020) to conform to the ongoing practice 
of allocating overhead costs borne by the General Fund to non-general fund supported 
activities based on generally-accepted best practices to full-cost accounting. 

Attachments: 
1 - Summary Table (Issue, Status, Disposition) 
2 - State of Nevada, Department of Taxation: Compliance Letter, dated June 25,2020 
3 - GASS 34 Excerpt re: Enterprise Funds 
4 - 0MB Circular A-87 (Federal RegisterNol. 70, No. 168/Wednesday, August 31, 

2005/Rules and Regulations 
5 - NRS 354.107, 354.613 and 354.624 
6 - Board Policy 18.1.0 
7 - Board Practice 18 .2. 0 
8 - "14 Points of Error'' referred to Staff by Audit Committee (Correspondence) 
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utllzinc v,lut: al punth c11rrl, 11 ...ario11s D.~lritt --:11utswl1hout uic11d lo fundltt,: used 
ID purdt.a.~, punch Did\. 

l"asl~ I J.0!11.ion, Punch Ortis ustll lry parrtl awnt11 wlth rir, hnch :accu, 1rt 
llttoun\ecJ for dlflu,111ly lh•n tt1on with be:tt h •tttU, 

11
·
1

·~1 ~~ctic, Foli: cl:tim. c,ntn1 Sen,lcM Over hod ~l!nc;,Uont Mt coruldtrtd r,,ntr~il •1r.<t1J1 le1I 

~croumln,:pr11<:titt ~nd coni lsltnt withfu\lcoi!••rttnYt1Y prlncir,les. 

11,,. 5t•lt of Ntv1tla ~ .1 jnpe11ed!y) conll11n,d lhit lhl!tt lrt no llta:tij lnurs nr 
CDr>(tr,u rt~ttd In I\IGIO's USC' af Co:n\n1 5t1yjct Cail A!lttntlon Pl~fl lo rtco..,..r WiU 
l11tmud haf Glntr'lll Fund In tuppo,t Of nol'l ,dtn,nl rundJuppOr\td ulwllltJ . Tht 
O<tlt tt'IUll'l"mtnt If 1h11 !ht lloud-~P.Dfovtd t.0~l•fl11oolinn l'lilll IS l,~ud DI'\ Jound 
mr.thodolor, th~t ~~0ca1r.i tfttt ens\$ ,usonJbly and prop1n1tfon~te!y. 

ou:rosmott 
. . 1,rtl'f'YtwAlff Cl•rlly /NMt N• Sptdric 

! zo1,}i1t WR I In 201'/Zlt CAnt A(lf1n Rtttulrt,I 

c.oMMrnr 

necommt11d norr,vl,wor11111d ,I 
utablhhmtntofformaJprlcincpoHcyl 

At mCP.llnr u( M~y27, 2U20!ht 1101' 
,1ppravtd1ruolut1onof!nttn110 

tr;irisltlnnli.-ck10Entuprlnfunds for nscilynr202l/7.l 



ISSUE COrltOtt~ / COMJ'\AlHT 

UJI! of bht 111.lfltlon lfl r11tord \11ili1y Tund •h:rrtd r,vtn11ts (unurn,rl) fll .$4ll,,ao ;as nirrtntttvtnuu In lht Proprltbry 
Fu nil~ • ~l:,itl'l'lenl ,,,. ftev• nllu, hr,tn'1l11rt-.s and Ntt r,o,lltnn (CAJR p• ,:t ll) nu,in« 11n lnuuse in r~1111 Po1illon nr, 
Prnprlt\Jlry Fun1h - s1atem1rtl of Net ro11tion \CAfft Pas,1 ln). 

IVGIO amenl\ybili tm1u,~usmnn1hly lrt;iMflr., :ii mtnlmmn b11, Ille for 

w-'ltr :and uw,r Hrwitt whlthwil! bt dtlivtrtd 111 lht subffql.lffll rnonlh . Tht 

bll!l11,:~ ~~ reuml,11 :1) • 1tttiobl11 but• POtllon ol lht blll:.ni hu Nstork,!ly 
b,,n d,fl!rfl!'d \Ind ,,cordtd a1 u,,,untd r,:venu, btcaV$, 1h, ba1, r.-h IJ 
bnledlnadvllneenltht .<tr'tirtsbtln,: 11ra\ohltrl. 

lri nsu l yur 201!1, Mr. Eid1, Oi"uor nr f!n~m,,, dtcltltd on his own, th:11 tht 

ldV'1'1Ctrl blllinp of bait Wlllt:t Ind scwcrntt should bt «>nJidl!rtll tur1,nt 

Te"ftntll!S hued nn~ •"~" , •. 5,l't Jion th.it b:tsf r.-t,i :tltlt w"IIIM!1c.hu1,:, 

1r,uuac;t1on• b«c:aun thr. billinc totl!Pnn,riu ~r, not !ltll 10th, ,,er.!pt of any 
1f\lllntllyofw11trantlst-Wu suv[c,,:j" 

Thr. baJ, notes for \l,j:l!Ct :11111 JO•ttr "rYlcu :1r, d,~rc,tJ 10 tLntomtu 111 

fllCHANCiEforprovidl"&"futurtu:rvlct1ndc11uldt111tbtcon,idtttd;.1"1u, 

;a Onr., CJ• d111111llons which 1rt ru11111J,~ of NON EXCHANGE TitAllSACTIO,..S. 

ilu•in,; ti,, r.om~ of 1h, a.1dil ptrlormed by Ehl, i,~111,; LI'. ("udltor) th i1 
d1an,, Jr, lltU)Untlnc W~1 tJl~tOVtrtd by 1hr Aur!llor ,nd CDnJldtrr.d !ht r.h,ncr 

lob, • "'b\\atrmtnt. l\llhtt lhJ1n cnruct lht n,1111,teml\nl, Mr. fltk 11nU lorl 

Pom1nutn,k, Conl1r)l/tr, r,r4yfdtd \ht foll11wlnc s tll'1nen1 lri thr 

M1n1ftmtnl flt11r,.~,.nhtlon ln tht ,ff tr.I t!ie coutctfon WO\old h"Y' :tn 
"lmni.iul~' tfltttort linindal lllltmtnU, 

Ahr, nolf lht unow,IJ; \Jltd I« 1hr Mtm111:1ndl.1n1 '" lht Arnflt Commltltt J1n1t 
1htlltflltltnlJ1lionlt\1trhUhtA11rlilordono1acrtt,nd1rr.dilftr1!11lby 

SlG.~111. Howh ll ptmlhl, th:iit lht Mt mol'lln"um tc,lht Audit Cc,mmlllct 

dat,d ~lnvtmber27, ,.0 1!1 would h1111t dlff,r~tt "mnunfs lhJra tti, CArlt 1mrl 
Plf.p111u•nl11tln<I ltUtr d,HYtt,tlnn Now,mber 11, 201,1 

Howtwir lllfthtr d:1eunio111 wflh lht AuiJiters foUl'ld • '™''' comptllilt( f:Ktu, 
i11h11 !lity Ut II non or.lun,:~ t r111t1M1io11 littlus~ l ht blllirac rc,mpo,nP.111.t: a" 

nu11led101htrP.ctlp111f1ny(lu11nlityofwatt.rorstwtr1l!rYicu." 

Cluutlnn lor Ei1MJ11Uly • Art J1!lnnctd blttrn,:s for b.:uic Wl\tr and nwn 

nnticts cor,~id1"d • nnn uch11n,:111r1nnc1ion 1nd if ,o why Wfluld th,1 

l-nc:11rr1<\ ltllUl'l'Ulb 11\4 blllln to r1tpllrt all c",.,.,,.,ltmfltts in Nott H • CommilffltnU ,.ffttctlnc f utu~ P,riads {CAfJI P'C'IIJ S~ 
SS), anll faMu,p to ,,:p11n t:e>nlu1ctual J1rrJ1nt:lfll'llnb uc11mn,ltt11d lunll balJIT\Ct lift tht lbbt1tc Sliut ol Govul'lffl,nta/ run4s. 

tWlE: TIie conincu rtpo,1,d In lhls 1ealon plm th, ton1r11cl 11hnvt r,!:111111: 

lo s,nverr,rnenlal funds ~hnuld bl! reporled u :1 cornmll1ttJ fund balanu on 1h, 
hbnct Sllttl jCAFPt pa,:, 211 To\11 ;,imovnt Sl,lilS.'1'G 

(;A5fl S111,r,1tnt IISA l)llr31raphJOprollldu 1h11 l l!rtulrt1Mnts(llr Comml!\trJ 

F1111d IJal~ntt: "11.mou~ti 1h11 on r,n1y bt u1ed for sptdllc purp-o!'ei 1111rrn11nt 

1oci:t«s1r11ln1J.lrnpm,<1byfurm11l11c1lonol1hrr:o"'rnmtnt'.sh1J:li,nltvtlof 
d,ci1!on.m1~!njt auchorily Jhoulrl b,. rt11111r ltll 111 commilttd rund bil11,cr" 

Th, Gtn1t ra l runt1 i.019/7.(120 lludtt• prDYi<1td 101' a lPtANSFEI!. ol'lund to th 1, 

Cmnmuni1-, :i;n...;cr,s !ic,tciil llltvtnu, Funif lot on\v S561,tOO ;ind OIO r:or 

indudr a tr1n·dr.rof S1.i1S,ooo h, ,onlln,:cnq. lhP.s1 tnmltrs Yi11fa1t 14115 
35~.G117, n tht fonds Wtrl! ,r,tdfi,d lo, thi, Mounl~ln r.111f Cn,,r1,e Cl\,bhnm, 

l'tt111ntlon. Tht S7H,870 lrJn1ler tJ:tttdt th, ffmltatlnr, lmpo.1erl i11 NA ~ 

3S<I.U t7wh[chlf lO)i;o(th,1011!iimn11ntor 1h,butl,:,1,dt11ptndi1ununr 
1hi,cen"alrunrl. 

lmptoptr Ctauilic.tinn 111 ftn,1Nu In I.ht 51.Ctmltf\t of Arti'vltlu for Iha yu, tndtd luTtt" 30, 201' (CAJft pace 22} 

A. Thi! S1,1,m1tn1 al Ac1 M1;.1 11~\s Sl,169,000 ios P•acnm 1\tvtnuu -Charcu 

for .~1!1vicu ;,i1 rt(r.iv,rl by tht Ganual rund. lhts, d11r111 w,r, Ctntr,tt,I 

by c,nt11115trvicu Cn11 Allocation~ {which may h:nr. bttn lnt1l• l l rJ1nsfrrs) , 

Tl,,1, ch11r,:ts ar1 nnt rtvltf\UfS bot reduction of up,n,n ;u lndie•1td ~ tlo1t . 

GOYtrnm,nt1I fund1 r-u~d Sl;o,1,m,nl of R,.,.nun .inr1 ht,>tm,J fCAfn • o,1t 

~!,) a11d 1h~ Gtntnl rum! s1,1,n,tnt of nrv,nuu, Exa,nrlituru and ch,~n 
in fundlblintt ftAr-n - pa,:117). 

9. Tlit:5.ta1,m1n1of1'clilli1tu:alsollnsF"tllitiuf,or,fSG,75f;,"10•it'i,11erat 
rtvt1tuc,nf G"""nmC11IJ1t ac!lv~Ju. The t~dlhy r,o "" HOT G,nrr•I 
r"onnt-1 but ;are ftl'IJ chu,:•ri lo s,ucl'II own,rJ to, lhl! .•pteWc us,.,, m~ klnc 
fnili11u ""••abJ« rm a\1 cammuni1r Strvlcu ~nd ll1uh rr.,rutio,,•I Yu,uu, 
ll-ten h cl~ty foi a,, 1101 (1'-"tUI rPYUl<Jf! J bul llr ,: ,p .. cifk flt'W!UUU fi,r !ht 
lworundJmcn1iofl,d1u~. 

The f•cilitlu F,~s llrt ~lhuri i td tab, c0hLlfd by NI\S 3S~.l'J7 :u Ins 
lchJ111tciforstr,;icf'1)for .l1>•ciflt.J10Jl)(lstt. 

QUESTIONS RELATED TO FY2019-2D CAFR 

CAT(GOll.llATION 

&tor Atcounlinc lnlerpith\km / 
Ommluion Pr11cl!t11 Opll'llon 

IVG!O 

1'111lc:y 

STATUS Nutlltps 

Accountlnc prac!lu: for Ut!lity "Yt11uts a,1 undtr ,,view .. 

This t,Jnctrn i1 h111,J on whtlhu !ht but (l~\J monlhly ntr. i., 10 h rtcordtd u 

revtltllt whtn Ml,d. or dd, rr ,d u"ti! w.atu us,,, for a i:Mn monlh IJ "tonwrntd." 

Thtrt is ;abo • qutsfo:m or whtlh,r tht "b,~, rat,~ cor11thutu :ui "tcl11n11• or " non• 

ud11n,:,~ lri'IIIU(llon, UOTE - In my 

,xp,.,r,n"wilhothtrm11 nk:palut!litiurtvtnuts:ar,. recordtd!nth,pcrlodlnwhlch 

lh, Hrvlcts ui 1ithtru111! or billtrl, and bot Ii base nit, i'tnd volumtl•lt ralf It ucnnltd 

in lht s:111111 ptrlod. Th• base (tbltd} ~tt Is 11111 tondd• rtd blKtd In "11dv•nt,~. It mtrtly 

rtn~ 1litr.1t,ch1r1ed1ottc11vutl,c flXEO cost1or ,u11n!n,:tht111llityr.11htrth11111ti, 

nrlablt tent. Tht b,n Q\t i5 u1,11llychuctd tvrn wlirn lhue is NO t/Si\Gf, u lht rate 
1111yer 1~ still rt1oonsibh, fnr tlut;r nro11,ny'J s h~re nf n~,d cos1 of the uli!ity. 

Ptr (igyc,nm,nl.- tGMr Guith: /or Stat, ~ntl lool GoY-1::mmu11 , l\ui,n,ll rund 

bat•ncu [-i1t_1 nf11mnunl\ cnnlr,inl!d by 1ournn,1~t'J ln"nt lo lit \JHtl fm sprcilc 
pu1p01f's,but1rtntl1h,rrutric t td11rcornmillt.d. 

Eompli,5 of ";usls,11,d• lund .-b11Jnr:c5 indudr. r.ncumlirar,c,s h:mid nr, ;to, exccu!t.d 
r,rnr.h:1ntnduorcont,acl) . 

Th, Dlltr!u's :1ccou_nt111,: f'(lt!ltt rtl~t,u to Central StNltts Cost Alloa,llom 1, 

c11n~IOtntwjtl;i1:ntr1lly••,;tcpltd~cco11111inr, pracUcu. c,nt!ll1Strvit-'-1coit rccgycry 

h unlfnrrnly tr1;,1\ffl ;u rtv11nm1 to !ht G,nr~I Fu,\!:I (In lftu of a crtdlt to t11p,11dlturu), 

similar lo how olht1 fund tnms1tr.SUt'ftCCM'dtrl fTranJftr Toe up,n1t /Tr~n,r1r 

FnOM & lltvmu,). Th~\ ,aid, 11,..nypublic 1,:tndt1 dulyn11tt c,ntr1\ Strvlc,s Coll 
11llou1iont 11" compon~nt ol 'd111l,1ppr4pr1,t iont" {u are tnon1fcrs and 1,.1,,n~I 

Sttvict Fllndsl ){I rtcotnition l~t costs••• ulthnah:\v ,,netltrf in b01h tht •snuru~ 
budcetuw,llt1lht "IP.Ctff'!ri11" b11d,:tl. -

DISPOSITION 

~) ~ ltr!Hr Allf OIM'if-, / H11lt Hn Sr,edlk 

101'/;tO Wft In 201'/20 CAJft Ac:tl1n nr!Mtrd 

fllin -:1tr•n, b,lnw. 
Sh,mtdrr.lll,won1rdpol!cy,, 

rlel,1,1\hm of u11horlty lor ~au~ned" 
fundh:1l1 nc u , 



ISSU( CONC(ftN / COMPV.lrH 

lhit h t\ll\y Ftu mu\! bt li1ltd .11 a P•o,:,an, lh:vtnuu 011drr Ch:.110 for 

Sr.,...,iu:~ far th, Community Str'licu ,1nd th, !l t ach 111d mu~l bt rtdanlOtd. 

C. Tht lutuna1 !i , r,oicu fund l1<n bHl'I n:a,..,,d 11ul. 1:ntil'lffrinr, 8!d11. t. 
W«km.1n's (Offlfl •PIIJTtn tly IO tonfua lht ftlldtl and Jhould bP. corrtt l tll. 

r1ilurt to nport a ,:r.:ml fort ht lndlnt 1'.ark n.1n flthh 

hl1urt1\ortpnrt11r11;tjnra;r:11ntofSJ,>IOll,20lfro,nlh1c lnd!l'lt•T:,hor.t'Mk1and 

"'"ution \/\don Found.1i"lor,. Int. vi;i 11 Mtmor.i,ndum nf Unritrslatulinf ,bttd 
March lll, 201,, u a Gr;,l'lt 11.,"1v.1brt anri ;tlsa ;t Oefentd 11.ewm1t 

tfltd.\ lht Stntn1t111 of Ntt l'oiltlon jCAfl\ p;,~t J.l and lht l\ll1Hl(Ct Shr.tl 
ICJ\Hln11e2l}. 

C. ... SB #H (pJr;,craph 1!1, 20, U) dearly ll~l~S th111 nnc, ~• nf four t litibillly 

rtq1.1frt111tnl,utn\lsfitd(1htrtlfno1lmtllmh)1heer•ntcommltrnr.nl 

shO\lkl lrt rtcnrit .. d ,,. 1t rt etlv1blt u1d o 1 " '"n\JP~ nti• 1h0111t11 
'-llu,ntfiblft~ ha v,,, notoccurr~ 

fuitlb~ ly should prll'llirlt an 1111lnlonon u,mph11c,wl th GAS/I #34 rtprrllnc 
ictoun1in,:11ntmtnt forth!J,:rin1. 

10 Mount3ln Golf Courst Clubh.-i1111t flrt O~m:o(t Shert Ttrm AthabUlbtion • Imp rapt, clu,!(ialion af ltmporuy !Irr. dama1t 
npailrs :o con11,uction In WoV•.u 1ai thf'1 th:tin IHI o,rH:titln« upuut 

rlrt dart111t rtpltio'$ or $Htl,7Sl w,u compltttd 0l'I tht !nlcrlo, of tht 

Mo1mn,in Golf Couri.t Clubhoun lltrrlnl flsol '-019 In oidtr to optrUt lht 

fo1ti?i\y for the 2019 colt sn~on and 1liuofl tr wouhl bt :tblltndontd .1s:. 

co"11'llt1 0: r..:nP"Rtllln o/ lht 01t1l1,r :tnd l111trior of lhe faclll ty w11utd btcin in 

5tpl i:tnbtr 2Dl9. Thttt ri:palr., Wtrr. r11cO rdttl 10 cn11HrU<'.li11r, ir, prn~ru1, Ou 

/111,:uil 1'1, 2019, cnotratu, 11;1fr timr. ,nd ;'I cimtlrtf•flcy hudctt !or ~l .192.000 
w1s :tpprfJlletl by tht nn:ml nf Tru11"1 for" tompl,lt ttnO\la tion nf lhe 
fa cili\y. 

Th, (ii" d~J'!1;1tCt rl'p;airt 1nu.tt hf' rl'mo.,,td fron, (onstrucllon In Proirtu 1rtd 

d 11,,:td c,f( 3S 111 tllPl!IIS~. lhtrt YH:1 fll!Vtf ;,on inltnd IQ .. , .. nit lht IUt of 
11,uo: rep,lu P1"1 1h, 4 mon1h roll auon. 

ll hllu, .. to disd,nt maijor ltnPJ with lhe U. 5 Cl•plrtm•rtt nf Acricullurr. f•rnt hnok, aind t':.ra,nl Fnundulllf'l ll'lc. in Halt Hi • 
Luu, Ob!la:ation, (CAfR P•~n, 

M.ID hJs ;aSpr.ci,1 Ult- Pltt"!il ftfftttivtly :t lemi) da twll 7/17/2.01'1 wilh th, 

follnwinr, b3~1c ltrms:3611cres nf Natronal Forni !itrvkt l,111d is tnud 10 
N GII) wl,khi, 0~11r1h1t Oi:1mandPuk .\Ul!1jl, 
nnU/23/20'-l 

hpi•l:l 

IVGIO lt:tJti 2.35 nrts of land which 1\/GIO owns 10 1111: Parunl founrfallan 
Inc. who con.ttruclord ;a ll,SOl.1 lquu,: foot bulff,it wit!,• i:rtn r f111m ~ 
oun ii.lt donnr. 

rals• su,t,nitt1t in tfole 1 , Sitnirican t Atcountinc Poticln to fin:and•I S\altmt"\s rtl11inc to rund Ba1anct 

Nott H ' (CAFA 11~,, >IJJ "l•nlir.1 lo#ormal ian pro-.ldetJ on fund n,l1nc,: whkh 
JlllltS: "/,n llHi1n,ll fund b;1!anc~ Cll!I btJpttiritd l,y th~ Dft trlcfJ Gtneriol 

H b a ult t 11ndor what llut $lalunr.nt ac.\ualiy tnur1t, fl rt'l'ldeJ m~y condurl, 
1h11 th,i St~,O.:IG,'195 npn1ttd :u lll'l'.lt,.i,:nt-d fur,rl b~!antt (or lh1t Cornlflunity 

Serv!o.s Jlnd luch5otci'll1 lltvtllll l' Funib ICMR pac, ,.~, mioy t,;w,. but1 

,r.r,n lu th, GP.tltr;,I M1nac,r to bt llttd .1.1 th111 ptr.ltllt JttS Ht. 

GM>B Is• rma1r;1ph l) Sla\u lhr.tt Ut' th rl't cl,fflCu whoWl'I\J!d dtltfntltlt 

ic11tnt to h~vr :t fn ndl)a1ancl!! A\Sif:nttJ . Thtrt l1n11 l!narrl Polt::y O!' pratlkt 

whlth would support lht \11,ttmtnl rn•d t ~ Nolt lP 111d it Jhouhl bt 
rtfflOVtlcl, 

ll F.allurt lo r tpo'1 Cfln'lfflitttd "'l'°Ufttl of 1h, furtd b:tlanot lor 1ht CommUTllty Suvitt S)>Kbl lltvn\U~ Fund nn tht 

Gowtmmtnl11I funds llai!~ntt- .SMf'I • ~ of J11M 511,201, \CAf'lt P":tfe 2)} lo rt/Int commltmtntt ftir thrH conn,uc1hm contrat'U 
f!Xtcultdlnn1~alyu,2010. 

Thrt.t. con,tr11tliufl canlr1tr.l1 for$ $1,fiPS.::l.t l II lllstland fl'I N<'.ltrJ 1, ((.Ml\ 
p1,:11 !'151 w,,, bodie1,d 10d t11tt11ltd lt1 nial yor 2019, howtwtr, 

conilmt llon wn no1 ,1arl1trl. AJ ,uch, th, rund balanct nl tht Com,uuni1y 

5tf'lic~s S11tdal ft'!'Ytrit1f! f 1md sh-,uld rtflttl tht commltmtnt of tht Fund 

81111"10:lo•lhtstto"tracu. 

In 1ilt.lt1ion, 111 conlnic.t lo, $77,535 ;,wecut,d on 9/ll/2017 ln1 rtpb~nc th• 
roof~, !ht Mount11in Golf Cow st Oubhou~" wn 01101,nditli ,1 J111'1f' 30. 201,. 
Cons\lut tinr, did not comm,nu un1il Srf)lf!mbrr, 1.019. This: cnnlratr 1l111uld be 
1tsnlncluii,dl1'1Notr.l'}. 

t:il\58 5t111erntni #S~ P:t~cra.ah 1.0 11rlt'lh!u lht 1t11 ulr,:mtnu for Carnmll l td 
rundn:-1..,,., 

··~ 0mmiss!ur, 

QUESTIONS nELATED TO FV2019-20 CAFR 

CAT£GORIZATION 

l\mrun1int lnt"p"llltl!on/ 
P:11ctkr. Opinion 

1\/GIO 

f'aliey 

STATUS HulSlt t 

This iuut wu fUpc,ndtd to In mtmo tn Audit Coml'IIIUtt tbtecl U/29/1'. Whilt Lht 

ttaint w:i,s •11wartltd' <h,1tfn1 th• J:\'2011/t, fuul yur, w•Hk on !ht mbjttt pro/"' did 
nol. tortvntnc:t until lht s111rt of 1h1 ntw fonl vu,. Tht ,: r::1nt r,vtrmt 1, hr.Int 

ttCOfd~d In th, fiscal ftlrln whlth nptndlturn-i. t 11lrnl !ht cr::1nl "'f t lnrurrtd 
jr•Y20111/20). 

Ptr Gcwtrnmen1:. I GMP Guidt for 5tillt antJ loca l r.ovc1mru:,n\. ,.,,:i,:ntd rund 

babn~n conJins of Jmnur,u tontralnetl tr-, ,:over11111tnl'1 Intent to bt und far!ptclft 
p!lrpcu,.1, bul art ,., ithtr rutrlc.lld or corr1,..,lttul. 1111,111 
shau!dbtuprts~tdby,itti,r; 

•I •ht i:n111:mlnc body iUtlf, b) A body (u. h11dctl commlttf't), or c) An olndal to wh~h 
lhe 10VP.rnl<1J h11dy lus rl,1,cat,ri lht 1111hnrity 10 ,nrc11 amouuts tn b, uJ,rl for• 
sptctncpurpose 

1\11,,,1,wof :t(tountlnr/rrpurttncfor 

conlnctu~lf'nrumhPr'Jnctsar,untltr 
rtwl,w 

h•ctn,ral,wh,r,acnntfllcllJtllrC11ttdl>udtttf!dfun1b1tt,ncumbertrlsoa,to 
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STEVE SJSOU,K 
Gol'ernor 

JAMES DEVOLLD 
C/1air, Ncmda Tm, Commission 

MELANIE YOUNG 
ET.1!cutfrc. Director 

June 25, 2020 

Mr. Paul C. Navazio 
Incline Village GID 
893 Southwood Blvd. 
Incline Village, NV 89451 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 

Web Site: http:1/tax.nv.gov 
1550 College Park<.r;ay, Suite 115 
Carson City, Navada 89706-7937 

Phone: {775) 684-2000 Fax: (775) 684-2020 

LAS VEGAS OFFICE 
Grant Sawter Office Building, Suite1300 

555 E. Washington Avenue 
Les Vegas, Nevada 89101 

Phone: (702) 486-2300 Fax: (702) 486,2373 

Re: Final Budget- Fiscal Year 20/21 

Dear Mr. Navazio: 

RENO OFFICE 
4600 Kieti:ke Lane 

Building Le Suite 235 
Reno, Nevada 89502 

Phone: (775) 687-999S 
Fax: (775) 688-1303 

HENDERSON OFFICE 
2550 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 180 

Henderson, Nevada 89074 
Phone: (702) 486-2300 

Fax: {702) 486-3377 

The Department of Taxation has examined your final budget in accordance with NRS 354.598. We find 
the budget to be in compliance with the law and appropriate regulations. 

For future reference a budget message is mandatory on!y for cities and counties. Also, the message 
should include comparison and anafysis of actual or expected results and budgeted results including 
any factors that might impact the budget either positively or negatively, as well as any adjustments from 
the Revenue Projections or Pro Forma as provided by the department. 

Please be advised the following tax rates have been presented to the Nevada Tax Commission on 
June 25, 2020 for certification: 

Operating tax rate 
Voter approved rate 
Legislative override rate 
Debt service rate 

$ 0.1172 
0.0000 
0.0139 
0.0000 

$ 0.1311 

If you should have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (775) 684-2065 or e-mail me at 
kgrahmann@tax.state.nv.us. 

Sincerely, 

Keme Grahmann 
Budget Analyst 
Local Government Finance 
Department of Taxation. 

cc: Kelly Langley 
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Fund Financial Statements 

Funds-Overview and Definitions 

63. Fund financial statements should be used to report additional and detailed 
information about the primary government. Governments should report gov­
ernmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds to the extent that they have activities 
that meet the criteria for using those funds. (See paragraphs 64-73.) 

a. Governmental funds (emphasizing major funds) 
(1) The general fund 
(2-) Special revenue funds 
(3) Capital projects funds 
(4) Debt service funds 
(5) Permanent funds 

b. Proprietary funds 
(6) Enterprise funds (emphasizing major funds) 
(7) Internal service funds 

c. Fiduciary funds and similar component units 
(8) Pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds 
(9) Investment trust funds 

(, 0) Private-purpose trust funds 
(11) Agency funds. 

Governmental Funds 

64. Governmental fund reporting focuses primarily on the sources, uses, and 
balances of current financial resources and often has a budgetary orientation. 
The governmental fund category includes the general fund, special revenue 
funds, capital projects funds, debt service funds, and permanent funds. With the 
exception of permanent funds, those governmental funds are defined in NCGA 
Statement 1, as amended. 

65. Pennanent funds should be used to report resources that are legally restricted 
to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that 
support the reporting government's programs-that is, for the benefit of the 
government or its citizenry.32 (Permanent funds do not include private-purpose 

32An example is a cemetery perpetual-care fund, which provides resources for the ongoing 
maintenance of a public cemetery. 
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trust funds, defined in paragraph 72, which should be used to report situations in 
which the government is required to use the principal or earnings for the benefit of 
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.) 

Proprietary Funds 

66. Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, 
changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. The 
proprietary fund category includes enterprise and internal service funds. 

67. Enterprise funds may be used to report any activity for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services. Activities are required to be 
reported as enterprise funds if any one of the following criteria is met. Govern­
ments should apply each of these criteria in the context of the activity's principal 
revenue sources.33 

a. The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net 
revenues from fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a 
pledge of net revenues from fees and charges and the full faith and credit of 
a related primary government or component unit-even if that government is 
not expected to make any payments-is not payable solely from fees.and 
charges of the activity. (Some debt may be secured, in part, by a portion of 
its own proceeds but should be considered as payable "solely'' from the 
revenues of the activity.) 

b. Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, 
including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service), be recovered 
with fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues.34 

33These criteria do not require insignificant activities of governments to be reported as enterprise 
funds. For example, state law may require a county's small claims court to assess plaintiffs a fee 
to cover the cost of frivolous claims. However, taxes, not fees, are the principal revenue source 
of the county's court system, and the fees in question cover only the cost of frivolous small claims 
court cases. In this case, the county would not be required to remove its court system· or the 
small claims court activity from its general fund and report it in an enterprise fund. Conversely, 
a state department of environmental protection regulation may require a water utility to recover 
the costs of operating its water plant, including debt service costs, through charges to its 
customers-the utility's principal revenue source. Because these charges are the activity's 
principal revenue source and because the water utility is required to recover its costs, the utility 
should be reported as an enterprise fund. 
34sased on this criterion, state unemployment compensation funds should be reported in 
enterprise funds. 
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c. The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to 
recover its costs, including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt 
service). 

68. Internal service funds may be used to report any activity that provides 
goods or services to other funds, departments, or agencies of the primary 
government and its component units, or to other governments, on a cost­
reimbursement basis. Internal service funds should be used only if the reporting 
government is the predominant participant in the activity. Otherwise, the activity 
should be reported as an enterprise fund. 

Fiduciary Funds 

69. Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. 
Fiduciary funds should be used to report assets held in a trustee or agency 
capacity for others and therefore cannot be used to support the government's 
own programs. The fiduciary fund category includes pension (and other em­
ployee benefit) trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, 
and agency funds. The three types of trust funds should be used to report 
resources held and administered by the reporting government when it is acting 
in a fiduciary capacity for individuals, private organizations, or other govern­
ments. These funds are distinguished from agency funds generally by the 
existence of a trust agre~ment that affects the degree of management involve­
ment and the length of time that the resources are held. 

70. Pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds should be used to report 
resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries 
of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, other postemploy­
ment benefit plans, or other employee benefit plans. 

71. Investment trust funds should be used to report the external portion of 
investment pools reported by the sponsoring government, as required by State­
ment 31, paragraph 18. 

72. Private-purpose trust funds, such as a fund used to report escheat prop­
erty, should be used to report all other trust arrangements under which principal 
and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. 
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OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND 
BUDGET 

2 CFR Part 225 

Cost Principles for State, Local, and 
Indian Tribal Governments (0MB 
Circular A-87) 

AGENCY: Office of Management and 
Budget 
ACTION: Relo\:ation of policy guidance to 
2 CFR chapter IL 

SUMMARY: The Office of Management 
and Budget (0MB) is relocating Circular 
A-87, "Cost Principles for State, Local, 
and Indian Tribal Governments," to 
Title 2 in the Code of Federal 
Regulations (2 CFRJ, Subtitle A, Chapter 
II, part 225 as part of an initiative to 
provide the public with a central 
location for Federal government policies 
on grants and other financial assistance 
and nonprocurement agreements. 
Consolidating the 0MB guidance and 
co-locating the agency regulations 
provides a good foundation for 
streamlining and simplifying the policy 
framework for grants and agreements as 
part of the efforts to implement the 
Federal Financial Assistance 
Management Improvement Act of 1999 
(Pub. L. 106-107). 
DATES: This document is effective 
August 31, 2005. This document 
republishes the existing 0MB Circular 
A-87, which already is in effect. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Gil 
Tran, Office of Federal Financial 
Management, Office of Management and 
Budget, telephone 202-395-3052 
(direct) or 202-395-3993 (main office) 
and e-mail: Hai_M._Tran@omb.eop.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On May 
10, 2004 [69 FR 25970), we revised the 
three 0MB circulars containing Federal 
cost principles. The purpose of those 
revisions was to simplify the cost 
principles by making the descriptions of 
similar cost items consistent across the 
circulars where possible, thereby 
reducing the possibility of 
misinterpretation. Those revisions, a 
result of 0MB and Federal agency 
efforts to implement Public Law 106-
107, were effective on June 9, 2004. 

In this document, we relocate 0MB 
Circular A-87 to the CFR, in Title 2 
which was established on May 11, 2004 
[69 FR 26276) as a central location for 
0MB and Federal agency policies on 
grants and agreements. 

Our relocation of 0MB Circular A-87 
does not change the substance of the 
circular. Other than adjustments needed 
to conform to the formatting 
requirements of the CFR, this notice 
relocates in 2 CFR the version of 0MB 

Circular A-87 as revised by the May 10, 
2004 notice. 

List of Subjects in 2 CFR Part 225 
Accounting, Grant administration, 

Grant programs, Reporting and 
recordkeeping requirements, State, 
local, and Indian tribal governments. 

Dated: August 8, 2005. 
Joshua B. Bolten, 
Director. 

Authority and Issuance 

• For the reasons set forth above, the 
Office of Management and Budget 
amends 2 CFR Subtitle A, Chapter II, by 
adding a part 225 as set forth below. 

PART 225-COST PRINCIPLES FOR 
STATE, LOCAL, AND INDIAN TRIBAL 
GOVERNMENTS (0MB CIRCULAR 
A-87) 

Sec. 
225.5 Purpose. 
225.10 Authority 
225.15 Background 
225.20 Policy. 
225.25 Definitions. 
225.30 0MB responsibilities. 
225.35 Federal agency responsibilities. 
225.40 Effective date of changes. 
225.45 Relationship to previous issuance. 
225.50 Policy review date. 
225.55 Information Contact. 
Appendix A to Part 225-General Principles 

for Determining Allowable Costs 
Appendix B to Part 225-Selected Items of 

Cost 
Appendix C to Part 225-State/Local-Wide 

Central Service Cost Allocation Plans 
Appendix D to Part 225-Public Assistance 

Cost Allocation Plans 
Appendix E to Part 225-State and Local 

Indirect Cost Rate Proposals 

Authority: 31 U.S.C. 503; 31 U.S.C. 1111; 
41 U.S.C. 405; Reorganization Plan No. 2 of 
1970; E.O. 11541, 35 FR 10737, 3 CFR, 1966-
1970, p. 939. 

§ 225.5 Purpose. 
This part establishes principles and 

standards for determining costs for 
Federal awards carried out through 
grants, cost reimbursement contracts, 
and other agreements with State and 
local governments and federally­
recognized Indian tribal governments 
(governmental units). 

§225.10 Authority. 
This part is issued under the authority 

of the Budget and Accounting Act of 
1921, as amended; the Budget and 
Accounting Procedures Act of 1950, as 
amended; the Chief Financial Officers 
Act of 1990; Reorganization Plan No. 2 
of 1970; and Executive Order No. 11541 
("Prescribing the Duties of the Office of 
Management and Budget and the 
Domestic Policy Council in the 
Executive Office of the President"). 

§225.15 Background. 
As part of the government-wide grant 

streamlining effort under Public Law 
106-107, Federal Financial Award 
Management Improvement Act of 1999, 
0MB led an interagency workgroup to 
simplify and make consistent, to the 
extent feasible, the various rules used to 
award Federal grants. An interagency 
task force was established in 2001 to 
review existing cost principles for 
Federal awards to State, local, and 
Indian tribal governments; colleges and 
universities; and non-profit· 
organizations. The task force studied 
"Selected Items of Cost" in each of the 
three cost principles to determine which 
items of costs could be stated 
consistently and/or more clearly. 

§225.20 Policy. 
This part establishes principles and 

standards to provide a uniform 
approach for determining costs and to 
promote effective program delivery, 
efficiency, and better relationships 
between governmental units and the 
Federal Government. The principles are 
for determining allowable costs only. 
They are not intended to identify the 
circumstances or to dictate the extent of 
Federal and governmental unit 
participation in the financing of a 
particular Federal award. Provision for 
profit or other increment above cost is 
outside the scope of this part. 

§225.25 . Definitions. 
Definitions of key terms used in this 

part are contained in Appendix A to this 
part, Section B. 

§ 225.30 0MB responsibilities. 
The Office of Management and Budget 

(0MB) will review agency regulations 
and implementation of this part, and 
will provide policy interpretations and 
assistance to insure effective and 
efficient implementation. Any 
exceptions will be subject to approval 
by 0MB. Exceptions will only be made 
in particular cases where adequate 
justification is presented. 

§ 225.35 Federal agency responsibilities. 
Agencies responsible for 

administering programs that involve 
cost reimbursement contracts, grants, 
and other agreements with · 
governmental units shall issue 
regulations to implement the provisions 
of this part and its appendices. 

§ 225.40 Effective date of changes. 

This part is effective August 31, 2005. 

§225.45 Relationship to previous 
issuance. 

(a) The guidance in this part 
previously was issued as 0MB Circular 
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A-87. Appendix A to this part contains 
the guidance that was in Attachment A 
(general principles) to the 0MB circular; 
Appendix B contains the guidance that 
was in Attachment B (selected items of 
cost); Appendix C contains the 
information that was in Attachment C 
(state/local-wide central service cost 
allocation plans); Appendix D contains 
the guidance that was in Attachment D 
(public assistance cost allocation plans); 
and Appendix E contains the guidance 
that was in Attachment E (state and 
local indirect cost rate proposals). 

(b) This part supersedes 0MB Circular 
A-87, as amended May 10, 2004, which 
superseded Circular A-87, as amended 
and issued May 4, 1995. 

§ 225.50 Policy review date. 
This part will have a policy review 

three years from the date of issuance. 

§ 225.55 Information contact. 
Further information concerning this 

part may be obtained by contacting the 
Office of Federal Financial 
Management, Financial Standards and 
Reporting Branch, Office of 
Management and Budget, Washington, 
DC 20503, telephone 202-395-3993. 

Appendix A to Part 225-General 
Principles for Determining Allowable 
Costs 
Table of Contents 

A. Purpose and Scope 
1. Objectives 
2. Policy guides 
3. Application 

B. Definitions 
1. Approval or authorization of the 

awarding or cognizant Federal agency 
2. Award 
3. Awarding agency 
4. Central service cost allocation plan 
5. Claim 
6. Cognizant agency 
7. Common rule 
8. Contract 
9. Cost 
1 o. Cost allocation plan 
11. Cost objective 
12. Federally-recognized Indian tribal 

government 
13. Governmental unit 
14. Grantee department or agency 
15. Indirect cost rate proposal 
16. Local government 
17. Public assistance cost allocation plan 
18. State 

C. Basic Guidelines 
1. Factors affecting allowability of costs 
2. Reasonable costs 
3. Allocable costs 
4. Applicable credits 

D. Composition of Cost 
1. Total cost 
2. Classification of costs 

E. Direct Costs 
1. General 
2. Application 

3. Minor items 
F. Indirect Costs 

1. General 
2. Cost allocation plans and indirect cost 

proposals 
3. Limitation on indirect or administrative 

costs 
G. Interagency Services 
H. Required Certifications 
General Principles for Determining 

Allowable Costs 
A. Purpose and Scope 
1. Objectives. This Appendix establishes 

principles for determining the allowable 
costs incurred by State, local, and federally­
recognized Indian tribal governments 
(governmental units) under grants, cost 
reimbursement contracts, and other 
agreements with the Federal Government 
(collectively referred to in this appendix and 
other appendices to 2 CFR part 225 as 
"Federal awards"). The principles are for.the 
purpose of cost determination and are not 
intended to identify the circumstances or 
dictate the extent of Federal or governmental 
unit participation in the financing of a 
particular program or project. The principles 
are designed to provide that Federal awards 
bear their fair share of cost recognized _under 
these principles except where restricted or 
prohibited by law. Provision for profit or 
other increment above cost is outside the 
scope of 2 CFR part 225. 

2. Policy guides. 
a. The application of these principles is 

based on the fundamental premises that: 
(1) Governmental units are responsible for 

the efficient and effective administration of 
Federal awards through the application of 
sound management practices. 

(2) Governmental units assume 
responsibility for administering Federal 
funds in a manner consistent with 
underlying agreements, program objectives, 
and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
award. 

(3) Each governmental unit, in recognition 
of its own unique combination of staff, 
facilities, and experience, will have the 
primary responsibility for employing 
whatever form of organization and 
management techniques may be necessary to 
assure proper and efficient administration of 
Federal awards. 

b. Federal agencies should work with 
States or localities which ·wish to test 
alternative mechanisms for paying costs for 
administering Federal programs. The Office 
of Management and Budget (0MB) 
encourages Federal agencies to test fee-for­
service alternatives as a replacement for 
current cost-reimbursement payment 
methods in response to the National 
Performance Review's (NPR) 
recommendation. The NPR recommended the 
fee-for-service approach to reduce the burden 
associated with maintaining systems for 
charging administrative costs to Federal 
programs and preparing and approving cost 
allocation plans. This approach should also 
increase incentives for administrative 
efficiencies and improve outcomes. 

3. Application. 
a. These principles _will be applied by all 

Federal agencies in determining costs 
incurred by governmental units under 

Federal awards (including subawards) except 
those with (1) publicly-financed educational 
institutions subject to, 2 CFR part 220, Cost 
Principles for Educational Institutions (0MB 
Circular A-21), and (2) programs 
administered by publicly-owned hospitals 
and other providers of medical care that are 
subject to requirements promulgated by the 
sponsoring Federal agencies. However, 2 CFR 
part 225 does apply to all central service and 
department/agency costs that are allocated or 
billed to those educational institutions, 
hospitals, and other providers of medical 
care or services by other State and local 
government departments and agencies. 

b. All subawards are subject to those 
Federal cost principles applicable to the 
particular organization concerned. Thus, if a 
subaward is to a governmental unit (other 
than a college, university or hospital), 2 CFR 
part 225 shall apply; if a subaward is to a 
commercial organization, the cost principles 
applicable to commercial organizations shall 
apply; if a subaward is to a college or 
university, 2 CFR part 220 (Circular A-21) 
shall apply; if a subaward is to a hospital, the 
cost principles used by the Federal awarding 
agency for awards to hospitals shall apply, 
subject to the provisions of subsection A.3.a. 
of this Appendix; if a subaward is to some 
other non-profit organization, 2 CFR part 230, 
Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations 
(Circular A-122), shall apply. 

c. These principles shall be used as a guide 
in the pricing of fixed price arrangements 
where costs are used in determining the 
appropriate price. 

d. Where a Federal contract awarded to a 
governmental unit incorporates a Cost • 
Accounting Standards (CAS) clause, the 
requirements of that clause shall apply. In 
such cases, the governmental unit and the 
cognizant Federal agency shall establish an 
appropriate advance agreement on how the 
governmental unit will comply with 
applicable CAS requirements when 
estimating, accumulating and reporting costs 

. under GAS-covered contracts. The agreement 
shall indicate that 2 CFR part 225 (0MB 
Circular A-87) requirements will be applied 
to other Federal awards. In all cases, only one 
set ofrecords needs to be maintained by the 
governmental unit. 

e. Conditional exemptions. 
(1) 0MB authorizes conditional exemption 

from 0MB administrative requirements and 
cost principles for certain Federal programs 
with statutorily-authorized consolidated 
planning and consolidated administrative 
funding, that are identified by a Federal 
agency and approved by the head of the 
Executive department or establishment. A 
Federal agency shall consult with 0MB 
during its consideration of whether to grant 
such an exemption. 

(2) To promote efficiency in State and local 
program administration, when Federal non­
entitlement programs with common purposes 
have specific statutorily-authorized 
consolidated planning and consolidated 
administrative funding and where most of 
the State agency's resources come from non­
Federal sources, Federal agencies may 
exempt these covered State-administered, 
non-entitlement grant programs from certain 
0MB grants management requirements. The 
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exemptions would.be from all but the 
allocability of costs provisions of Appendix 
A subsection C.3 of 2 CFR part 225, Cost 
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal 
Governments (0MB Circular A-87); 
Appendix A, Section C.4 of 2 CFR 220, Cost 
Principles for Educational Institutions 
(Circular A-21); Appendix A, subsection A.4 
of 2 CFR 230 Cost Principles for Non-Profit 
Organizations (Circular A-122); and from all 
of the administrative requirements provisions 
of 2 CFR part 215, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements for Grants and Agreements 
with Institutions of Higher Education, 
Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit 
Organizations (Circular A-110), and the 
agencies' grants management common rule. 

(3) When a Federal agency provides this 
flexibility, as a prerequisite to a State's 
exercising this option, a State must adopt its 
own written fiscal and administrative 
requirements for expending and accounting 
for all funds, which are consistent with the 
provisions of 2 CFR part 225 (0MB Circular 
A-87), and extend such policies to all 
subrecipients. These fiscal and 
administrative requirements must be 
sufficiently specific to ensure that: Funds are 
used in compliance with all applicable 
Federal statutory and regulatory provisions, 
costs are reasonable and necessary for 
operating these programs, and funds are not 
used for general expenses required to carry 
out other responsibilities of a State or its 
subrecipients. 

B. Definitions 
1. "Approval or authorization of the 

awarding or cognizant Federal agency" 
means documentation evidencing consent 
prior to incurring a specific cost. If such costs 
are specifically identified in a Federal award 
document, approval of the document 
constitutes approval of the costs. If the·costs 
are covered by a State/local-vdde cost 
allocation plan or an indirect cost proposal, 
approval of the plan constitutes the approval. 

2. "Award" means grants, cost 
reimbursement contracts and other 
agreements between a State, local and Indian 
tribal government and the Federal 
Government. 

3. "Awarding agency" means (a) with 
respect to a grant, cooperative agreement, or 
cost reimbursement contract, the Federal 
agency, and (b) with respect to a subaward, 
the party that awarded the subaward. 

4. "Central service cost allocation plan" 
means the documentation identifying, 
accumulating, and allocating or developing 
billing rates based on the allowable costs of 
services provided by a governmental unit on 
a centralized basis to its departments and 
agencies. The costs of these .services may be 
allocated or billed to users. 

5. "Claim" means a ivritten demand or 
written assertion by the governmental unit or 
granter seeking, as a matter of right, the 
payment of money in a sum certain, the 
adjustment or interpretation of award terms, 
or other relief arising under or relating to the 
award. A voucher, invoice or other routine 
request for payment that is not a dispute 
when submitted is not a claim. Appeals, such 
as those filed by a governmental unit in 
response to questioned audit costs, are not 
considered claims until a final management 

decision is made by the Federal awarding 
agency. 

6. "Cognizant agency" means the Federal 
agency responsible for reviewing, 
negotiating, and approving cost allocation 
plans or indirect cost proposals developed 
under 2 CFR part 225 on behalf of all Federal 
agencies. 0MB publishes a listing of 
cognizant agencies. 

7. "Common Rule" means the "Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and 
Cooperative Agreements to State and Local 
Governments; Final Rule" originally issued 
at 53 FR 8034-8103 (March 11, 1988). Other 
common rules will be referred to by their 
specific titles. 

8. "Contract" means a mutually binding 
legal relationship obligating the seller to 
furnish the supplies or services (including 
construction) and the buyer to pay for them. 
It includes all types of commitments that 
obligate the government to an expenditure of 
appropriated funds and that, except as 
otherwise authorized, are in writing. In 
addition to bilateral instruments, contracts 
include (but are not limited to): Awards and 
notices of awards; job orders or task orders 
issued under basic ordering agreements; 
letter contracts; orders, such as purchase 
orders, under which the contract becomes 
effective by written acceptance or 
performance; and, bilateral contract 
modifications. Contracts do not include 
grants and cooperative agreements covered 
by 31 U.S.C. 6301 et seq. 

9. "Cost" means an amount as determined 
on a cash, accrual, or other basis acceptable 
to the Federal awarding or cognizant agency. 
It does not include transfers to a general or 
similar fund. 

1 O. "Cost allocation plan" means central 
service cost allocation plan, public assistance 
cost allocation plan, and indirect cost rate 
proposal. Each of these terms is further 
defined in this section. 

11. "Cost objective" means a function, 
organizational subdivision, contract, grant, or 
other activity for which cost data are needed 
and for which costs are incurred. 

12. "Federally-recognized Indian tribal 
government"·means the governing body or a 
governmental agency of any Indian. tribe, 
band, nation, or other organized group or 
community (including any native village as 
defined in Section 3 of the Alaska Native 
Claims Settlement Act, 85 Stat. 688) certified 
by the Secretary of the Interior as eligible for 
the special programs and services provided 
through the Bureau of Indian Affairs. 

13. "Governmental unit" means the entire 
State, local, or federally-recognized Indian 
tribal government, including any component 
thereof. Components of governmental units 
may function independently of the 
governmental unit in accordance with the 
term of the award. 

14. "Grantee department or agency" means 
the component of a State, local, or federally­
recognized Indian tribal government which is 
responsible for the performance or 
administration of all or some part of a 
Federal award. 

15. "Indirect cost rate proposal" means the 
documentation prepared by a governmental 
unit or component thereof to substantiate its 
request for the establishment of an indirect 

cost rate as described in Appendix E of 2 CFR 
part 225. 

16. "Local government" means a county, 
municipality, city, town, township, local 
public authority, school district, special 
district, intrastate district, council of 
governments (whether or not incorporated as 
a non-profit corporation under State law), 
any other regional or interstate government 
entity, or any agency or instrumentality of a 
local government. 

17. "Public assistance cost allocation plan" 
means a narrative description of the 
procedures that will be used in identifying, 
measuring and allocating all administrative 
costs to all of the programs administered or 
supervised by State public assistance 
agencies as described in Appendix D of 2 
CFR part 225. 

18. "State" means any of the several States 
of the United States, the District of Columbia, 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, any 
territory or possession of the United States, 
or any agency or instrumentality of a State 
exclusive oflocal governments. 

C. Basic Guidelines 
1. Factors affecting allowability of costs. To 

be allowable under Federal awards, costs 
must meet the following general criteria: 

a. Be necessary and reasonable for proper 
and efficient performance and administration 
of Federal awards. 

b. Be allocable to Federal awards under the 
provisions of 2 CFR part 225. 

c. Be authorized or not prohibited under 
State or local laws or regulations. 

d. Conform to any limitations or exclusions 
set forth in these principles, Federal laws, 
terms and conditions of the Federal award, 
or other governing regulations as to types or 
amounts of cost items. 

e. Be consistent with policies, regulations, 
and procedures that apply uniformly to both 
Federal awards and other activities of the 
governmental unit. 

f. Be accorded consistent treatment. A cost 
may not be assigned to a Federal award as 
a direct cost if any other cost incurred for the 
same purpose in like circumstances has been 
allocated to the Federal award as an indirect 
cost. 

g. Except as otherwise provided for in 2 
CFR part 225, be determined in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

h. Not be included as a cost or used to meet 
cost sharing or matching requirements of any 
other Federal award in either the current or 
a prior period, except as specifically 
provided by Federal law or regulation. 

i. Be the net of all applicable credits. 
j. Be adequately documented. 
2. Reasonable costs. A cost is reasonable if, 

in its nature and amount, it does not exceed 
that which would be incurred by a prudent 
person under the circumstances prevailing at 
the time the decision was made to incur the 
cost. The question ofreasonableness is 
particularly important when governmental 
units or components are predominately 
federally-funded. In determining 
reasonableness of a given cost, consideration 
shall be given to: 

a. Whether the cost is of a type generally 
recognized as ordinary and necessary for the 
operation of the governmental unit or the 
performance of the Federal award. 
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b. The restraints or requirements imposed 
by such factors as: Sound business practices; 
arm's-length bargaining; Federal, State and 
other laws and regulations; and, terms and 
conditions of the Federal award. 

c. Market prices for comparable goods or 
services. 

d. Whether the individuals concerned 
acted with prudence in the circumstances 
considering their responsibilities to the 
governmental unit, its employees, the public 
at large, and the Federal Government. 

e. Significant deviations from the 
established practices of the governmental 
unit which may unjustifiably increase the 
Federal award's cost. 

3. Allocable costs. 
a. A cost is allocable to a particular cost 

objective if the goods or services involved are 
chargeable or assignable to such cost 
objective in accordance with relative benefits 
received. 

b. All activities which benefit from the 
governmental unit's indirect cost, including 
unallowable activities and services donated 
to the governmental unit by third parties, 
will receive an appropriate allocation of 
indirect costs. 

c. Any cost allocable to a particular Federal 
award or cost objective under the principles 
provided for in 2 CFR part 225 may not be 
charged to other Federal awards to overcome 
fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions 
imposed by law or terms of the Federal 
awards, or for other reasons. 

d. Where an accumulation of indirect costs 
will ultimately result in charges to a Federal 
award, a cost allocation plan will be required 
as described in Appendices C, D, and E to 
this part. 

4. Applicable credits. 
a. Applicable credits refer to those receipts 

or reduction of expenditure-type transactions 
that offset or reduce expense items allocable 
to Federal awards as direct or indirect costs. 
Examples of such transactions are: Purchase 
discounts, rebates or allowances, recoveries 
or indemnities on losses, insurance refunds 
or rebates, and adjustments of overpayments 
or erroneous charges. To the extent that such 
credits accruing to or received by the 
governmental unit relate to allowable costs, 
they shall be credited to the Federal award 
either as a cost reduction or cash refund, as 
appropriate. 

b. In some instances, the amounts received 
from the Federal Government to finance 
activities or service operations of the 
governmental unit should be treated as 
applicable credits. Specifically, the concept 
of netting such credit items (including any 
amounts used to meet cost sharing or 
matching requirements) should be recognized 
in determining the rates or amounts to be 
charged to Federal awards. (See Appendix B 
to this part, item 11, "Depreciation and use 
allowances," for areas of potential 
application in the matter of Federal financing 
of activities.) 

D. Composition of Cost 
1. Total cost. The total cost of Federal 

awards is comprised of the allowable direct 
cost of the program, plus its allocable portion 
of allowable indirect costs, less applicable 
credits. 

2. Classification of costs. There is no 
universal rule for classifying certain costs as 

either direct or indirect under every 
accounting system. A cost may be direct with 
respect to some specific service or function, 
but indirect with respect to the Federal 
award or other final cost objective. Therefore, 
it is essential that each item of cost be treated 
consistently in like circumstances either as a 
direct or an indirect cost. Guidelines for 
determining direct and indirect costs charged 
to Feder.al awards are provided in the 
sections that follow. 

E. Direct Costs 
1. General. Direct costs are those that can 

be identified specifically with a particular 
final cost objective. 

2. Application. Typical direct costs 
chargeable to Federal awards are: 

a. Compensation of employees for the time 
devoted and identified specifically to the 
performance of those awards. 

b. Cost of materials acquired, consumed, or 
ex-pended specifically for the purpose of 
those awards. 

c. Equipment and other approved capital 
expenditures. 

d. Travel expenses incurred specifically to 
carry out the award. 

3. Minor items. Any direct cost of a minor 
amount may be treated as an indirect cost for 
reasons of practicality where such accounting 
treatment for that item of cost is consistently 
applied to all cost objectives. 

F. Indirect Costs 
1. General. Indirect costs are those: 

Incurred for a common or joint purpose 
benefiting more than one cost objective, and 
not readily assignable to the cost objectives 
specifically benefitted, without effort 
disproportionate to the results achieved. The 
term "indirect costs," as used herein, applies 
to costs of this type originating in the grantee 
department, as well as those incurred by 
other departments in supplying goods, 
services, and facilities. To facilitate equitable 
distribution of indirect expenses to the cost 
objectives served, it may be necessary to 
establish a number of pools of indirect costs 
within a governmental unit department or in 
other agencies providing services to a 
governmental unit department. Indirect cost 
pools should be distributed to benefitted cost 
objectives on bases that will produce an 
equitable result in consideration of relative 
benefits derived. 

2. Cost allocation plans and indirect cost 
proposals. Requirements for development 
and submission of cost allocation plans and 
indirect cost rate proposals are contained in 
Appendices C, D, and E to this part. 

3. Limitation on indirect or administrative 
costs. 

a. In addition to restrictions contained in 
2 CFR part 225, there may be laws that 
further limit the amount of administrative or 
indirect cost allowed. 

b. Amounts not recoverable as indirect 
costs or administrative costs under one 
Federal award may not be shifted to another 
Federal award, unless specifically authorized 
by Federal legislation or regulation. 

G. Interagency Services. The cost of 
services provided by one agency to another 
within the governmental unit may include 
allowable direct costs of the service plus a 
pro rate share of indirect costs. A standard 
indirect cost allowance equal to ten percent 

of the direct salary and wage cost of 
providing the service (excluding overtime, 
shift premiums, and fringe benefits) may be 
used in lieu of determining the actual 
indirect costs of the service. These services 
do not include centralized services included 
in central service cost allocation plans as 
described in Appendix C to this part. 

H. Required Certifications. Each cost 
allocation plan or indirect cost rate proposal 
required by Appendices C and E to this part 
must comply with the following: 

1. No proposal to establish a cost allocation 
plan or an indirect cost rate, whether 
submitted to a Federal cognizant agency or 
maintained on file by the governmental unit, 
shall be acceptable unless such costs have 
been certified by the governmental unit using 
the Certificate of Cost Allocation Plan or 
Certificate of Indirect Costs as set forth in 
Appendices C and E to this part. The 
certificate must be signed on behalf of the 
governmental unit by an individual at a level 
no lower than chief financial officer of the 
governmental unit that submits the proposal 
or component covered by the proposal. 

2. No cost allocation plan or indirect cost 
rate shall be approved by the Federal 
Government unless the plan or rate proposal 
has been certified. Where it is necessary to 
establish a cost allocation plan or an indirect 
cost rate and the governmental unit has not 
submitted a certified proposal for 
establishing such a plan or rate in accordance 
with the requirements, the Federal 
Government may either disallow all indirect 
costs or unilaterally establish such a plan or 
rate. Such a plan or rate may be based upon 
audited historical data or such other data that 
have been furnished to the cognizant Federal 
agency and for which it can be demonstrated 
that all unallowable costs have been 
excluded. When a cost allocation plan or 
indirect cost rate is unilaterally established 
by the Federal Government because of failure 
of the governmental unit to submit a certified 
proposal, the plan or rate established will be 
set to ensure that potentially unallowable 
costs will not be reimbursed. 

Appendix B to Part 225-Selected Items 
of Cost 

Table of Contents 

1. Advertising and public relations costs 
2. Advisory councils 
3. Alcoholic beverages 
4. Audit costs and related services 
5. Bad debts 
6. Bonding costs 
7. Communication costs 
8. Compensation for personal services 
9. Contingency provisions 
10. Defense and prosecution of criminal and 

civil proceedings, and claims 
11. Depreciation and use allowances 
12. Donations and contributions 
13. Employee morale, health, and welfare 

costs 
14. Entertainment costs 
15. Equipment and other capital 

expenditures 
16. Fines and penalties 
17. Fund raising and investment management 

costs 
18. Gains and losses on disposition of 

depreciable property and other capital 
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assets and substantial relocation of 
Federal programs 

19. General government expenses 
20. Goods or services for personal use 
21. Idle facilities and idle capacity 
22. Insurance and indemnification 
23. Interest 
24. Lobbying 
25. Maintenance, operations, and repairs 
26. Materials and supplies costs 
27. Meetings and conferences 
28. Memberships, subscriptions, and 

professional activity costs 
29. Patent costs 
30. Plant and homeland security costs 
31. Pre-award costs 
32. Professional service costs 
33. Proposal costs 
34. Publication and printing costs 
35. Rearrangement and alteration costs 
36. Reconversion costs 
3 7. Rental costs of building and equipment 
38. Royalties and other costs for the use of 

patents 
39. Selling and marketing 
40. Taxes 
41. Termination costs applicable to 

sponsored agreements 
42. Training costs 
43. Travel costs 

Sections 1 through 43 provide principles to 
be applied in establishing the allowability or 
unallowability of certain items of cost. These 
principles apply whether a cost is treated as 
direct or indirect. A cost is allowable for 
Federal reimbursement only to the extent of 
benefits received by Federal awards and its 
conformance with the general policies and 
principles stated in Appendix A to this part. 
Failure to mention a particular item of cost 
in these sections is not intended to imply 
that it is either allowable or unallowable; 
rather, determination of allowability in each 
case should be based on the treatment or 
standards provided for similar or related 
items of cost. 

1. Advertising and public relations costs. 
a. The term advertising costs means the 

costs of advertising media and corollary 
administrative costs. Advertising media 
include magazines, newspapers, radio and 
television, direct mail, exhibits, electronic or 
computer transmittals, and the like. 

b. The term public relations includes 
community relations and means those 
activities dedioated to maintaining the image 
of the governmental unit or maintaining or 
promoting understanding and favorable 
relations with the community or public at 
large or any segment of the public. 

c. The only allowable advertising costs are 
those which are solely for: 

(1) The recruitment of personnel required 
for the performance by the governmental unit 
of obligations arising under a Federal award; 

(2) The procurement of goods and services 
for the performance of a Federal award; 

(3) The disposal of scrap or surplus 
materials acquired in the performance of a 
Federal award except when governmental 
units are reimbursed for disposal costs at a 
predetermined amount; or 

(4) Other specific purposes necessary to 
meet the requirements of the Federal award. 

d. The only allowable public relations 
costs are: 

(1) Costs specifically required by the 
Federal award; 

(2) Costs of communicating with the public 
and press pertaining to specific activities or 
accomplishments which result from 
performance of Federal awards (these costs 
are considered necessary as part of the 
outreach effort for the Federal award); or 

(3) Costs of conducting general liaison with 
news media and government public relations 
officers, to the extent that such activities are 
limited to communication and liaison 
necessary keep the public informed on 
matters of public concern, such as notices of 
Federal contract/grant awards, financial 
matters, etc. 

e. Costs identified in subsections c and d 
if incurred for more than one Federal award 
or for both sponsored work and other work 
of the governmental unit, are allowable to the 
extent that the principles in Appendix A to 
this part, sections E. ("Direct Costs") and F. 
("Indirect Costs") are observed. 

f. Unallowable advertising and public 
relations costs include the following: 

(1) All advertising and public relations 
costs other than as specified in subsections 
1.c, d, and e of this appendix; 

(2) Costs of meetings, conventions, 
convocations, or other events related to other 
activities of the governmental unit, 
including: 

(a) Costs of displays, demonstrations, and 
exhibits; 

(bl Costs of meeting rooms, hospitality 
suites, and other special facilities used in 
conjunction with shows and other special 
events; and · 

(c) Salaries and wages of employees 
engaged in setting up and displaying 
exhibits, making demonstrations, and 
providing briefings; 

(3) Costs of promotional items and 
memorabilia, including models, gifts, and 
souvenirs; 

(4) Costs ofadvertising and public relations 
designed solely to promote the governmental 
unit. 

2. Advisory councils. Costs incurred by 
advisory councils or committees are 
allowable as a direct cost where authorized 
by the Federal awarding agency or as an 
indirect cost where allocable to Federal 
awards. 

3. Alcoholic beverages. ·costs of alcoholic 
beverages are unallowable. 

4. Audit costs and related services. 
a. The costs of audits required by , and 

performed in accordance with, the Single 
Audit Act, as implemented by Circular A-
133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations" are allowable. 
Also see 31 U.S.C. 7505(b) and section 230 
("Audit Costs") of Circular A-133. 

b. Other audit costs are allowable if 
included in a cost allocation plan or indirect 
cost proposal, or if specifically approved by 
the awarding agency as a direct cost to an 
award. 

c. The cost of agreed-upon procedures 
engagements to monitor subrecipients who 
are exempted from A-133 under section 
200(d) are allowable, subject to the 
conditions listed in A-133, section 230 (b)(2). 

5. Bad debts. Bad debts, including losses 
(whether actual or estimated} arising from 

uncollectable accounts and other claims, 
related collection costs, and related legal 
costs, are unallowable. 

6. Bonding costs. 
a. Bonding costs arise- when the Federal 

Government requires assurance against 
financial loss to itself or others by reason of 
the act or default of the governmental unit. 
They arise also in instances where the 
governmental unit requires similar assurance. 
Included are such bonds as bid, performance, 
payment, advance payment, infringement, 
and fidelity bonds. 

b. Costs of bonding required pursuant to 
the terms of the award are allowable. 

c. Costs of bonding required by the 
governmental unit in the general conduct of 
its operations are allowable to the extent that 
such bonding is in accordance ·with sound 
business practice and the rates and premiums 
are reasonable under the circumstances. 

7. Communication costs. Costs incurred for 
telephone services, local and long distance 
telephone calls, telegrams, postage, 
messenger, electronic or computer · 
transmittal services and the like are 
allowable. 

8. Compensation for personal services. 
a. General. Compensation for personnel 

services includes all remuneration, paid 
currently or accrued, for services rendered 
during the period of performance under 
Federal awards, including but not necessarily 
limited to wages, salaries, and fringe benefits. 
The costs of such compensation are 
allowable to the extent that they satisfy the 
specific requirements of this and other 
appendices under 2 CFR Part 225, and that 
the total compensation for individual 
employees: 

(1) Is reasonable for the services rendered 
and conforms to the established policy of the 
governmental unit consistently applied to 
both Federal and non-Federal activities; 

(2) Follows an appointment made in 
accordance with a governmental unit's laws 
and rules and meets merit system or other 
requirements required by Federal law, where 
applicable; and 

(3) Is determined and supported as 
provided in subsection h. 

b. Reasonablenes_s. Compensation for 
employees engaged in work on Federal 
awards will be considered reasonable to the 
extent that it is consistent vvith that paid for 
similar work in other activities of the 
governmental unit. In cases where the kinds 
of employees required for Federal awards are 
not found in the other activities of the 
governmental upit, compensation will be 
considered reasonable to the extent that it is 
comparable to that paid for similar work in 
the labor market in which the employing 
government competes for the kind of 
employees involved. Compensation surveys 
providing data representative of the labor 
market involved will be an acceptable basis 
for evaluating reasonablen~ss. 

c. Unallowable costs. Costs which are 
unallowable under other sections of these 
principles shall not be allowable under this 
section solely on the basis that they 
constitute personnel compensation. 

d. Fringe benefits. 
(1) Fringe benefits are allowances and 

services provided by employers to their 
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employees as compensation in addition to 
regular salaries and wages. Fringe benefits 
include, but are not limited to, the costs of 
leave, employee insurance, pensions, and 
unemployment benefit plans. Except as 
provided elsewhere in these principles, the 
costs of fringe benefits are allowable to the 
extent that the benefits are reasonable and are 
required by law, governmental unit-employee 
agreement, or an established policy of the 
governmental unit. 

(2) The cost of fringe benefits in the form 
ofregular compensation paid to employees 
during periods of authorized absences from 
the job, such as for annual leave, sick leave, 
holidays, court leave, military leave, and 
other similar benefits, are allowable if: They 
are provided under established written leave 
policies; the costs are equitably allocated to 
all related activities, including Federal 
awards; and, the accounting basis (cash or 
accrual) selected for costing each type of 
leave is consistently followed by the 
governmental unit. 

· (3) When a governmental unit uses the 
cash basis of accounting, the cost of leave is 
recognized in the period that the leave is 
taken and paid for. Payments for unused 
leave when an employee retires or terminates 
employment are allowable in the year of 
payment provided they are allocated as a 
general administrative expense to all 
activities of the governmental unit or 
component. 

(4) The accrual basis may be only used for 
those types of leave for which a liability as 
defined by Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) exists when the leave is 
earned. When a governmental unit uses the 
accrual basis of accounting, in accordance 
with GAAP, allowable leave costs are the 
lesser of the amount accrued or funded. 

(5) The cost of fringe benefits in the form 
of employer contributions or expenses for 
social security; employee life, health, 
unemployment, and worker's compensation 
insurance ( except as indicated in section 22, 
Insurance and indemnification); pension 
plan costs (see subsection e.); and other 
similar benefits are allowable, provided such 
benefits are granted under established 
written policies. Such benefits, whether 
treated as indirect costs or as direct costs, 
shall be allocated to Federal awards and all 
other activities in a manner consistent with 
the pattern of benefits attributable to the 
individuals or group(s) of employees whose 
salaries and wages are chargeable to such 
Federal awards and other activities. 

e. Pension plan costs. Pension plan costs 
may be computed using a pay-as-you-go 
method or an acceptable actuarial cost 
method in accordance with established 
written policies of the governmental unit. 

(1) For pension plans financed on a pay­
as-you-go method, allowable costs ·w:ill be 
limited to those representing actual payments 
to retirees or their beneficiaries. 

(2) Pension costs calculated using an 
actuarial cost-based method recognized by 
GAAP are allowable for a given fiscal year if 
they are funded for that year within six 
months after the end of that year. Costs 
funded after the six month period (or a later 
period agreed to by the cognizant agency) are 
allowable in the year funded. The cognizant 

agency may agree to an extension of the six 
month period if an appropriate adjustment is 
made to compensate for the timing of the 
charges to the Federal Government and 
related Federal reimbursement and the 
governmental unit's contribution to the 
pension fund. Adjustments may be made by 
cash refund or other equitable procedures to 
compensate the Federal Government for the 
time value of Federal reimbursements in 
excess of contributions to the pension fund. 

(3) Amounts funded byfae governmental 
unit in excess of the actuarially determined 
amount for a fiscal year may be used as the 
governmental unit's contribution in future 
periods. 

(4) When a governmental unit converts to 
an acceptable actuarial cost method, as 
defined by GAAP, and funds pension costs 
in accordance with this method, the 
unfunded liability at the time of conversion 
shall be allowable if amortized over a period 
of years in accordance with GAAP. 

(5) The Federal Government shall receive 
an equitable share of any previously allowed 
pension costs (including earnings thereon) 
which revert or inure to the governmental 
unit in the form of a refund, withdrawal, or 
other credit. 

f. Post-retirement health benefits. Post­
retirement health benefits (PRHB) refers to 
costs of health insurance or health services 
not included in a pension plan covered by 
subsection 8.e. of this appendix for retirees 
and their spouses, dependents, and 
survivors. PRHB costs may be computed 
using a pay-as-you-go method or an 
acceptable actuarial cost method in 
accordance with established ·written polices 
of the governmental unit. 

(1) For PRHB financed on a pay as-you-go 
method, allowable costs will be limite·d to 
those representing actual payments to 
retirees or their beneficiaries. 

(2) PRHB costs calculated using an 
actuarial cost method recognized by GAAP 
are allowable if they are funded for that year 
within six months after the end of that year. 
Costs funded after the six month period (or 
a later period agreed to by the cognizant 
agency) are allowable in the year funded. The 
cognizant agency may agree to an extension 
of the six month period if an appropriate 
adjustment is made to compensate for the 
timing of the charges to the Federal 
Government and related Federal 
reimbursements and the governmental unit's 
contributions to the PRHB fund. Adjustments 
may be made by cash refund, reduction in 
current year's PRHB costs, or other equitable 
procedures to compensate the Federal 
Government for the time value of Federal 
reimbursements in excess of contributions to 
the PRHB fund. 

(3) Amounts funded in excess of the 
actuarially determined amount for a fiscal 
year may be used as the government's 
contribution in a future period. 

(4) When a governmental unit converts to 
an acceptable actuarial cost method and 
funds PRHB costs in accordance with this 
method, the initial unfunded liability 
attributable to prior years shall be allowable 
if amortized over a period of years in 
accordance with GAAP, or, ifno such GAAP 
period exists, over a period negotiated with 
the cognizant agency. 

(5) To be allowable in the current year, the 
PRHB costs must be paid either to: 

(a) An insurer or other benefit provider as 
current year costs or premiums, or 

(b) An insurer or trustee to maintain a trust 
fund or reserve for the sole purpose of 
providing post-retirement benefits to retirees 
and other beneficiaries. 

(6) The Federal Government shall receive 
an equitable share of any amounts of 
previously allowed post-retirement benefit 
costs (including earnings thereon) which 
revert or inure to the governmental unit in 
the form of a refund, withdrawal, or other 
credit. 

g. Severance pay. 
(1) Payments in addition to regular salaries 

and wages made to workers whose 
employment is being terminated are 
allowable to the extent that, in each case, 
they are required by law, employer-employee 
agreement, or established written policy. 

(2) Severance payments (but not accruals) 
associated with normal turnover are 
allowable. Such payments shall be allocated 
to all activities of the governmental unit as 
an indirect cost. 

(3) Abnormal or mass severance pay will 
be considered on a case-by-case basis and is 
allowable only if approved by the cognizant 
Federal agency. 

h. Support of salaries and wages. These 
standards regarding time distribution are in 
addition to the standards for payroll 
documentation. 

(i) Charges to Federal awards for salaries 
and wages, whether treated as direct or 
indirect costs, will be based on payrolls 
documented in accordance with generally 
accepted practice of the governmental unit 
and approved by a responsible official(s) of 
the governmental unit. 

(2) No further documentation is required 
for the salaries and wages of employees who 
work in a single indirect cost activity. 

(3) Where employees are expected to work 
solely on a single Federal award or cost 
objective, charges for their salaries and wages 
will be supported by periodic certifications 
that the employees worked solely on that 
program for the period covered by the 
certification. These certifications will be 
prepared at least semi-annually and will be 
signed by the employee or supervisory 
official having first hand knowledge of the 
work performed by the employee. 

(4) Where employees work on multiple 
activities or cost objectives, a distribution of 
their salaries or wages will be supported by 
personnel activity reports or equivalent 
documentation which meets the standards in 
subsection 8.h.(5) of this appendix unless a 
statistical sampling system (see subsection 
8.h.(6) of this appendix) or other substitute 
system has been approved by the cognizant 
Federal agency. Such documentary support 
will be required where employees work on: 

(a) More than one Federal award, 
(bl A Federal award and a non-Federal 

award, 
( c) An indirect cost activity and a direct 

cost activity, 
(d) Two or more indirect activities which 

are allocated using different allocation bases, 
or 

(e) An unallowable activity and a direct or 
indirect cost activity. 
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(5) Personnel activity reports or equivalent 
documentation must meet the following 
standards: 

(a) They must reflect an after-the-fact 
distribution of the actual activity of each 
employee, 

(b) They must account for the total activity 
for which each employee is compensated, 

(c) They must be prepared at least monthly 
and must coincide with one or more pay 
periods, and 

(d) They must be signed by the employee. 
(e) Budget estimates or other distribution 

percentages determined before the services 
are performed do not qualify as support for 
charges to Federal awards but may be used 
for interim accounting purposes, provided 
that: 

(i) The governmental unit's system for 
establishing the estimates produces 
reasonable approximations of the activity 
actually performed; 

(ii) At least quarterly, comparisons of 
actual costs to budgeted distributions based 
on the monthly activity reports are made. 
Costs charged to Federal awards to reflect 
adjustments made as a result of the activity 
actually performed may be recorded annually 
if the quarterly comparisons show the 
differences between budgeted and actual 
costs are less than ten percent; and 

(iii) The budget estimates or other 
distribution percentages are revised at least 
quarterly, if necessary, to reflect changed 
circumstances. 

(6) Substitute systems for allocating 
salaries and wages to Federal awards may be 
used in place of activity reports. These 
systems are subject to approval if required by 
the cognizant agency. Such systems may 
include, but are not limited to, random 
moment sampling, case counts, or other 
quantifiable measures of employee effort. 

[a) Substitute systems which use sampling 
methods (primarily for Temporary Assistance 
to Needy'Families (TANF)., Medicaid, and 
other public assistance programs) must meet 
acceptable statistical sampling standards 
including: 

(i) The sampling universe must include all 
of the employees whose salaries and wages 
are to be allocated based on sample results 
except as provided in subsection 8.h.(6)(c) of 
this appendix; 

[ii) The entire time period involved must 
be covered by the sample; and 

[iii) The results must be statistically valid 
and applied to the period being sampled. 

(b) Allocating charges for the sampled 
employees' supervisors, clerical and support 
staffs, based on the results of the sampled 
employees, will be acceptable. 

(c) Less than full compliance with the 
statistical sampling standards noted in 
subsection 8.h.[6)(a) of this appendix may be 
accepted by the cognizant agency if it 
concludes that the amounts to be allocated to 
Federal awards will be minimal, or if it 
concludes that the system proposed by the 
governmental unit will result in lower costs 
to Federal awards than a system which 
complies with the standards. 

(7) Salaries and wages of employees used 
in meeting cost sharing or matching 
requirements of Federal awards must be 
supported in the same manner as those 

claimed as allowable costs under Federal 
awards. 

i. Donated services. 
(1) Donated or volunteer services may be 

furnished to a governmental unit by 
professional and technical personnel, 
consultants, and other skilled and unskilled 
labor. The value of these services is not 
reimbursable either as a direct or indirect 
cost. However, the value of donated services 
may be used to meet cost sharing or matching 
requirements in accordance with the 
provisions of the Common Rule. 

(2) The value of donated services utilized 
in the performance of a direct cost activity 
shall, when material in amount, be 
considered in the determination of the 
governmental unit's indirect costs or rate(s) 
and, accordingly, shall be allocated a 
proportionate share of applicable indirect 
costs. 

(3) To the extent feasible, donated services 
vvi..11 be supported by the same methods used 
by the governmental unit to support the 
allocability of regular personnel services. 

9. Contingency provisions. Contributions to 
a contingency reserve or any similar 
provision made for events the occurrence of 
which cannot be foretold with certainty as to 
time, intensity, or vdth an assurance of their 
happening, are unallowable. The term 
"contingency reserve" excludes self­
insurance reserves (see section 22.c. of this 
appendix), pension plan reserves (see section 
8.e.), and post-retirement health and other 
benefit reserves (section 8.f.) computed using 
acceptable actuarial cost methods. 

10. Defense and prosecution of criminal 
and civil proceedings, and claims. 

a. The following costs are unallowable for 
contracts covered by 10 U.S.C. 2324(k), 
"Allowable costs under defense contracts." 

(1) Costs incurred in defense of any civil 
or criminal fraud proceeding or similar 
proceeding [including filing of false 
certification brought by the United States 
where the contractor is found liable or has 
pleaded nolo contendere to a charge of fraud 
or similar proceeding (including filing of a 
false certification). 

(2) Costs incurred by a contractor in 
connection with any criminal, civil or 
administrative proceedings commenced by 
the United States or a State to the extent 
provided in 10 U.S.C. 2324(k). 

b. Legal expenses required in the 
administration of Federal programs are 
allowable. Legal expenses for prosecution of 
claims against the Federal Government are 
unallowable. 

11. Depreciation and use allowances. 
a. Depreciation and use allowances are 

means of allocating the cost of fixed assets to 
periods benefiting from asset use. 
Compensation for the use of fixed assets on 
hand may be made through depreciation or 
use allowances. A combination of the two 
methods may not be used in connection with 
a single class of fixed assets (e.g., buildings, 
office equipment, computer equipment, etc.) 
except as provided for in subsection g. 
Except for enterprise funds and internal 
service funds that are included as part of a 
State/local cost allocation plan, classes of 
assets shall be determined on the same basis 
used for the government-vvide financial 
statements. 

b. The computation of depreciation or use 
allowances shall be based on the acquisition 
cost of the assets involved. Where actual cost 
records have not been maintained, a 
reasonable estimate of the original 
acquisition cost may be used. The value of 
an asset donated to the governmental unit by 
an unrelated third party shall be its fair 
market value at the time of donation. 
Governmental or quasi-governmental 
organizations located within the same State 
shall not be considered unrelated third 
parties for this purpos_e. 

c. The computation of depreciation or use 
allowances will exclude: 

[!) The cost of land; 
(2) Any portion of the cost of buildings and 

equipment borne by or donated by the 
Federal Government irrespective of where 
title was originally vested or where it 
presently resides; and 

(3) Any portion of the cost of buildings and 
equipment contributed by or for the 
governmental unit, or a related donor 
organization, in satisfaction of a matching 
requirement. 

d. Where the depreciation method is 
followed, the following general criteria 
apply: 

(1) The period of useful service (useful life) 
established in each case for usable capital 
assets must take into consideration such 
factors as type of construction, nature of the 
equipment used, historical usage patterns, 
technological developments, and the renewal 
and replacement policies of the governmental 
unit followed for the individual items or 
classes of assets involved. In the absence of 
clear evidence indicating that the expected 
consumption of the asset will be significantly 
greater in the early portions than in the later 
portions of its useful life, the straight line 
method of depreciation shall be used. 

(2) Depreciation methods once used shall 
not be changed unless approved by the 
Federal cognizant or awarding agency. When 
the depreciation method is introduced for 
application to an asset previously subject to 
a use allowance, the annual depreciation 
charge thereon may not exceed the amount 
that would have resulted had the 
depreciation method been in effect from the 
date of acquisition of the asset. The 
combination of use allowances and 
depreciation applicable to the asset shall not 
exceed the total acquisition cost of the asset 
or fair market value at time of donation. 

e. When the depreciation method is used 
for buildings, a building's shell may be 
segregated from the major component of the 
building (e.g., plumbing system, heating, and 
air conditioning system, etc.) and each major 
component depreciated over its estimated 
useful life, or the entire building (i.e., the 
shell and all components) may be treated as 
a single asset and depreciated over a single 
useful life. 

f. Where the use allowance method is 
followed, the following general criteria 
apply: 

(1) The use allowance for buildings and 
improvements [including land 
improvements, such as paved parking areas, 
fences, and sidewalks) will be computed at 
an annual rate not exceeding two percent of 
acquisition costs. 

84 



Federal Register/Vol. 70, No. 168/Wednesday, August 31, 2005/Rules and Regulations 51917 

(2) The use allowance for equipment will 
be computed at an annual rate not exceeding 
6% percent of acquisition cost. · 

(3) When the use allowance method is used 
for buildings, the entire building must be 
treated as a single asset; the building's 
components (e.g., plumbing system, heating 
and air condition, etc.) cannot be segregated 
from the building's shell. The two percent 
limitation, however, need not be applied to 
equipment which is merely attached or 
fastened to the building but not permanently 
fixed to it and which is used as furnishings 
or decorations or for specialized purposes 
(e.g., dentist chairs and dental treatment 
units, counters, laboratory benches bolted to 
the floor, dishwashers, modular furniture, 
carpeting, etc.). Such equipment will be 
considered as not being permanently fixed to 
the building ifit can be removed without the 
destruction of, or need for costly or extensive 
alterations or repairs, to the building or the 
equipment. Equipment that meets these 
criteria will be subject to the 6% percent 
equipment use allowance limitation. 

g. A reasonable use allowance may be 
negotiated for any assets that are considered 
to be fully depreciated, after taking into 
consideration the amount of depreciation 
previously charged to the government, the 
estimated useful life remaining at the time of 
negotiation, the effect of any increased 
maintenance charges, decreased efficiency 
due to age, and any other factors pertinent to 
the utilization of the asset for the purpose 
contemplated. 

h. Charges for use allowances or 
depreciation must be supported by adequate 
property records. Physical inventories must 
be taken at least once every two years (a 
statistical sampling approach is acceptable) 
to ensure that assets exist, and are in use. 
Gover=ental units will manage equipment 
in accordance with State laws and 
procedures. When the depreciation method is 
followed, depreciation records indicating the 
amount of depreciation taken each period 
must also be maintained. 

12. Donations ond contributions. 
a. Contributions or donations rendered. 

Contributions or donations, including cash, 
property, and services, made by the 
governmental unit, regardless of the 
recipient, are unallowable. 

b. Donated services received: 
(1) Donated or volunteer services may be 

furnished to a goverllIIlental unit by 
professional and technical personnel, 
consultants, and other skilled and unskilled 
labor. The value of these services is not 
reimbursable either as a direct or indirect 
cost. However, the value of donated services 
may be used to meet cost sharing or matching 
requirements in accordance with the Federal 
Grants Management Common Rule. 

(2) The value of donated services utilized 
in the performance of a direct cost activity 
shall, when material in amount, be 
considered in the determination of the 
governmental unit's indirect costs or rate(s) 
and, accordingly, shall be allocated a 
proportionate share of applicable indirect 
costs. 

(3) To the extent feasible, donated services 
will be supported by the same methods used 
by the governmental unit to support the 
allocability of regular personnel services. 

13. Employee morale, health, and welfare 
costs. 

a. The costs of employee information 
publications, health or first-aid clinics and/ 
or infirmaries, recreational activities, 
employee counseling services, and any other 
expenses incurred in accordance ·with the 
governmental unit's established practice or 
custom for the improvement of working 
conditions, employer-employee relations, 
employee morale, and employee performance 
are allowable. · 

b. Such costs ,vill be equitably apportioned 
to all activities of the governmental unit. 
Income generated from any of these activities 
will be offset against expenses. 

14. Entertainment. Costs of entertainment, 
including amusement, diversion, and social 
activities and any costs directly associated 
with such costs ( such as tickets to shows or 
sports events, meals, lodging, rentals, 
transportation, and gratuities) are 
unallowable. 

15. Equipment and other capital 
expenditures. 

a. For purposes of this subsection 15, the 
following definitions apply: 

(1) "Capital Expenditures" means 
expenditures for the acquisition cost of 
capital assets (equipment, buildings, land), or 
expenditures to make improvements to 
capital assets that materially increase their 
value or useful life. Acquisition cost means 
the cost of the asset including the cost to put 
it in place. Acquisition cost for equipment, 
for example, means the net invoice price of 
the equipment, including the cost of any 
modifications, attachments, accessories, or 
auxiliary apparatus necessary to make it 
usable for the purpose for which it is 
acquired. Ancillary charges, such as taxes, 
duty, protective in transit insurance, freight, 
and installation may be included in, or 
excluded from the acquisition cost in 
accordance ·with the governmental unit's 
regular accounting practices. 

(2) "Equipment" means an article of 
nonexpendable, tangible personal property 
having a useful life of more than one year 
and an acquisition cost which equals or 
exceeds the lesser of the capitalization level 
established by the governmental unit_ for 
financial statement purposes, or $5000. 

(3) "Special purpose equipment" means 
equipment which is used only for research, 
medical, scientific, or other technical 
activities. Examples of special purpose 
equipment include microscopes, x-ray 
machines, surgical instruments, and 
spectrometers. 

(4) "General purpose equipment" means 
equipment, which is not limited to research, 
medical, scientific or other technical 
activities. Examples include office equipment 
and furnishings, modular offices, telephone 
networks, information technology equipment 
and systems, air conditioning equipment, 
reproduction and printing equipment, and 
motor vehicles. 

b. The following rules of allowability shall 
apply to equipment and other capital 
expenditures: 

(1) Capital expenditures for general 
purpose equipment, buildings, and land are 
unallowable as direct charges, except where 
approved in advance by the awarding agency. 

(2) Capital expenditures for special 
purpose equipment are allowable as direct 
costs, provided that items with a unit cost of 
$5000 or more have the prior approval of the 
awarding agency. 

(3) Capital expenditures for improvements 
to land, buildings, or equipment which 
materially increase their value or useful life 
are unallowable as a direct cost except with 
the prior approval of the awarding agency. 

(4) When approved as a direct charge 
pursuant to section 15.b(l), (2), and (3)ofthis 
appendix, capital expenditureswill be 
charged in the period in which the 
expenditure is incurred, or as otherwise 
determined appropriate and negotiated with 
the awarding agency. In addition, Federal 
awarding agencies are authorized at their 
option to waive or delegate the prior 
approval requirement. 

(5) Equipment and other capital 
expenditures are unallowable as indirect 
costs. However, see section 11 of this 
appendix, Depreciation and use allowance, 
for rules on the allowability of use 
allowances or depreciation on buildings, 
capital improvements, and equipment. Also, 
see section 37 of this appendix, Rental costs, 
concerning the allowability of rental costs for 
land, buildings, and equipment. 

(6) The unamortized portion of any 
equipment ·written off as a result of a change 
in capitalization levels may be recovered by 
continuing to claim the otherwise allowable 
use allowances or depreciation on the 
equipment, or by amortizing the amount to 
be written off over a period of years 
negotiated with the cognizant agency. 

(7) When replacing equipment purchased 
in whole or in part with Federal funds, the 
governmental unit may use the equipment to 
be replaced as a trade-in or sell the property 
and use the proceeds to offset the cost of the 
replacement· property. 

16. Fines and penalties. Fines, penalties, 
damages, and other settlements resulting 
from violations (or alleged violations) of, or 
failure of the governmental unit to comply 
with, Federal, State, local, or Indian tribal 
laws and regulations are unallowable except 
when incurred as a result of compliance v.r:ith 
specific provisions of the Federal award or 
written instructions by the awarding agency 
authorizing in advance such payments. 

17. Fund raising and investment 
management costs. 

a. Costs of organized fund raising, 
including financial campaigns, solicitation of 
gifts and bequests, and similar expenses 
incurred to raise capital or obtain 
contributions are unallowable, regardless of 
the purpose for which the funds will be used. 

b. Costs of investment counsel and staff 
and similar expenses incurred to enhance 
income from investments are unallowable. 
However, such costs associated with 
investments covering pension, self-insurance, 
or other funds which include Federal 
participation allowed by this and other 
appendices of 2 CFR part 225 are allowable. 

c. Fund raising and investment activities 
shall be allocated an appropriate share of 
indirect costs under the conditions described 
in subsection C.3.b. of Appendix A to this 
part. 

18. Gains and losses on disposition of 
depreciable property and other capital assets 
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and substantial relocation of Federal 
programs. 

a. (1) Gains and losses on the sale, 
retirement, or other disposition of 
depreciable property shall be included in the 
year in which they occur as credits or charges 
to the asset cost grouping(s) in which the 
property was included. The amount of the 
gain or loss to be included as a credit or 
charge to the appropriate asset cost 
grouping(s) shall be the difference between 
the amount realized on the property and the 
undepreciated basis of the property. 

(2) Gains and losses on the disposition of 
depreciable property shall not be recognized 
as a separate credit or charge under the 
following conditions: 

(a) The gain or loss is processed through 
a depreciation account and is reflected in the 
depreciation allowable under sections 11 and 
15 of this appendix. 

(b) The property is given in exchange as 
part of the purchase price of a similar item 
and the gain or loss is taken into account in 
determining the depreciation cost basis of the 
new item. 

(c) A loss results from the failure to 
maintain permissible insurance, except as 
otherwise provided in subsection 22.d ofthis 
appendix. 

[d) Compensation for the use of the 
property was provided through use 
allowances in lieu of depreciation. 

b. Substantial relocation of Federal awards 
from a facility where the Federal Government 
participated in the financing to another 
facility prior to the expiration of the useful 
life of the financed facility requires Federal 
agency approval. The extent of the relocation, 
the amount of the Federal participation in the 
financing, and the depreciation charged to 
date may require negotiation of space charges 
for Federal awards. 

c. Gains or losses of any nature arising 
from the sale or exchange of property other 
than the property covered in subsection 18.a. 
of this appendix, e.g., land or included in the 
fair market value used in any adjustment 
resulting from a relocation of Federal awards 
covered in subsection b. shall be excluded in 
computing Federal award costs. 

19. General government expenses. 
a. The general costs of.government are 

unallowable (except as provided in section 
43 of this appendix, Travel costs). These 
include: 

[1) Salaries and expenses of the Office of 
the Governor of a State or the chief executive 
of a political subdivision or the chief 
executive of federally-recognized Indian 
tribal government; 

(2) Salaries and other expenses of a State 
legislature, tribal council, or similar local 
governmental body, such as a county 
supervisor, city council, school board, etc., 
whether incurred for purposes of legislation 
or executive direction; 

(3) Costs of the judiciary branch ofa 
government; 

( 4) Costs of prosecutorial activities unless 
treated as a direct cost to a specific program 
if authorized by program statute or regulation 
(however, this does not preclude the 
allowability of other legal activities of the 
Attorney General); and 

(5) Costs of other general types of 
government services normally provided to 

the general public, such as fire and police, 
unless provided for as a direct cost under a 
program statute or regulation. 

b. For federally-recognized Indian tribal 
governments and Councils Of Governments 
(COGs), the portion of salaries and expenses 
directly attributable to managing and 
operating Federal programs by the chief 
executive and his staff is allowable. 

20. Goods or services for personal use. 
Costs of goods or services for personal use of 
the governmental unit's employees are 
unallowable regardless of whether the cost is 
reported as taxable income to the employees. 

21. Idle facilities and idle capacity. 
As used in this section the following terms 

have the meanings set forth below: 
(1) "Facilities" means land and buildings 

or any portion thereof, equipment 
individually or collectively, or any other 
tangible capital asset, wherever located, and 
whether owned or leased by the 
governmental unit. 

(2) "Idle facilities" means completely 
unused facilities that are excess to the 
governmental unit's current needs. 

(3) "Idle capacity" means the unused 
capacity of partially used facilities. It is the 
difference between: that which a facility 
could achieve under 100 percent operating 
time on a one-shift basis less operating 
interruptions resulting from time lost for 
repairs, setups, unsatisfactory materials, and 
other normal delays; and the extent to which 
the facility was actually used to meet 
demands during the accounting period. A 
multi-shift basis should be used if it can be 
shown that this amount of usage would 
normally be expected for the type of facility 
involved. 

(4) "Cost of idle facilities or idle capacity" 
means costs such as maintenance, repair, 
housing, rent, and other related costs, e.g., 
insurance, interest, property taxes and 
depreciation or use allowances. 

b. The costs of idle facilities are 
unallowable except to the extent that: 

(1) They are necessary to meet fluctuations 
in workload; or 

[2) Although not necessary to meet 
fluctuations in workload, they were 
necessary when acquired and are now idle 
because of changes in program requirements, 
efforts to achieve more economical 
operations, reorganization, termination, or 
other causes which could not have been 
reasonably foreseen. Under the exception 
stated in this subsection, costs of idle 
facilities are allowable for a reasonable 
period oftime, ordinarily not to exceed one 
year, depending on the initiative taken to 
use, lease, or dispose of such facilities. 

c. The costs of idle capacity are normal 
costs of doing business and are a factor in the 
normal fluctuations of usage or indirect cost 
rates from period to period. Such costs are 
allowable, provided that the capacity is 
reasonably anticipated to be necessary or was 
originally reasonable and is not subject to 
reduction or elimination by use on other 
Federal awards, subletting, renting, or sale, in 
accordance v.rith sound business, economic, 
or security practices. Widespread idle 
capacity throughout an entire facility or 
among a group of assets having substantially 
the same function may be considered idle 
facilities. 

22. Insurance and indemnification. 
a. Costs of insurance required or approved 

and maintained, pursuant to the Federal 
award, are allowable. 

b. Costs of other insurance in connection 
with the general conduct of activities are 
allowable subject to the following 
limitations: 

(1) Types and extent and cost of coverage 
are in accordance with the governmental 
unit's policy and sound business practice. 

(2) Costs of insurance or of contributions 
to any reserve covering the risk of loss of, or 
damage to, Federal Government property are 
unallowable except to the extent that the 
awarding agency has specifically required or 
approved such costs. 

c. Actual losses which could have been 
covered by permissible insurance (through a 
self-insurance program or otherwise) are 
unallowable, unless expressly provided for in· 
the Federal award or as described below. 
However, the Federal Government will 
participate in actual losses of a self insurance 
fund that are in excess of reserves. Costs 
incurred because of losses not covered under 
nominal deductible insurance coverage 
provided in keeping with sound management 
practice, and minor losses not covered by 
insurance, such as spoilage, breakage, and 
disappearance of small hand tools, which 
occur in the ordinary course of operations, 
are allowable. 

d. Contributions to a reserve for certain 
self-insurance programs including workers 
compensation, unemployment compensation, 
and severance pay are allowable subject to 
the following provisions: 

(1) The type of coverage and the extent of 
coverage and the rates and premiums would 
have been allowed had insurance (including 
reinsurance) been purchased to cover the 
risks. However, provision for known or 
reasonably estimated self-insured liabilities, 
which do not become payable for more than 
one year after the provision is made, shall not 
exceed the discounted present value of the 
liability. The rate used for discounting the 
liability must be determined by giving 
consideration to such factors as the 
governmental unit's settlement rate for those 
liabilities and its investment rate of return. 

[2) Earnings or investment income on 
reserves must be credited to those reserves. 

(3) Contributions to reserves must be based 
on sound actuarial principles using historical 
experience and reasonable assumptions. 
Reserve levels must be analyzed and updated 
at least biennially for each major risk being 
insured and take into account any 
reinsurance, coinsurance, etc. Reserve levels 
related to employee-related coverages v.rill 
normally be limited to the value of claims 
submitted and adjudicated but not paid, 
submitted but not adjudicated, and incurred 
but not submitted. Reserve levels in excess of 
the amounts based on the above must be 
identified and justified in the cost allocation 
plan or indirect cost rate proposal. 

( 4) Accounting records, actuarial studies, 
and cost allocations ( or billings) must 
recognize any significant differences due to 
types of insured risk and losses generated by 
the various insured activities or agencies of 
the governmental unit. If individual 
departments or agencies of the governmental 
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unit experience significantly different levels 
of claims for a particular risk, those 
differences are to be recognized by the use of 
separate allocations or other techniques 
resulting in an equitable allocation. 

(5) Whenever funds are transferred from a 
self-insurance reserve to other accounts (e.g., 
general fund), refunds shall be made to the 
Federal Government for its share of funds 
transferred, including earned or imputed 
interest from the date of transfer. 

e. Actual claims paid to or on behalf of 
employees or former employees for workers' 
compensation, unemployment compensation, 
severance pay, and similar employee benefits 
(e.g., subsection 8.f, for post retirement 
health benefits). are allowable in the year of 
payment provided the governmental unit 
follows a consistent costing policy and they 
are allocated as a general administrative 
expense to all activities of the governmental 
unit. 

f. Insurance refunds shall be credited 
against insurance costs in the year the refund 
is received. 

g. Indemnification includes securing the 
governmental unit against liabilities to third 
persons and other losses not compensated by 
insurance or otherwise. The Federal 
Government is obligated to indemnify the 
governmental unit only to the extent 
expressly provided for in the Federal award, 
except as provided in subsection 22.d of this 
appendix. 

h. Costs of commercial insurance that 
protects against the costs of the contractor for 
correction of the contractor's D'Wn defects in 
materials or workmanship are unallowable. 

23. Interest. · 
a. Costs incurred for interest on borrowed 

capital or the use of a governmental unit's 
ovvn funds, however represented, are 
unallowable except as specifically provided 
in subsection b. or authorized by Federal 
legislation. 

b. Financing costs (including interest) paid 
or incurred which are associated with the 
otherwise allowable costs of building 
acquisition, construction, or fabrication, 
reconstruction or remodeling completed on 
or after October 1, 1980 is allowable subject 
to the conditions in section 23.b.(1) through 
(4) of this appendix. Financing costs 
(including interest) paid or incurred on or 
after September 1, 1995 for land or associated 
with otherwise allowable costs of equipment 
is allowable, subject to the conditions in 
section 23.b. (1) through (4) of this appendix. 

(1) The financing is provided (from other 
than tax or user fee sources) by a bona fide 
third party external to the governmental unit; 

(2) The assets are used in support of 
Federal awards; 

(3) Earnings on debt service reserve funds 
or interest earned on borrowed funds 
pending payment of the construction or 
acquisition costs are used to offset the 
current period's cost or the capitalized 
interest, as appropriate. Earnings subject to 
being reported to the Federal Internal 
Revenue Service under arbitrage 
requirements are excludable. 

(4) For debt arrangements over $1 million, 
unless the governmental unit makes an initial 
equity contribution to the asset purchase of 
25 percent or more, the governmental unit 

shall reduce claims for interest cost by an 
amount equal to imputed interest earnings on 
excess cash flow, which is to be calculated 
as follows. Annually, non-Federal entities 
shall prepare a cumulative (from the 
inception of the project) report of monthly 
cash flows that includes inflows and 
outflows, regardless of the funding source. 
Inflows consist of depreciation expense, 
amortization of capitalized construction 
interest, and annual interest cost. For cash 
flow calculations, the annual inflow figures 
shall be divided by the number of months in 
the year (i.e., usually 12) that the building is 
in service for monthly amounts. Outflows 
consist of initial equity contributions, debt 
principal payments (less the pro rata share 
attributable to the unallowable costs ofland) 
and interest payments. Where cumulative 
inflows exceed cumulative outflows, interest 
shall be calculated on the excess inflows for 
that period and be treated as a reduction to 
allowable interest cost. The rate of interest to 
be used to compute earnings on excess cash 
flows shall be the three-month Treasury bill 
dosing rate as of the last business day of that 
month. 

(5) Interest attributable to fully depreciated 
assets is .unallowable. 

24. Lobbying. 
a. General. The cost of certain influencing 

activities associated with obtaining grants, 
contracts, cooperative agreements, or loans is 
an unallowable cost. Lobbying with respect 
to certain grants, contracts, cooperative 
agreements, and loans shall be governed by 
the common rule, "New Restrictions on 
Lobbying" (see Section J.24 of Appendix A 
to 2 CFR part 220), including definitions, and 
the Office of Management and Budget 
"Government-wide Guidance for New 
Restrictions on Lobbying" and notices 
published at 54 FR 52306 (December 20, 
1989). 55 FR 24540 Uune 15, 1990), and 5i 
FR 1ii2 (January 15, 1992). respectively. 

b. Executive lobbying costs. Costs incurred 
in attempting to improperly influence either 
directly or indirectly, an employee or officer 
of the Executive Branch of the Federal 
Government to give consideration or to act 
regarding a sponsored agreement or a 
regulatory matter are unallowable. Improper 
influence means any influence that induces 
or tends to induce a Federal employee or 
officer to give consideration or to act 
regarding a federally-sponsored agreement or 
regulatory matter on any basis other than the 
merits of the matter. 

25. ·Maintenance, operations, and repairs. 
Unless prohibited by law, the cost of utilities, 
insurance, security, janitorial services, 
elevator service, upkeep of grounds, 
necessary maintenance, normal repairs and 
alterations, and the like are allowable to the 
extent that they: keep property (including 
Federal property, unless otherwise provided 
for) in an efficient operating condition, do 
not add to the permanent value of property 
or appreciably prolong its intended life, and 
are not otherwise included in rental or other 
charges for space. Costs which add to the 
permanent value of property or appreciably 
prolong its intended life shall be treated as 
capital expenditures (see sections 11 and 15 
oft.his appendix). 

26. Materials and supplies costs. 

a. Costs incurred for materials, supplies, 
and fabricated parts necessary to carry out a 
Federal award are allowable. 

b. Purchased materials and supplies shall 
be charged at their actual prices, net of 
applicable credits. Withdrawals from general 
stores or stockrooms should be charged at 
their actual net cost under any recognized 
method of pricing inventory withdrawals, 
consistently applied. Incoming transportation 
charges are a proper part of materials and 
supplies costs. 

c. Only materials and supplies actually 
used for the performance of a Federal award 
may be charged as direct costs. 

d. Where federally-donated or furnished 
materials are used in performing the Federal 
award, such materials will be used without 
charge. 

2i. Meetings and conferences. Costs of 
meetings and conferences, the primary 
purpose of which is the dissemination of 
technical information, are allowable. This 
includes costs of meals, transportation, rental 
of facilities, speakers' fees, and other items 
incidental to such meetings or conferences. 
But see section 14, Entertainment costs, of 
this appendix. 

28. Memberships, subscriptions, and 
professional activity costs. 

a. Costs of the governmental unit's 
memberships in business, technical, and 
professional organizations are allowable. 

b. Costs of the governmental unit's 
subscriptions to business, professional, and 
technical periodicals are allowable. 

c. Costs of membership in civic and 
community, social organizations are 
allowable as a direct cost with the approval 
of the Federal awarding agency. 

d. Costs of membership in organizations 
substantially engaged in lobbying are 
unallowable. 

29. Patent costs. 
a. The following costs relating to patent 

and copyright matters are allowable: cost of 
preparing disclosures, reports, and other 
documents required by the Federal award 
and of searching the art to the extent 
necessary to make such disclosures; cost of 
preparing documents and any other patent 
costs in connection with the filing and 
prosecution of a United States patent 
application where title or royalty-free license 
is required by the Federal Government to be 
conveyed to the Federal Government; and 
general counseling services relating to patent 
and copyright matters, such as advice on 
patent and copyright laws, regulations, 
clauses, and employee agreements (but see 
sections 32, Professional service costs, and 
38, Royalties and other costs for use of 
patents and copyrights, of this appendix). 

b. The following costs related to patent and 
copyright matter are unallowable: Cost of 
preparing disclosures, reports, and other 
documents and of searching the art to the 
extent necessary to make disclosures not 
required by the award; costs in connection 
with filing and prosecuting any foreign 
patent application; or any United States 
patent application, where the Federal award 
does not require conveying title or a royalty­
free license to the Federal Government (but 
see section 38, Royalties and other costs for 
use of patents and copyrights, of this 
appendix). 
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30. Plant and homeland security costs. 
Necessary and reasonable expenses incurred 
for routine and homeland security to protect 
facilities, personnel, and work products are 
allowable. Such costs include, but are not 
limited to, wages and uniforms of personnel 
engaged in security activities; equipment; 
barriers; contractual security services; 
consultants; etc. Capital expenditures for 
homeland and plant security purposes are 
subject to section 15, Equipment and other 
capital expenditures, of this appendix. 

31. Pre-award costs. Pre-award costs are 
those incurred prior to the effective date of 
the award directly pursuant to the 
negotiation and in anticipation of the award 
where such costs are necessary to comply 
with the proposed delivery schedule or 
period of performance. Such costs are 
allowable only to the extent that they would 
have been allowable if incurred after the date 
of the award and only with the ·written 
approval of the awarding agency. 

32. Professional service costs. 
a. Costs of professional and consultant 

services rendered by persons who are 
members of a particular profession or possess 
a special skill, and who are not.officers or 
employees of the governmental unit, are 
allowable, subject to subparagraphs band c 
when reasonable in relation to the services 
rendered and when not contingent upon 
recovery of the costs from the Federal 
Government. In addition, legal and related 
services are limited under section 10 of this 
appendix. 

b. In determining the allowability of costs 
in a particular case, no single factor or any 
special combination of factors is necessarily 
determinative. However, the following 
factors are relevant: 

(1) The nature and scope of the service 
rendered in relation to the service required. 

(2) The necessity of contracting for the 
service, considering the governmental unit's 
capability in the particular area. 

(3) The past pattern of such costs, 
particularly in the years prior to Federal 
awards. 

(4) The impact of Federal awards on the 
governmental unit's business (i.e., what new 
problems have arisen). 

(5) Whether the-proportion of Federal work 
to the governmental unit's total business is 
such as to influence the governmental unit in 
favor of incurring the cost, particularly where 
the services rendered are not of a continuing 
nature and have little relationship to work 
under Federal grants and contracts. 

(6) Whether the service can be performed 
more economically by direct employment 
rather than contracting. 

(7) The qualifications of the individual or 
concern rendering the service and the 
customary fees charged, especially on non­
Federal awards. 

(8) Adequacy of the contractual agreement 
for the service (e.g., description of the 
service, estimate of time required, rate of 
compensation, and termination provisions). 

c. In addition to the factors in 
subparagraph b, retainer fees to be allowable 
must be supported by available or rendered 
evidence of bona fide senrices available or 
rendered. 

33. Proposal costs. Costs of preparing 
proposals for potential Federal awards are 

allowable. Proposal costs should normally be 
treated as indirect costs and should be 
allocated to all activities of the governmental 
unit utilizing the cost allocation plan and 
indirect cost rate proposal. However, 
proposal costs may be ch,arged directly to 
Federal awards with the prior approval of the 
Federal awarding agency. 

34. Publication and printing costs. 
a. Publication costs include the costs of 

printing (including the processes of 
composition, plate-making, press work, 
binding, and the end products produced by 
such processes), distribution, promotion, 
mailing, and general handling. Publication 
costs also include page charges in 
professional publications. 

b. If these costs are not identifiable with a 
particular cost objective, they should be 
allocated as indirect costs to all benefiting 
activities of the governmental unit. 

c. Page charges for professional journal 
publications are allowable as a necessary part 
of research costs where: 

(1) The research papers report work 
supported by the Federal Government; and 

(2) The charges are levied impartially on 
all research papers published by the journal, 
whether or not by federally-sponsored 
authors. 

35. Rearrangement and alteration costs. 
Costs incurred for ordinary and normal 
rearrangement and alteration of facilities are 
allowable. Special arrangements and 
alterations costs incurred specifically for a 
Federal award are allowable with the prior 
approval of the Federal awarding agency. 

36. Reconversion costs. Costs incurred in 
the restoration or rehabilitation of the 
governmental unit's facilities to 
approximately the same condition existing 
immediately prior to commencement of 
Federal awards, less costs related to normal 
wear and tear, are allowable. 

37. Rental costs of buildings and 
equipment. 

a. Subject to the limitations described in 
subsections b. through d. of this section, 
rental costs are allowable to the extent that 
the rates are reasonable in light of such 
factors as: rental costs of comparable 
property, if any; market conditions in the 
area; alternatives available; and the type, life 
expectancy, condition, and value of the 
property leased. Rental arrangements should 
be reviewed periodically to determine if 
circumstances have changed and other 
options are available. 

b. Rental costs under "sale and lease back" 
arrangements are allowable only up to the 
amount that would be allowed had the 
governmental unit continued to own the 
property. This amount would include 
expenses such as depreciation or use 
allowance, maintenance, taxes, and 
insurance. 

c. Rental costs under "less-than-arm's­
length" leases are allowable only up to the 
amount (as explained in section 3 7 .b of this 
appendix) that would be allowed had title to 
the property vested in the governmental unit. 
For this purpose, a less-than-arm's-length 
lease is one under which one party to the 
lease agreement is able to control or 
substantially influence the actions of the 
other. Such leases include, but are not 

limited to those between divisions of a 
governmental unit; governmental units under 
common control through common officers, 
directors, or members; and a governmental 
unit and a director, trustee, officer, or key 
employee of the governmental unit or his 
immediate family, either directly or through 
corporations, trusts, or similar arrangements 
in which they hold a controlling interest. For 
example, a governmental unit may establish 
a separate corporation for the sole purpose of 
owning property and leasing it back to the 
governmental unit. 

d. Rental costs under leases which are 
required to be treated as capital leases under 
GAAP are allowable on1y up to the amount 
(as explained in subsection 37.b of this 
appendix) that would be allowed had the 
governmental unit purchased the property on 
the date the lease agreement was executed. 
The provisions of Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Statement 13, Accounting 
for Leases, shall be used to determine 
whether a lease is a capital lease. Interest 
costs related to capital leases are allowable to 
the extent they meet the criteria in section 23 
of this appendix. Unallowable costs include 
amounts paid for profit, management fees, 
and taxes that would not have been incurred 
had the governmental unit purchased the 
facility. 

38. Royalties and other costs for the use of 
patents. 

a. Royalties on a patent or copyright or 
amortization of the cost of acquiring by 
purchase a copyright, patent, or rights 
thereto, necessary for the proper performance 
of the award are allowable unless: 

(1) The Federal Government has a license 
or the right to free use of the patent or 
copyright. 

(2) The patent or copyright has been 
adjudicated to be invalid, or has been 
administratively determined to be invalid. 

(3) The patent or copyright is considered 
to be unenforceable. 

(4) The patent or copyright is expired. 
b. Special care should be exercised in 

determining reasonableness where the 
royalties may have been arrived at as a result 
ofless-than-arm's-length bargaining, e.g.: 

(1) Royalties paid to persons, including 
corporations, affiliated with the 
governmental unit. 

(2) Royalties paid to unaffiliated parties, 
including corporations, under an agreement 
entered into in contemplation that a Federal 
award would be made. 

(3) Royalties paid under an agreement 
entered into after an award is made to a 
governmental unit. 

c. In any case involving a patent or 
copyright formerly ovvned by the 
governmental unit, the amount of royalty 
allowed should not exceed the cost which 
would have been allowed had the 
governmental unit retained title thereto. 

39. Selling and marketing. Costs of selling 
and marketing any products or services of the 
governmental unit are unallowable (unless 
allowed under section 1. of this appendix as 
allowable public relations costs or under 
section 33. of this appendix as allowable 
proposal costs. 

40. Taxes. 
a. Taxes that a governmental unit is legally 

required to pay are allowable, except for self-
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assessed taxes that disproportionately affect 
Federal programs or changes in tax policies 
that disproportionately affect Federal 
programs. T~s provision is applicable to 
taxes paid during the governmental unit's 
first fiscal year that begins on or after January 
1, 1998, and applies thereafter. 

b. Gasoline taxes, motor vehicle fees, and 
other .taxes that are in effect user fees for 
benefits provided to the Federal Government 
are allowable. 

c. This provision does not restrict the 
authority of Federal agencies to identify taxes 
where Federal participation is inappropriate. 
Where the identification of the amount of 
unallowable taxes would require an 
inordinate amount of effort, the cognizant 
agency may accept a reasonable 
approximation thereof. 

41. Termination costs applicable to 
sponsored agreements. Termination of 
awards generally gives rise to the incurrence 
of costs, or the need for special treatment of 
costs, which would not have arisen had the 
Federal award not been terminated. Cost 
principles covering these items are set forth 
below. They are to be used in conjunction 
with the other provisions of this appendix in 
termination situations. 

a. The cost of items reasonably usable on 
the governmental unit's other work shall not 
be allowable unless the governmental unit 
submits evidence that it would not retain 
such items at cost without sustaining a loss. 
In deciding whether such items are 
reasonably usable on other work of the 
governmental unit, the awarding agency 
should consider the governmental unit's 
plans and orders for current and scheduled 
activity. Contemporaneous purchases of 
common items by the governmental unit 
shall be regarded as evidence that such items 
are reasonably usable on the governmental 
unit's other work. Any acceptance of 
common items as allocable to the terminated 
portion of the Federal award shall be limited 
to the extent that the quantities of such items 
on hand, in transit, and on order are in 
excess of the reasonable quantitative 
requirements of other work. 

b. If in a particular case, despite all 
reasonable efforts by the governmental unit, 
certain costs cannot be discontinued 
immediately after the effective date of 
termination, such costs are generally 
allowable within the limitations set forth in 
this and other appendices of 2 CFR part 225, 
except that any such costs continuing after 
termination due to the negligent or willful 
failure of the governmental unit to 
discontinue such costs shall be unal!owable. 

c. Loss of useful value of special tooling, 
machinery, and equipment is generally 
allowable if: 

(1) Such special tooling, special 
machinery, or equipment is not reasonably 
capable of use in the other work of the 
governmental unit, 

(2) The interest of the Federal Government 
is protected by transfer of title or by other 
means deemed appropriate by the awarding 
agency, and 

(3) The loss of useful value for any one 
terminated Federal award is limited to that 
portion of the acquisition cost which bears 
the same ratio to the total acquisition cost as 

the terminated portion of the Federal award 
bears to the entire terminated Federal award 
and other Federal awards for which the 
special tooling, machinery, or equipment was 
acquired. 

d. Rental costs under unexpired leases are 
generally allowable where clearly shown to 
have been reasonably necessary for the 
performance of the terminated Federal award 
less the residual value of such leases, if: 

(1) The amount of such rental claimed does 
not exceed the reasonable use value of the 
property leased for the period of the Federal 
award and such further period as may be 
reasonable, and 

(2) The governmental unit makes all 
reasonable efforts to terminate, assign, settle, 
or otherwise reduce the cost of such lease. 
There also may be included the cost of 
alterations of such leased property, provided 
such alterations were necessary for the 
performance of the Federal award, and of 
reasonable restoration required by the 
provisions of the lease. 

e. Settlement expenses including the 
following are generally allowable: 

(1) Accounting, legal, clerical, and similar 
costs reasonably necessary for: 

(a) The prf;)paration and presentation to the 
awarding agency of settlement claims arid 
supporting data with respect to the 
terminated portion of the Federal award, 
unless the termination is for default (see 
Subpart _.44 of the Grants Management 
Common Rule (see § 215.5) implementing 
0MB Circular A-102); and 

(b) The termination and settlement of 
subawards. 

(2) Reasonable costs for the storage, 
transportation, protection, and disposition of 
property provided by the Federal 
Government or acquired or produced for the 
Federal award, except when grantees or 
contractors are reimbursed for disposals at a 
predetermined amount in accordance with 
Subparts _.31 and _.32 of the Grants 
Management Common Rule [see§ 215.5) 
implementing 0MB Circular A-102. 

f. Claims under subawards, including the 
allocable portion of claims which are 
common to the Federal award, and to other 
work of the governmental unit are generally 
allowable. An appropriate share of the 
governmental unit's indirect expense may be 
allocated to the amount of settlements with 
subcontractors and/or subgrantees, provided 
that the amount allocated is otherwise 
consistent with the basic guidelines 
contained in Appendix A to this part. The 
indirect expense so allocated shall exclude 
the same and similar costs claimed directly 
or indirectly as settlement expenses. 

42. Training costs. The cost of training 
provided for employee development is 
allowable. 

43. Travel costs. 
a. General. Travel costs are the expenses 

for transportation, lodging, subsistence, and , 
related items incurred by employees who are 
in travel status on official business of the 
governmental unit. Such costs may be 
charged on an actual cost basis, on a per 
diem or mileage basis in lieu of actual costs 
incurred, or on a combination of the two, 
provided the method used is applied to an 
entire trip and not to selected days of the 

trip, and results in charges consistent with 
those normally allowed in like circumstances 
in the governmental unit's non-federally­
sponsored activities. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of section 19 of this appendix, 
General government expenses, travel costs of 
officials covered by that section are allowable 
with the prior approval of an awarding 
agency when they are specifically related to 
Federal awards. 

b. Lodging and subsistence. Costs incurred 
by employees and officers for travel, 
including costs of lodging, other subsistence, 
and incidental expenses, shall be considered 
reasonable and allowable only to the extent 
such costs do not exceed charges normally 
allowed by the governmental unit in its 
regular operations as the result of the 
governmental unit's written travel policy. In 
the absence of an acceptable, written 
governmental unit policy regarding travel 
costs, the rates and amounts established 
under subchapter I of Chapter 5 7, Title 5, 
United States Code ("Travel and Subsistence 
Expenses; Mileage Allowances"), or by the 
Administrator of General Services, or by the 
President (or his or her designee) pursuant to 
any provisions of such subchapter shall 
apply to travel under Federal awards (48 CFR 
31.205-46(a)). 

c. Commercial air travel. 
(ll Airfare costs in excess of the customary 

standard commercial airfare ( coach or 
equivalent), Federal Government contract 
airfare (where authorized and available), or 
the lowest commercial discount airfare are 
unallowable except when such 
accommodations would: 

(a) Require circuitous routing; 
(b) Require travel during unreasonable 

hours; 
(cl Excessively prolong travel; 
( d) Result in additional costs that would 

offset the transportation savings; or 
(el Offer accommodations not reasonably 

adequate for the traveler's medical needs. 
The governmental unit must justify and 
document these conditions on a case-by-case 
basis in order for the use of first-class airfare 
to be allowable in such cases. 

(2) Unless a pattern of avoidance is 
detected, the Federal Government will 
generally not question a governmental unit's 
determinations that customary standard 
airfare or other discount airfare is unavailable 
for specific trips if the governmental unit can 
demonstrate either of the following: 

(aa) That such airfare was not available in 
the specific case; or 

(b) That it is the governmental unit's 
overall practice to make routine use of such 
airfare. 

d. Air travel by other than commercial 
carrier. Costs of travel by governmental unit­
owned, -leased, or -chartered aircraft include 
the cost of lease, charter, operation 
(including personnel costs), maintenance, 
depreciation, insurance, and other related 
costs. The portion of such costs that exceeds 
the cost of allowable commercial air travel, 
as provided for in subsection 43.c. of this 
appendix, is unallowable. 

e. Foreign travel. Direct charges for foreign 
travel costs are allowable only when the 
travel has received prior approval of the 
awarding agency. Each separate foreign trip 
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must receive such approval. For purposes of 
this provision, "foreign travel" includes any 
travel outside Canada, Mexico, the United 
States, and any United States territories and 
possessions. However, the term "foreign 
travel" for a governmental unit located in a 
foreign country means travel outside that 
country. 

Appendix C to Part 225-State/Local­
Wide Central Service Cost Allocation 
Plans 
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Central Service Cost Allocation Plans 
A. General. 
1. Most governmental units provide certain 

services, such as motor pools, computer 
centers, purchasing, accounting, etc., to · 
operating agencies on a centralized basis. 
Since federally-supported awards are 
performed within the individual operating 
agencies, there needs to be a process whereby 
these central service costs can be identified 
and assigned to benefitted activities on a 
reasonable and consistent basis. The central 
service cost allocation plan provides that 
process. All costs and other data used to 
distribute the costs included in the plan 
should be supported by formal accounting 
and other records that will support the 
propriety of the costs assigned to Federal 
awards. 

2. Guidelines and illustrations of central 
service cost allocation plans are provided in 
a brochure published by the Department of 
Health and Human Services entitled "A 
Guide for State and Local Government 
Agencies: Cost Principles and Procedures for 
Establishing Cost Allocation Plans and 
Indirect Cost Rates for Grants and Contracts 
with the Federal Government." A copy of 
this brochure may be obtained from the 
Superintendent of Documents, U.S. 
Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 
20401. 

B. Definitions. 

1. "Billed central services" means central 
services that are billed to benefitted agencies 
and/or programs on an individual fee-for­
service or similar basis. Typical examples of 
billed central services include computer 
services, transportation services, insurance, 
and fringe benefits. 

2. "Allocated central services" means 
central services that benefit operating 
agencies but are not billed to the agencies on 
a fee-for-service or similar basis. These costs 
are allocated to benefitted agencies on some 
reasonable basis. Examples of such services 
might include general accounting, personnel 
administration, purchasing, etc. 

3. "Agency or operating agency" means an 
organizational unit or sub-division within a 
governmental unit that is responsible for the 
performance or administration of awards or 
activities of the governmental unit. 

C. Scope of the Central Service Cost 
Allocation Plans. The central service cost 
allocation plan will include all central 
service costs that will be claimed ( either as 
a billed or an allocated cost) under Federal 
awards and will be documented as described 
in section E. Costs of central services omitted 
from the plan will not be reimbursed. 

D. Submission Requirements. 
1. Each State will submit a plan to the 

Department of Health and Human Services 
for each year in which it claims central 
service costs under Federal awards. The plan 
should include a projection of the next year's 
allocated central service cost (based either on 
actual costs for the most recently completed 
year or the budget projection for the coming 
year), and a reconciliation of actual allocated 
central service costs to the estimated costs 
used for either the most recently completed 
year or the year immediately preceding the 
most recently completed year. 

2. Each local government that has been 
designated as a "major local government" by 
the Office of Management and Budget (0MB) 
is also required to submit a plan to its 
cognizant agency annually. 0MB periodically 
lists major local governments in the Federal 
Register. 

3. All other local governments claiming 
central service costs must develop a plan in 
accordance with the requirements described 
in this appendix and maintain the plan and 
related supporting documentation for audit. 
These local governments are not required to 
submit their plans for Federal approval 
unless they are specifically requested to do 
so by the cognizant agency. Where a local 
government only receives funds as a sub­
recipient, the primary recipient will be 
responsible for negotiating indirect cost rates 
and/or monitoring the sub-recipient's plan. 

4. All central service cost allocation plans 
will be prepared and, when required, 
submitted within six months prior to the 
beginning of each of the governmental unit's 
fiscal years in which it proposes to claim 
central service costs. Extensions may be 
granted by the cognizant agency on a case­
by-case basis. 

E. Documentation Requirements for 
Submitted Plans. The documentation 
requirements described in this section may 
be modified, expanded, or reduced by the 
cognizant agency on a case-by-case basis. For 
example, the requirements may be reduced 

for those central services which have little or 
no impact on Federal awards. Conversely, if 
a review of a plan indicates that certain 
additional information is needed, and will 
likely be needed in future years, it may be 
routinely requested in future plan 
submissions. Items marked with an asterisk 
(*) should be submitted only once; 
subsequent plans should merely indicate any 
changes since the last plan. 

1. General. All proposed plans must be 
accompanied by the following: An 
organization chart sufficiently detailed to 
show operations including the central service 
activities of the State/local government 
whether or not they are shown as benefiting 
from central service functions; a copy of the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (or 
a copy of the Executive Budget if budgeted 
costs are being proposed) to support the 
allowable costs of each central service 
activity included in the plan; and, a 
certification (see subsection 4.) that the plan 
was prepared in accordance with this and 
other appendices to this part, contains only 
allowable costs, and was prepared in a 
manner that treated similar costs consistently 
among the various Federal awards and 
between Federal and non-Federal awards/ 
activities. 

2. Allocated central services. For each 
allocated central service, the plan must also 
include the following: A brief description of 
the service*, ·an identification of the unit 
rendering the service and the operating 
agencies receiving the service, the items of 
expense included in the cost of the service, 
the· method used to distribute the cost of the 
s.ervice to benefitted agencies, and a 
summary schedule showing the allocation of 
each service to the specific benefitted 
agencies. If any self-insurance funds or fringe 
benefits costs are treated as allocated (rather 
than billed) central services, documentation 
discussed in subsections 3.b. and c. shall also 
be included. 

3. Billed services. 
a. General. The information described 

below shall be provided for all billed central 
services, including internal service funds, 
self-insurance funds, and fringe benefit 
funds. 

b. Internal service funds. 
(1) For each internal service fund or similar 

activity with an operating budget of $5 
million or more, the plan shall include: A 
brief description of each service; a balance 
sheet for each fund based on individual 
accounts contained in the governmental 
unit's accounting system; a revenue/expenses 
statement, with revenues broken out by 
source, e.g., regular billings, interest earned, 
etc.; a listing of all non-operating transfers (as 
defined by Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP)) into and out of the fund; 
a description of the procedures 
(methodology) used to charge the costs of 
each service to users, including how billing 
rates are determined; a schedule of current 
rates; and, a schedule comparing total 
revenues (including imputed revenues) 
generated by the service to the allowable 
costs of the service, as determined under this 
and other appendices of this part, with an 
explanation of how variances will be 
handled. 
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(2) Revenues shall consist of all revenues 
generated by the service, including unbilled 
and uncollected revenues. If some users w.ere 
not billed for the services (or were not billed 
at the full rate for that class of users), a 
schedule showing the full imputed revenues 
associated with these users shall be provided. 
Expenses shall be broken out by object cost 
categories (e.g., salaries, supplies, etc.). 

c. Self-insurance funds. For each self­
insurance fund, the plan shall include: The 
fund balance sheet; a statement of revenue 
and expenses including a summary of 
billings and claims paid by agency; a listing 
of all non-operating transfers into and out of 
the fund; the type(s) of risk(s) covered by the 
fund (e.g., automobile liability, workers' 
compensation, etc.); an explanation of how 
the level of fund contributions are 
determined, including a copy of the current 
actuarial report (with the actuarial 
assumptions used) if the contributions are 
determined on an actuarial basis; and, a 
description of the procedures used to charge 
or allocate fund contributions to benefitted 
activities. Reserve levels in excess of claims 
submitted and adjudicated but not paid, 
submitted but not adjudicated, and incurred 
but not submitted must be identified and 
explained. 

d. Fringe benefits. For fringe benefit costs, 
the plan shall include: A listing of fringe 
benefits provided to covered employees, and 
the overall annual cost of each type of 
benefit; current fringe benefit policies*; and 
procedures used to charge or allocate the 
costs of the benefits to benefitted activities. 
In addition, for pension and post-retirement 
health insurance plans, the following 
information shall be provided: the 
governmental unit's funding policies, e.g., 
legislative bills, trust agreements, or State­
mandated contribution rules, if different from 
actuarially determined rates; the pension 
plan's costs accrued for the year; the amount 
funded, and date(s) of funding; a copy of the 
current actuarial report (including the 
actuarial assumptions); the plan trustee's 
report; and, a schedule from the activity 
showing the value of the interest cost 
associated with late funding. 

4. Required certification. Each central 
service cost allocation plan will be 
accompanied by a certification in the 
following form: 

Certificate of Cost Allocation Plan 
This is to certify that I have reviewed the 

cost allocation plan submitted herewith and 
to the best ofmy knowledge and belief: 

(1) All costs included in this proposal 
[identify date) to establish cost allocations or 
billings for [identify period covered by plan) 
are allowable in accordance with the 
requirements of 2 CFR Part 225, Cost 
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal 
Governments (0MB Circular A-87), and the 
Federal award(s) to which they apply. 
Unallowable costs have been adjusted for in 
allocating costs as indicated in the cost 
allocation plan. · 

(2) All costs included in this proposal are 
properly allocable to Federal awards on the 
basis of a beneficial or causal relationship 
between the expenses incurred and the 
awards to which they are allocated in 

accordance with applicable requirements. 
Further, the same costs that have been treated 
as indirect costs have not been claimed as 
direct costs. Similar types of costs have been 
accounted for consistently. 

I declare that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 
Governmental Unit: 
Signature: 
Name of Official: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 

F. Negotiation and Approval of Central 
Service Plans. 

1. All proposed central servtce cost 
allocation plans that are required to be 
submitted will be reviewed, negotiated, and 
approved by the Federal cognizant agency on 
a timely basis. The cognizant agency will 
review the proposal within six months of 
receipt of the proposal and either negotiate/ 
approve the proposal or advise the 
governmental unit of the additional 
documentation needed to support/evaluate 
the proposed plan or the changes required to 
make the proposal acceptable. Once an 
agreement with the governmental unit has 
been reached, the agreement will be accepted 
and used by all Federal agencies, unless 
prohibited or limited by statute. Where a 
Federal funding agency has reason to believe 
that special operating factors affecting its 
awards necessitate special consideration, the 
funding agency will, prior to the time the 
plans are negotiated, notify the cognizant 
agency. 

2. The results of each negotiation shall be 
formalized in a written agreement between 
the cognizant agency and the governmental 
unit. This agreement will be subject to re· 
opening if the agreement is subsequently 
found to violate a statute or the information 
upon which the plan was negotiated is later 
found to be materially incomplete or 
inaccurate. The results of the negotiation 
shall be made available to all Federal 
agencies for their use. 

3. Negotiated cost allocation plans based 
on a proposal later found to have included 
costs that: Are unallowable as specified by 
law or regulation, as identified in Appendix 
B of this part, or by the terms and conditions 
of Federal awards, or are unallowable 
because they are clearly not allocable to 
Federal awards, shall be adjusted, or a refund 
shall be made at the option of the Federal 
cognizant agency. These adjustments or 
refunds are designed to correct the plans and 
do not constitute a reopening of the 
negotiation. 

G. Other Policies. 
1. Billed central service activities. Each 

billed central service activity must separately 
account for all revenues (including imputed 
revenues) generated by the service, expenses 
incurred to furnish the service, and profit/ 
loss. 

2. Working capital reserves. Internal 
service funds are dependent upon a 
reasonable level of working capital reserve to 
operate from one billing cycle to the next. 
Charges by an internal service activity to 
provide for the establishment and 
maintenance of a reasonable level of working 
ca pita! reserve, in addition to the full 

recovery of costs, are allowable. A working 
capital reserve as part ofretained earnings of 
up to 60 days cash expenses for normal 
operating purposes is considered reasonable. 
A working capital reserve exceeding 60 days 
may be approved by the cognizant Federal 
agency in exceptional cases. 

3. Carry-forward adjustments of allocated 
central service costs. Allocated central 
service costs are usually negotiated and 
approved for a future fiscal year on a "fixed 
with carry-forward" basis. Under this 
procedure, the fixed amounts for the future 
year covered by agreement are not subject to 
adjustment for that year. However, when the 
actual costs of the year involved become 
known, the differences between the fixed 
amounts previously approved and the actual 
costs will be carried forward and used as an 
adjustment to the fixed amounts established 
for a later year. This "carry-forward" 
procedure applies to ·all central services 
whose costs were fixed ·in the approved plan. 
However, a carry-forward adjustment is not 
permitted.! for a central service activity that 
was not included in the approved plan, or for 
unallowable costs that must be reimbursed 
immediately. 

4. Adjustments of billed central services. 
Billing rates used to charge Federal awards 
shall be based on the estimated costs of 
providing the services, including an estimate 
of the allocable central service costs. A 
comparison of the revenue generated by each 
billed service (including total revenues 
whether or not billed or collected) to the 
actual allowable costs of the service will be 
made at least annually, and an adjustment 
will be made for the difference between the 
revenue and the allowable costs. These 
adjustments will be made through one of the 
following adjustment methods: A cash refund 
to the Federal Government for the Federal 
share of the adjustment, credits to the 
amounts charged to the individual programs, 
adjustments to future billing rates, or 
adjustments to allocated central service costs. 
Adjustments to allocated central services will 
not be permitted where the total amount of 
the adjustment for a particular service 
(Federal share and non-Federal) share 
exceeds $500,000. 

5. Records retention. All central service 
cost allocation plans and related 
documentation used as a basis for claiming 
costs under Federal awards must be retained 
for audit in accordance with the records 
retention requirements contained in the 
Common Rule. 

6. Appeals. If a dispute arises in the 
negotiation of a plan between the cognizant 
agency and the governmental unit, the 
dispute shall be resolved in accordance with 
the appeals procedures of the cognizant 
agency. 

7. 0MB assistance. To the extent that 
problems are encountered among the Federal 
agencies and/or governmental units in 
connection with the negotiation and approval 
process, 0MB will lend assistance, as 
required, to resolve such problems in a 
timely manner. 
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Appendix D to Part 225-Public 
Assistance Cost Allocation Plans 
Table of Contents 
A. General 
B. Definitions 

1. State public assistance agency 
2. State public assistance agency costs 

C.Policy 
D. Submission, Documentation, and 

Approval of Public Assistance Cost 
Allocation Plans 

E. Review of!mplementation of Approved 
Plans 

F. Unallowable Costs 
A. General. Federally-financed programs 

administered by State public assistance 
agencies are funded predominately by the 
Department of Health and Human Services 
(HHS). In support of its stewardship 
requirements, HHS has published 
requirements for the development, 
documentation, submission, negotiation, and 
approval of public assistance cost allocation 
plans in Subpart E of 45 CFR part 95. All 
administrative costs (direct and indirect) are 
normally charged to Federal awards by 
implementing the public assistance cost 
allocation plan. This appendix extends these 
requirements to all Federal agencies whose 
programs are administered by a State public 
assistance agency. Major federally-financed 
programs typically administered by State 
public assistance agencies include: 
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 
(TANF), Medicaid, Food Stamps, Child 
Support Enforcement, Adoption Assistance 
and Foster Care, and Social Services Block 
Grant. 

B. Definitions. 
1. "State public assistance agency" means 

a State agency administering or supervising 
the administration of one or more public 
assistance programs operated by the State as 
identified in Subpart E of 45 CFR part 95. For 
the purpose of this appendix, these programs 
include all programs administered by the 
State public assistance agency. 

2. "State public assistance agency costs" 
means all costs incurred by, or allocable to, 
the State public assistance agency, except 
expenditures for financial assistance, medical 
vendor payments, food stamps, and 
payments for services and goods provided 
directly to program recipients. 

C. Policy. State public assistance agencies 
will develop, document and implement, and 
the Federal.Government will review, 
negotiate, and approve, public assistance cost 
allocation plans in accordance with Subpart 
E of 45 CFR part 95. The plan will include 
all programs administered by the State public 
assistance agency. Where a letter of approval 
or disapproval is transmitted to a State public 
assistance agency in accordance with Subpart 
E, the letter will apply to all Federal agencies 
and programs. The remaining sections of this 
appendix [except for the requirement for 
certification) summarize the provisions of 
Subpart E of 45 CFR part 95. 

D. Submission, Documentation, and 
Approval of Public Assistance Cost 
Allocation Plans. 

1. State public assistance agencies are 
required to promptly submit amendments to 
the cost allocation plan to HHS for review 
and approval. 

2. Under the coordination process outlined 
in subsection E, affected Federal agencies 
will review all new plans and plan 
amendments and provide comments, as 
appropriate, to HHS. The effective date of the 
plan or plan amendment will be the first day 
of the quarter following the submission of the 
plan or amendment, unless another date is 
specifically approved by HHS. HHS, as the 
cognizant agency acting on behalf of all 
affected Federal agencies, will, as necessary, 
conduct negotiations with the State public 
assistance agency and will inform the State 
agency of the action taken on the plan or plan 
amendment. · 

E. Review of Implementation of Approved 
Plans. 

1. Since public assistance cost allocation 
plans are of-a narrative nature, the review 
during the plan approval process consists of 
evaluating the appropriateness of the 
proposed groupings of costs (cost centers) 
and the related allocation bases. As such, the 
Federal Government needs some assurance 
that the cost allocation plan has been 
implemented as approved. This is 
accomplished by reviews by the 'funding 
agencies, single audits, or audits conducted 
by the cognizant audit agency. · 

2. Where inappropriate charges affecting 
more than one funding agency are identified, 
the cognizant HHS cost negotiation office 
will be advised and will take the lead in 
resolving the issue(s) as provided for in 
Subpart E of 45 CFR part 95. 

3. If a dispute arises in the negotiation of 
a plan or from a disallowance involving two 
or more funding agencies, the dispute shall 
be resolved in accordance with the appeals 
procedures set out in 45 CFR part 75. 
Disputes involving only one funding agency 
will be resolved in accordance with the 
funding agency's appeal process. 

4. To the extent that problems are 
encountered among the Federal agencies 
and/or governmental units in connection 
with the negotiation and approval process, 
the Office of Management and Budget will 
lend assistance, as required, to resolve such 
problems in a timely manner. 

F. Unallowable Costs. Claims developed 
under approved cost allocation plans will be 
based on allowable costs as identified in 2 
CFR part 225. Where unallowable costs have 
been claimed and reimbursed, they will be 
refunded to the program that reimbursed the 
unallowable cost using one of the following 
methods: a cash refund, offset to a 
subsequent claim, or credits to the amounts 
charged to individual awards. 

Appendix E to Part 225-State and 
Local Indirect Cost Rate Proposals 

Table of Contents 

A. General 
B. Definitions 

1. Indirect cost rate proposal 
2. Indirect cost rate 
3. Indirect cost pool 
4. Base 
5. Predetermined rate 
6. Fixed rate 
7. Provisional rate 
8. Final rate 
9. Base period 

C. Allocation oflndirect Costs and 
Determination of Indirect Cost Rates 

1. General 
2. Simplified method 
3. Multiple allocation base method 
4. Special indirect cost rates 

D. Submission and Documentation of 
Proposals 

1. Submission of indirect cost rate 
proposals 

2. Documentation of proposals 
3. Required certification 

E. Negotiation and Approval of Rates 
F. Other Policies 

1. Fringe benefit rates 
2. Billed services provided by the grantee 

agency 
3. Indirect cost allocations not using rates 
4.Appeals 
5. Collections of unallowable costs and 

erroneous payments 
6. 0MB assistance 

A. General. 
1. Indirect costs are those that have been 

incurred for common or joint purposes. 
These costs benefit more than one cost 
objective and cannot be readily identified 
with a particular final cost objective without 
effort disproportionate to the results 
achieved. After direct costs have been 
determined and assigned directly to Federal 
awards and other activities as appropriate, 
indirect costs are those remaining to be 
allocated to benefitted cost objectives. A cost 
may not be allocated to a Federal award as 
an indirect cost if any other cost incurred for 
the same purpose, in like circumstances, has 
been assigned to a Federal award as a direct 
cost. 

2. Indirect costs include the indirect costs 
originating in each department or agency of 
the governmental unit carrying out Federal 
awards and the costs of central governmental 
services distributed through the central 
service cost allocation plan (as described in 
Appendix C to this part) and not otherwise 
treated as direct costs. 

3. Indirect costs are normally charged to 
Federal awards by the use of an indirect cost 
rate. A separate indirect cost rate(s) is usually 
necessary for each department or agency of 
the governmental unit claiming indirect costs 
under Federal awards. Guidelines and 
illustrations of indirect cost proposals are 
provided in a brochure published by the 
Department of Health and Human Services 
entitled "A Guide for State and Local 
Government Agencies: Cost Principles and 
Procedures for Establishing Cost Allocation 
Plans and Indirect Cost Rates for Grants and 
Contracts with the Federal Government." A 
copy of this brochure may be obtained from 
the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. 
Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 
20401. 

4. Because of the diverse characteristics 
and accounting practices of governmental 
units, the types of costs which may be 
classified as indirect costs cannot be 
specified in all situations. However, typical 
examples of indirect costs may include 
certain State/local-wide central service costs, 
general administration of the grantee 
department or agency, accounting and 
personnel services performed within the 
grantee department or agency, depreciation 
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or use allowances on buildings and 
equipment, the costs of operating and 
maintaining facilities, etc. 

5. This appendix does not apply to State 
public assistance agencies. These agencies 
should refer instead to Appendix D to this. 
part. 

B. Definitions. 
1. "Indirect cost rate proposal" means the 

documentation prepared by a governmental 
unit or subdivision thereof to substantiate its 
request for the establishment of an indirect 
cost rate. 

2. "Indirect cost rate" is a device for 
determining in a reasonable manner the 
proportion of indirect costs each program 
should bear. It is the ratio (expressed as a 
percentage) of the indirect costs to a direct 
cost base. 

3. "Indirect cost pool" is the accumulated 
costs that jointly benefit two or more 
programs or other cost objectives. 

4. "Base" means the accumulated direct 
costs (normally either total direct salaries and 
wages or total direct costs exclusive of any 
extraordinary or distorting expenditures) 
used to distribute indirect costs to individual 
Federal awards. The direct cost base selected 
should result in each award bearing a fair 
share of the indirect costs in reasonable 
relation to the benefits received from the 
costs. 

5. "Predetermined rate" means an indirect 
cost rate, applicable to a specified current or 
future period, usually the governmental 
unit's fiscal year. This rate is based on an 
estimate of the costs to be incurred during 
the period. Except under very unusual 
circumstances, a predetermined rate is not 
subject to adjustment. (Because of legal 
constraints, predetermined rates are not 
permitted for Federal contracts; they may, 
however, be used for grants or cooperative 
agreements.) Predetermined rates may not be 
used by governmental units that have not 
submitted and negotiated the rate with the 
cognizant agency. In view of the potential 
advantages offered by this procedure, 
negotiation of predetermined rates for 
indirect costs for a period of two to four years 
should be the norm in those situations where 
the cost experience and other pertinent facts 
available are deemed sufficient to enable the 
parties involved to reach an informed 
judgment as to the probable level of indirect 
costs during the ensuing accounting periods. 

6. "Fixed rate" means an indirect cost rate 
which has the same characteristics as a 
predetermined rate, except that the difference 
between the estimated costs and the actual, 
allowable costs of the period covered by the 
rate is carried forward as an adjustment to 
the rate computation of a subsequent period. 

7. "Provisional rate" means a temporary 
indirect cost rate applicable to a specified 
period which is used for funding, interim 
reimbursement, and reporting indirect costs 
on Federal awards pending the establishment 
of a "final" rate for that period. 

8. "Final rate" means an indirect cost rate 
applicable to a specified past period which 
is based on the actual allowable costs of the 
period. A final audited rate is not subject to 
adjustment. 

9. "Base period" for the allocation of 
indirect costs is the period in which such 

costs are incurred and accumulated for 
allocation to activities performed in that 
period. The base period normally should 
coincide with the governmental unit's fiscal 
year, but in any event, shall be so selected 
as to avoid inequities in the allocation of 
costs. 

C. Allocation of Indirect Costs and 
Determination of Indirect Cost Rates. 

1. General. 
a. Where a governmental unit's department 

or agency has only one major function, or 
where all its major functions benefit from the 
indirect costs to approximately the same 
degree, the allocation of indirect costs and 
the computation of an indirect cost rate may 
be accomplished through simplified 
allocation procedures as described in 
subsection 2 of this appendix. 

b. Where a governmental unit's department 
or agency has several major functions which 
benefit from its indirect costs in varying 
degrees, the allocation of indirect costs may 
require the accumulation of such costs into 
separate cost groupings which then are 
allocated individually to benefitted functions 
by means of a base which best measures the 
relative degree of benefit. The indirect costs 
allocated to each function are then 
distributed to individual awards and other 
activities included in that function by means 
of an indirect cost rate(s). 

c. Specific methods for allocating indirect 
costs and computing indirect cost rates along 
with the conditions under which each 
method should be used are described in 
subsections 2, 3 and 4 of this appendix. 

2. Simplified method. 
a. Where a grantee agency's major 

functions benefit from its indirect costs to 
approximately the same degree, the 
allocation of indirect costs may be 
accomplished by classifying the grantee 
agency's total costs for the base period as 
either direct or indirect, and dividing the 
total allowable indirect costs (net of 
applicable credits) by an equitable 
distribution base. The result of this process 
is an indirect cost rate which is used to 
distribute indirect costs to individual Federal 
awards. The rate should be expressed as the 
percentage which the total amount of 
allowable indirect costs bears to the base 
selected. This method should also be used 
where a governmental unit's department or 
agency has only one major function 
encompassing a number of individual 
projects or activities, and may be used where 
the level of Federal awards to that 
department or agency is relatively small. 

b. Both the direct costs and the indirect 
costs shall exclude capital expenditures and 
unallowable costs. However, unallowable 
costs must be included in the direct costs if 
they represent activities to which indirect 
costs are properly allocable. 

c. The distribution base may be total direct 
costs (excluding capital expenditures and 
other distorting items, such as pass-through 
funds, major subcontracts, etc.). direct 
salaries and wages, or another base which 
results in an equitable distribution. 

3. Multiple allocation base method. 
a. Where a grantee agency's indirect costs 

benefit its major functions in varying degrees, 
such costs shall be accumulated into separate 

cost groupings. Each grouping shall then be 
allocated individually to benefitted functions 
by means of a base which best measures the 
relative benefits. 

b. The cost groupings should be 
established so as to permit the allocation of 
each grouping on the basis of benefits 
provided to the major functions. Each 
grouping should constitute a pool of 
expenses that are of like character in terms 
of the functions they benefit and in terms of 
the allocation base which best measures the 
relative benefits provided to each function. 
The number of separate groupings should be 
held within practical limits, taking into 
consideration the materiality of the amounts 
involved and the degree of precision needed. 

c. Actual conditions must be taken into 
account in selecting the base to be used in 
allocating the expenses in each grouping to 
benefitted functions. When an allocation can 
be made by assignment of a cost grouping 
directly to the function benefitted, the 
allocation shall be made in that manner. 
When the expenses in a grouping are more 
general in nature, the allocation should be 
made through the use of a selected base 
which produces results that are equitable to 
both the Federal Government and the 
governmental unit. In general, any cost 
element or related factor associated with the 
governmental unit's activities is potentially 
adaptable for use as an allocation base 
provided that: it can readily be expressed in 
terms of dollars or other quantitative 
measures [total direct costs, direct salaries 
and wages, staff hours applied, square feet 
used, hours of usage, number of documents 
processed, population served, and the like), 
and it is common to the benefitted functions 
during the base period. 

d. Except where a special indirect cost 
rate(s) is required in accordance with 
subsection 4, the separate groupings of 
indirect costs allocated to each major 
function shall be aggregated and treated as a 
common pool for that function. The costs in 
the common pool shall then be distributed to 
individual Federal awards included in that 
function by use of a single indirect cost rate. 

e. The distribution base used in computing 
the indirect cost rate for each function may 
be total direct costs (excluding capital 
expenditures and other distorting items such 
as pass-through funds, major subcontracts, 
etc.), direct salaries and wages, or another 
base which results in an equitable 
distribution. An indirect cost rate should be 
developed for each separate indirect cost 
pool developed. The rate in each case should 
be stated as the percentage relationship 
between the particular indirect cost pool and 
the distribution base identified with that 
pool. 

4. Special indirect cost rates. 
a. In some instances, a single indirect cost 

rate for all activities of a grantee department 
or agency or for each major function of the 
agency may not be appropriate. It may not 
take into account those different factors 
which may substantially affect the indirect 
costs applicable to a particular program or 
group of programs. The factors may include 
the physical location of the work, the level 
of administrative support required, the 
nature of the facilities or other resources 
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employed, the organizational arrangements 
used, or any combination thereof. When a 
particular award is carried out in an 
environment which appears to generate a 
significantly different level of indirect costs, 
provisions should be made for a separate 
indirect cost pool applicable to that award. 
The separate indirect cost pool should be 
developed during the course of the regular 
allocation process, and the separate indirect 
cost rate resulting therefrom should be used, 
provided that: the rate differs significantly 
from the rate which would have been 
developed under subsections 2. and 3. of this 
appendix, and the award to which the rate 
would apply is material in amount. 

b. Although 2 CFR part 225 adopts the 
concept of the full allocation of indirect 
costs, there are some Federal statutes which 
restrict the reimbursement of certain indirect 
costs. Where such restrictions exist, it may be 
necessary to develop a special rate for the 
affected award. Where a "restricted rate" is 
required, the procedure for developing a non­
restricted rate will be used except for the 
additional step of the elimination from the 
indirect cost pool those costs for which the 
law prohibits reimbursement. 

D. Submission and Documentation of 
Proposals. 

1. Submission of indirect cost rate 
proposals. 

a. All departments or agencies of the 
governmental unit desiring to claim indirect 
costs under Federal awards must prepare an 
indirect cost rate proposal and related 
documentation to support those costs. The · 
proposal and related documentation must be 
retained for audit in accordance with the 
records retention requirements contained in 
the Common Rule. 

b. A governmental unit for which a 
cognizant agency assignment has been 
specifically designated must submit its 
indirect cost rate proposal to its cognizant 
agency. The Office of Management and 
Budget (0MB) will periodically publish lists 
of governmental units identifying the 
appropriate Federal cognizant agencies. The 
cognizant agency for all governmental units 
or agencies not identified by 0MB will be 
determined based on the Federal agency 
providing the largest amount-of Federal 
funds. In these cases, a governmental unit 
must develop an indirect cost proposal in 
accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 
225 and maintain the proposal and related 
supporting documentation for audit. These 
governmental units are not required to 
submit their proposals unless they are 
specifically requested to do so by the 
cognizant agency. Where a local government 
only receives funds as a sub-recipient, the 
primary recipient will be responsible for 
negotiating and/or monitoring the sub­
recipient's plan. 

c. Each Indian tribal government desiring 
reimbursement of indirect costs must submit 
its indirect cost proposal to the Department 
of the Interior (its cognizant Federal agency). 

d. Indirect cost proposals must be 
developed (and, when required, submitted) 
within six months after the close of the 
governmental unit's fiscal year, unless an 
exception is approved by the cognizant 
Federal agency. If the proposed central 

service cost allocation plan for the same 
period has not been approved by that time, 
the indirect cost proposal may be prepared 
including an amount for central services that 
is based on the latest federally-approved 
central service cost allocation plan. The 
difference between these central service 
amounts and the amounts ultimately 
approved will be compensated for by an 
adjustment in a subsequent period. 

2. Documentation of proposals. The 
following shall be included with each 
indirect cost proposal: 

a. The rates proposed, including subsidiary 
work sheets and other relevant data, cross 
referenced and reconciled to the financial 
data noted in subsection b of this appendix. 
Allocated central service costs will be 
supported by the summary table included in 
the approved central service cost allocation 
plan. This summary table is not required to 
be submitted with the indirect cost proposal 
if the central service cost allocation plan for 
the same fiscal year has been approved by the 
cognizant agency and is available to the 
funding agency. 

b. A copy of the financial data (financial 
statements, comprehensive annual financial 
report, executive budgets, accounting reports, 
etc.) upon which the rate is based. 
Adjustments resulting from the use of 
unaudited data will be recognized, where 
appropriate, by the Federal cognizant agency 
in a subsequent proposal. 

c. The approximate amount of direct base 
costs incurred under Federal awards. These 
costs should be broken out between salaries 
and wages and other direct costs. 

d. A chart showing the organizational 
structure of the agency during the period for 
which the proposal applies, along with a 
functional statement(s) noting the duties and/ 
or responsibilities of all units that comprise 
the agency. (Once this is submitted, only 
revisions need be submitted with subsequent 
proposals.) 

3. Required certification. Each indirect cost 
rate proposal shall be accompanied by a 
certification in the following form: 

Certificate of Indirect Costs 
This is to certify that I have reviewed the 

indirect cost rate proposal submitted 
herewith and to the best ofmy knowledge 
and belief: 

(1) All costs included in this proposal 
[identify date] to establish billing or final 
indirect costs rates for [identify period 
covered by rate] are allowable in accordance 
with the requirements of the Federal award(s) 
to which they apply and 2 CFR part 225, Cost 
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal 
Governments (0MB Circular A-87). 
Unallowable costs have been adjusted for in 
allocating costs as indicated in the cost 
allocation plan. 

(2) All costs included in this proposal are 
properly allocable to Federal awards on the 
basis of a beneficial or causal relationship 
between the expenses incurred and the 
agreements to which they are allocated in 
accordance with applicable requirements. 
Further, the same costs that have been treated 
as indirect costs have not been claimed as 
direct costs. Similar types of costs have been 
accounted for consistently and the Federal 

Government will be notified of any 
accounting changes that would affect the 
predetermined rate. 

I declare that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 
Governmental Unit: 
Signature: 
N,ame of Official: 
Title: 
Date of Execution: 

E. Negotiation and Approval of Rates. 
1. Indirect cost rates will be reviewed, 

negotiated, and approved by the cognizant 
Federal agency on a timely basis. Once a rate 
has been agreed upon, it will be accepted and 
used by all Federal agencies unless 
prohibited or limited by statute. Where a 
Federal funding agency has reason to believe 
that special operating factors affecting its 
awards necessitate special indirect cost rates, 
the funding agency will, prior to the time the 
rates are negotiated, notify the cognizant 
Federal agency. 

2. The use of predetermined rates, if 
allowed, is encouraged where the cognizant 
agency has reasonable assurance based on 
past experience and reliable projection of the 
grantee agency's costs, that the rate is not 
likely to exceed a rate based on actual costs. 
Long-term agreements utilizing 
predetermined rates extending over two or 
more years are encouraged, where 
appropriate. 

3. The results of each negotiation shall be 
formalized in a written agreement between 
the cognizant agency and the governmental 
unit. This agreement will be subject to re­
opening if the agreement is subsequently 
found to violate a statute, or the information 
upon which the plan was negotiated is later 
found to be materially incomplete or 
inaccurate. The agreed upon rates shall be 
made available to all Federal agencies for 
their use. 

4. Refunds shall be made if proposals are 
later found to have included costs that are 
unallowable as specified by law or 
regulation, as identified in Appendix B to 
this part, or by the terms and conditions of 
Federal awards, or are unallowable because 
they are clearly not allocable to Federal 
awards. These adjustments or refunds will be 
made regardless of the type of rate negotiated 
(predetermined, final, fixed, or provisional). 

F. Other Policies. 
1. Fringe benefit rates. If overall fringe 

benefit rates are not approved for the 
governmental unit as part of the central 
service cost allocation plan, these rates will 
be reviewed, negotiated and approved for 
individual grantee agencies during the 
indirect cost negotiation process. In these 
cases, a proposed fringe benefit rate 
computation should accompany the indirect 
cost proposal. If fringe benefit rates are not 
used at the grantee agency level (i.e., the 
agency specifically identifies fringe benefit 
costs to individual employees), the 
governmental unit should so advise the 
cognizant agency. 

2. Billed services provided by the grantee 
agency. In some cases, governmental units 
provide and bill for services similar to those 
covered by central service cost allocation 
plans (e.g., computer centers). Where this 
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occurs, the governmental unit should be 
guided by the requirements in Appendix C to 
this part relating to the development of 
billing rates and documentation 
requirements, and should advise the 
cognizant agency of any billed services. 
Reviews of these types of services (including 
reviews of costing/billing methodology, 
profits or losses, etc.) will be made on a case­
by-case basis as vl'.arranted by the 
circumstances involved. 

3. Indirect cost allocations not using rates. 
In certain situations, a governmental unit, 
because of the nature of its awards, may be 
required to develop a cost allocation plan 
that distributes indirect (and, in some cases, 
direct) costs to the specific funding sources. 
In these cases, a narrative cost allocation 
methodology should be developed, 
documented, maintained for audit, or 

- submitted, as appropriate, to the cognizant 
agency for review, negotiation, and approval. 

4. Appeals. If a dispute arises in a 
negotiation of an indirect cost rate ( or other 
rate) between the-cognizant agency and the 
governmental unit, the dispute shall be 
resolved in accordance with the appeals 
procedures of the cognizant agency. 

5. Collection ofunallowable costs and 
erroneous payments. Costs.specifically 
identified as unallowable and charged to 
Federal awards either directly or indirectly 
will be refunded (including interest 
chargeable in accordance with applicable 
Federal agency regulations). 

6. 0MB assistance. To the extent that 
problems are encountered among the Federal 
agencies and/or governmental units in 
connection with the negotiation and approval 
process, 0MB will lend assistance, as 
required, to resolve such problems in a 
timely manner. 

[FR Doc. 05-16649 Filed 8-30-05; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 3110-01-P 

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND 
BUDGET 

2 CFR Part 230 

Cost Principles for Non-Profit 
Organizations (0MB Circular A-122) 

AGENCY: Office of Management and 
Budget. 
ACTION: Relocation of policy guidance to 
2 CPR chapter II. 

SUMMARY: The Office of Management 
and Budget (0MB) is relocating Circular 
A-122, "Cost Principles for Non-Profit 
Organizations," to Title 2 in the Code of 
Federal Regulations (CPR), subtitle A, 
chapter II, part 230. This relocation is 
part of our broader initiative to create 2 
CPR as a single location where the 
public can find both 0MB guidance for 
grants and agreements and the 
associated Federal agency: implementing 
regulations. The broader initiative 
provides a good foundation for 
streamlining and simplifying the policy 
framework for grants and agreements, 
one objective of 0MB and Federal 

agency efforts to implement the Federal 
Financial Assistance Management 
Improvement Act of 1999 (Pub. L. 106-
107). 
OATES: Part 230 is effective August 31, 
2005. This document republishes the 
existing 0MB Circular A-122, which 
already is in effect. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Gil 
Tran, Office of Federal Financial 
Management, Office of Management and 
Budget, telephone 202-395-3052 
(direct) or 202-395-3993 (main office) 
and e-mail: Hai_M._Tran@omb.eop.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On May 
10, 2004 [69 FR 25970], we revised the 
three 0MB circulars containing Federal 
cost principles. The purpose of those 
revisions was to simplify the cost 
principles by making the descriptions of 
similar cost items consistent across the 
circulars where possible, thereby 
reducing the possibility of 
misinterpretation. Those revisions, a 
result of 0MB and Federal agency 
efforts to implement Public Law 106-
107, were effective on June 9, 2004. 

In this document, we reiocate 0MB 
Circular A-122 to the CPR, in Title 2 
which was established on May 11, 2004 
[69 FR 26276] as a central location for 
0MB and Federal agency policies on 
grants and agreements. 

Our relocation of 0MB Circular A-
122 does not change the substance of 
the circular. Other than adjustments 
needed to conform to the formatting 
requirements of the CPR, this document 
relocates in 2 CPR the version of 0MB 
Circular A-122 as revised by the May 
10, 2004 notice. 

List of Subjects in 2 CFR Part 230 
Accounting, Grant programs, Grants 

administration, Non-profit 
organizations, Reporting and 
recordkeeping requirements. 

Dated: August 8, 2005. 
Joshua B. Bolten, 
Director. 

Authority and Issuance 

II For the reasons set forth above, the 
Office of Management and Budget 
amends 2 CPR Subtitle A, chapter II, by 
adding a part 230 as set forth below. 

PART 230-COST PRINCIPLES FOR 
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS (0MB 
CIRCULAR A-122) 

Sec. 
230.5 Purpose. 
230.10 Scope. 
230.15 Policy. 
230.20 Applicability. 
230.25 Definitions 
230.30 0MB responsibilities. 
23 0.35 Federal agency responsibilities. 
230.40 Effective date of changes. 

230.45 Relationship to previous issuance. 
230.50 Information Contact. 
Appendix A to Part 230-General Principles 
Appendix B to Part 230-Selected Items of 

Cost 
Appendix C to Part 230-Non-Profit 

Organizations Not Subject to This Part 

Authority: 31 U.S.C. 503; 31 U.S.C. 1111; 
41 U .S.C. 405; Reorganization Plan No. 2 of 
1970; E.O. 11541, 35 FR 10737, 3 CFR, 1966-
1970, p. 939 

§ 230.5 Purpose. 

This part establishes principles for 
determining costs of grants, contracts 
and other agreements with non-profit 
organizations. 

§ 230.1 0 Scope. 

(a) This part does not apply to 
colleges and universities which are 
covered by 2 CPR part 220 Cost 
Principles for Educational Institutions 
(0MB Circular A-21); State, local, and 
federally-recognized Indian tribal 
governments which are covered by 2 
CFR part 225 Cost Principles for State, 
Local, and Indian Tribal Governments 
(0MB Circular A-87); or hospitals. 

(b) The principles deal with the 
subject of cost determination, and make 
no attempt to identify the circumstances 
or dictate the extent of agency and non­
profit organization participation in the 
financing of a particular project. 
Provision for profit or other increment 
above cost is outside the scope of this 
part. 

§ 230.15 Policy. 

The principles are designed to 
provide that the Federal Government 
bear its fair share of costs except where 
restricted or prohibited by law. The 
principles do not attempt to prescribe 
the extent of cost sharing or matching 
on grants, contracts, or other 
agreements. However, such cost sharing 
or matching shall not be accomplished 
through arbitrary limitations on 
individual cost elements by Federal 
agencies. 

§230.20 Applicability. 

(a) These principles shall be used by 
all Federal agencies in determining the 
costs of work performed by non-profit 
organizations under grants, cooperative 
agreements, cost reimbursement 
contracts, and other contracts in which 
costs are used in pricing, 
administration, or settlement. All of 
these instruments are hereafter referred 
to as awards. The principles do not 
apply to awards under which an 
organization is not required to account 
to the Federal Government for actual 
costs incurred. 
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NRS 354.107 Regulations. 
1. The Committee on Local Government Finance may adopt such regulations as are necessary for the 

administration of this chapter. 
2. The Committee on Local Government Finance shall adopt regulations prescribing the format of the financial 

statement posted on the Internet website of a city or county pursuant to NRS 244.225, 268.030 and 354.210. 
3. Any regulations adopted by the Committee on Local Government Finance must be adopted in the manner 

prescribed for state agencies in chapter 233B ofNRS. 
(Added to NRS by 2001. 2317; A 2011. 3579) 
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NRS 354.613 Enterprise funds: Loan or transfer of money in or associated with fund; increase in amount of fee 
imposed for purpose of fund; compliance reports; remedy for violation; regulations; applicability; plan to eliminate 
certain transfers from fund. 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the governing body of a local government may, on or after July 1, 2011, 
loan or transfer money from an enterprise fund, money collected from fees imposed for the purpose for which an enterprise 
fund was created or any income or interest earned on money in an enterprise fund only if the loan or transfer is made: 

(a) In accordance with a medium-term obligation issued by the recipient in compliance with the provisions of chapter 
350 ofNRS, the loan or transfer is proposed to be made and the governing body approves the loan or transfer under a nonconsent 
item that is separately listed on the agenda for a regular meeting of the governing body, and: 

(1) The money is repaid in full to the enterprise fund within 5 years; or 
(2) If the recipient will be unable to repay the money in full to the enterprise fund within 5 years, the recipient notifies 

the Committee on Local Government Finance of: 
(I) The total amount of the loan or transfer; 
(II) The purpose of the loan or transfer; 
(Ill) The date of the loan or transfer; and 
(IV) The estimated date that the money will be repaid in full to the enterprise fund; 

(b) To pay the expenses related to the purpose for which the enterprise fund was created; 
( c) For a cost allocation for employees, equipment or other resources related to the purpose of the enterprise fund which is 

approved by the governing body under a nonconsent item that is separately listed on the agenda for a regular meeting of the 
governing body; or 

(d) Upon the dissolution of the enterprise fund. 
2. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the governing body of a local government may increase the amount of 

any fee imposed for the purpose for which an enterprise fund was created only if the governing body approves the increase 
under a nonconsent item that is separately listed on the agenda for a regular meeting of the governing body, and the governing 
body determines that: 

(a) The increase is not prohibited by law; 
(b) The increase is necessary for the continuation or expansion of the purpose for which the enterprise fund was created; 

and 
(c) All fees that are deposited in the enterprise fund are used solely for the purposes for which the fees are collected. 
3. Upon the adoption of an increase in any fee pursuant to subsection 2, the governing body shall, except as otherwise 

provided in this subsection, provide to the Department of Taxation an executed copy of the action increasing the fee. This 
requirement does not apply to the governing body of a federally regulated airport. 

4. The provisions of subsection 2 do not limit the authority of the governing body of a local government to increase the 
amount of any fee imposed upon a public utility in compliance with the provisions ofNRS 354.59881 to 354.59889, inclusive, 
for a right-of-way over any public area if the public utility is billed separately for that fee. As used in this subsection, "public 
utility" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 354.598817. 

5. This section must not be construed to: 
(a) Prohibit a local government from increasing a fee or using money in an enterprise fund to repay a loan lawfully made 

to the enterprise fund from another fund of the local government; or 
(b) Prohibit or impose any substantive or procedural limitations on any increase of a fee that is necessary to meet the 

requirements of an instrument that authorizes any bonds or other debt obligations which are secured by or payable from, in 
whole or in part, money in the enterprise fund or the revenues of the enterprise for which the enterprise fund was created. 

6. The Department of Taxation shall provide to the Committee on Local Government Finance a copy of each report 
submitted to the Department on or after July 1, 2011, by a county or city pursuant to :t\TRS 354.6015. The Committee shall: 

(a) Review each report to determine whether the governing body of the local government is in compliance with the 
provisions of this section; and 

(b) On or before January 15 of each odd-numbered year, submit a report of its findings to the Director of the Legislative 
Counsel Bureau for transmittal to the Legislature. 

7. A fee increase imposed in violation of this section must not be invalidated on the basis of that violation. The sole 
remedy for a violation of this section is the penalty provided in NRS 354.626. Any person who pays a fee for the enterprise for 
which the enterprise fund is created may file a complaint with the district attorney or Attorney General alleging a violation of 
this section for prosecution pursuant to NRS 354.626. 

8. For the purposes of paragraph (c) of subsection 1, the Committee on Local Government Finance shall adopt regulations 
setting forth the extent to which general, overhead, administrative and similar expenses of a local government of a type 
described in paragraph (c) of subsection 1 may be allocated to an enterprise fund. The regulations must require that: 

(a) Each cost alloc~tion makes an equitable distribution of all general, overhead, administrative and similar expenses of 
the local government among all activities of the local government, including the activities funded by the enterprise fund; and 

(b) Only the enterprise fund's equitable share of those expenses may be treated as expenses of the enterprise fund and 
allocated to it pursuant to paragraph (c) of subsection 1. 

9. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 10 and 11, if a local government has subsidized its general fund with 
money from an enterprise fund for the 5 fiscal years immediately preceding the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 201 I, the 
provisions of subsection- I do not apply to transfers from the enterprise fund to the general fund of the local government for the 
purpose of subsidizing the general fund if the local government: 
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(a) Does not increase the amount of the transfers to subsidize the general fund in any fiscal year beginning on or after July 
1, 2011, above the amount transferred in the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2011, except for loans and transfers that comply 
with the provisions of subsection 1; and 

(b) Does not, on or after July 1, 2011, increase any fees for any enterprise fund used to subsidize the general fund except 
for increases described in paragraph (b) of subsection 5. 

10. On and after July 1, 2021, the provisions of subsection 1 apply to transfers from an enterprise fund described in 
subsection 9 to the general fund of a local government for the purpose of subsidizing the general fund unless: 

(a) On or before July 1, 2018, the Committee on Local Government Finance has approved a plan adopted by the governing 
body of the local government to eliminate transfers from an enterprise fund to subsidize the general fund of the local government 
that are not made in compliance with subsection 1, which must include, without limitation, a plan to reduce, by at least 3.3 
percent each fiscal year during the term of the plan, the amount of the transfers from the enterprise fund to the general fund of 
the local government for the purpose of subsidizing the general fund; and 

(b) In accordance with the plan approved by the Committee on Local Government Finance pursuant to paragraph (a), for 
each fiscal year during the term of the plan, the local government reduces by at least 3.3 percent the amount of the transfers 
from the enterprise fund to the general fund of the local government for the purpose of subsidizing the general fund. 

11. Each plan approved by the Committee on Local Government Finance pursuant to subsection 10 is subject to annual 
review by the Committee. 

12. After the expiration of the term of a plan approved by the Committee on Local Government Finance pursuant to 
subsection 10, the provisions of subsection I apply to the local government that adopted the plan. 

13. The provisions of this section do not apply to an enterprise fund created by the governing body of a local government 
for the purpose of providing telecommunication services pursuant to the provisions ofNRS 710.010 to 710.159, inclusive. 

(Added to NRS by 2011. 1686; A 201 J. 1692; 2013. 2712; 2017. 1046, 1049; 2019. 1319) 
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NRS 354.624 Annual audit: Requirements; designation of auditor; scope and disposition; dissemination; prohibited 
provision in contract with auditor. 

1. Each local government shall provide for an annual audit of all of its financial statements. A local government may 
provide for more frequent audits as it deems necessary. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, each annual audit must 
be concluded and the report of the audit submitted to the governing body as provided in subsection 6 not later than 5 months 
after the close of the fiscal year for which the audit is conducted. An extension of this time may be granted by the Department 
of Taxation to any local government that submits an application for an extension to the Department. If the local government 
fails to provide for an audit in accordance with the provisions of this section, the Department of Taxation shall cause the audit 
to be made at the expense of the local government. All audits must be conducted by a certified public accountant or by a 
partnership or professional corporation that is registered pursuant to chapter 628 of NRS. 

2. The annual audit of a school district must: 
( a) Be concluded and the report submitted to the board of trustees as provided in subsection 6 not later than 4 months after 

the close of the fiscal year for which the audit is conducted. 
(b) If the school district has more than 150,000 pupils enrolled, include an audit of the expenditure by the school district 

of public money used: 
(1) To design, construct or purchase new buildings for schools or related facilities; 
(2) To enlarge, remodel or renovate existing buildings for schools or related facilities; and 
(3) To acquire sites for building schools or related facilities, or other real property for purposes related to schools. 

3. The governing body may, without requiring competitive bids, designate the auditor or firm annually. The auditor or 
firm must be designated, and notification of the auditor or firm designated must be sent to the Department of Taxation not later 
than 3 months before the close of the fiscal year for which the audit is to be made. 

4. Each annual audit must cover the business of the local government during the full fiscal year. It must be a financial 
audit conducted in accordance ·with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States, including findings on 
compliance with statutes and regulations and an expression of opinion on the financial statements. The Department of Taxation 
shall prescribe the form of the financial statements, and the chart of accounts must be as nearly as possible the same as the chart 
that is used in the preparation and publication of the annual budget. The report ofthe <).Udit must include: 

(a) A schedule of all fees imposed by the local government which were subject to the provisions of NRS 354.5989; 
(b) A comparison of the operations of the local government with the approved budget, including a statement from the 

auditor that indicates whether the governing body has taken action on the audit report for the prior year; 
(c) If the local government is subject to the provisions ofNRS 244.186, a report showing that the local government is in 

compliance with the provisions of paragraphs (a) and (b) of subsection 1 ofNRS 244.186; and 
(d) If the local government is subject to the provisions ofNRS 710.140 or710.l45, a report showing that the local 

government is in compliance with the provisions of those sections with regard to the facilities and property it maintains and the 
services it provides outside its territorial boundaries. 

5. Each local government shall provide to its auditor: 
(a) A statement indicating whether each of the following funds established by the local government is being used expressly 

for the purposes for which it was created, in the form required by NRS 354.6241: 
(1) An enterprise fund. 
(2) An internal service fund. 
(3) A fiduciary fund. 
(4) A self-insurance fund. 
(5) A fund whose balance is required by law to be: 

(I) Used only for a specific purpose other than the payment of compensation to a bargaining unit, as defined in NRS 
288.J 34; or 

(II) Carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year in any designated amount. 
(b) A list and description of any property conveyed to a nonprofit organization pursuant to NRS 244.287 or 268.058. 
(c) If the local government is subject to the provisions of NRS 244.186, a declaration indicating that the local government 

is in compliance with the provisions of paragraph (c) of subsection 1 ofNRS 244.186. 
(d) If the local government is subject to the provisions ofNRS 710.140 or 710.145, a declaration indicating that the local 

government is in compliance with the provisions of those sections with regard to the facilities and property it maintains and the 
services it provides outside its territorial boundaries. 

6. The opinion and findings of the auditor contained in the report of the audit must be presented at a meeting of the 
governing body held not more than 30 days after the report is submitted to it. Immediately thereafter, the entire report, together 
with the management letter required by generally accepted auditing standards in the United States or by regulations adopted 
pursuant to NRS 354.594, must be filed as a public record with: 

(a) The clerk or secretary of the governing body; 
(b) The county clerk; 
(c) The Department of Taxation; and 
(d) In the case of a school district, the Department of Education. 
7. After the report of the audit is filed by the local government, the report of the audit, including, without limitation, the 

opinion and findings of the auditor contained in the report of the audit, may be disseminated by or on behalf of the local 
government for which the report was prepared by inclusion, without limitation, in or on: 
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(a) An official statement or other document prepared in connection with the offering of bonds or other securities; 
(b) A filing made pursuant to the laws or regulations of this State; 
(c) A filing made pursuant to a rule or regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States; or 
(d) A website maintained by a local government on the Internet or its successor, 

..,. without the consent of the auditor who prepared the report of the audit. A provision of a contract entered into between an 
auditor and a local government that is contrary to the provisions of this subsection is against the public policy of this State and 
is void and unenforceable. 

8. If an auditor finds evidence of fraud or dishonesty in the financial statements of a local government, the auditor shall 
report such evidence to the appropriate level of management in the local government. 

9. The governing body shall act upon the recommendations of the report of the audit within 3 months after receipt of the 
report, unless prompter action is required concerning violations of law or regulation, by setting forth in its minutes its intention 
to adopt the recommendations, to adopt them with modifications or to reject them for reasons shown in the minutes. 

(Added to NRS by 1965. 735; A 1967. 939; 1969. 800; 1971. 1344; 1973. 184; 1975. 451, 1688, 1801; 1977. 547; 1981. 
313, 1768; 1987. 1043; 1989.620; 1995.1896, 1935; 1997.574, 1611, 1739; 1999.472,2945;2001. 1810;2003. 1231;2005. 
292, 1344) 

NRS 354.6241 Contents of statement provided by local government to auditor; expenditure of excess reserves in 
certain funds; restrictions on use of budgeted ending fund balance in certain circumstances. [Effective through June 
30, 2021.] 

1. The statement required by paragraph (a) of subsection 5 of NRS 354.624 must indicate for each fund set forth in that 
paragraph: 

(a) Whether the fund is being used in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. 
(b) Whether the fund is being administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures. 
( c) Whether the reserve in the fund is limited to an amount that is reasonable and necessary to carry out the purposes of 

the fund. 
(d) The sources of revenues available for the fund during the fiscal year, including transfers from any other funds. 
(e) The statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the fund. 
(f) The balance and retained earnings of the fund. 
2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3 and N"RS 354.59891 and 354.6 I 3, to the extent that the reserve in any 

fund set forth in paragraph (a) of subsection 5 of NRS 354.624 exceeds the amount that is reasonable and necessary to carry 
out the purposes for which the fund was created, the reserve may be expended by the local government pursuant to the 
provisions of chapter 288 of NRS. 

3. For any local government other than a school district, for the purposes of chapter 288 ofNRS, a budgeted ending fund 
balance of not more than 16. 67 percent of the total budgeted expenditures, less capital outlay, for a general fund: 

(a) Is not subject to negotiations with an employee organization; and 
(b) Must not be considered by a fact finder or arbitrator in determining the financial ability of the local government to pay 

compensation or monetary benefits. 
(Added toNRS by 1995. 1934; A2001. 387, 1812; 2011. 1690; 2015. 2967; 2019. 3608) 

NRS 354.6241 Contents of statement provided by local government to auditor; expenditure of excess reserves in 
certain funds; restrictions on use of budgeted ending fund balance in certain circumstances. [Effective July 1, 2021.] 

1. The statement required by paragraph (a) of subsection 5 ofNRS 354.624 must indicate for each fund set forth in that 
paragraph: 

(a) Whether the fund is being used in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. 
(b) Whether the fund is being administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures. 
(c) Whether the reserve in the fund is limited to an amount that is reasonable and necessary to carry out the purposes of 

the fund. 
(d) The sources ofrevenues available for the fund during the fiscal year, including transfers from any other funds. 
(e) The statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the fund. 
(f) The balance and retained earnings of the fund. 
2. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 3 and 4 and NRS 354.59891 and 354.613, to the extent that the reserve in 

any fund set forth in paragraph (a) of subsection 5 ofNRS 354.624 exceeds the amount that is reasonable and necessary to 
carry out the purposes for which the fund was created, the reserve may be expended by the local government pursuant to the 
provisions of chapter 288 of NRS. 

3. For any local government other than a school district, for the purposes of chapter 288 ofNRS, a budgeted ending fund 
balance of not more than 16.67 percent of the total budgeted expenditures, less capital outlay, for a general fund: 

(a) Is not subject to negotiations with an employee organization; and 
(b) Must not be considered by a fact finder or arbitrator in determining the financial ability of the local government to pay 

compensation or monetary benefits. 
4. For a school district, for the purposes of chapter 288 of NRS, a budgeted ending fund balance of nor more than 16.6 

percent of the total budgeted expenditures for a county school district fund: 
(a) Is not subject to negotiations with an employee organization; and 
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(b) Must not be considered by a fact finder or arbitrator in determining the financial ability of the local government to pay 
compensation or monetary benefits. 

(Added to NRS by 1995. 1934; A 2001. 387, l 812; 2011. !690; ?0J5. 2967; ?019. 3608, 4240, effective July 1, 2021) 

NRS 354.6245 Review of annual audits by Department of Taxation; referral of accountant who issued 
noncompliant audit to Nevada State Board of Accountancy; plan of correction of violations. 

I. The Department of Taxation shall review each annual audit to determine whether it complies with regulations adopted 
pursuant to NRS 354.594. Any independent auditor's report, whether upon financial position and results of operations or upon 
internal financial controls, which the Department believes may not comply with those regulations must be referred by the 
Department to the Nevada State Board of Accountancy for investigation and such action in respect to the issuing accountant as 
the Board may find appropriate in the circumstances. 

2. In its review of the annual audits submitted, the Department shall identify all violations of statute and regulation 
reported therein. Within 60 days after the delivery of the annual audit to the local government, the governing body shall advise 
the Department what action has been taken to prevent recurrence of each violation of law or regulation or to correct each 
continuing violation. The Department shall evaluate the local government's proposed plan of correction and, if the plan is 
satisfactory, shall so advise the governing body. If the plan is not satisfactory, the Department shall advise the governing body 
that it deems the plan inadequate and propose an alternative plan. Within 30 days thereafter the governing body shall report its 
assent to the Department's plan or request a hearing before the Nevada Tax Commission. This hearing must be held at the next 
meeting of the Commission, but the hearing must not be held more than 90 days after such a request is received. The 
determination of the Nevada Tax Commission is final. 

3. If the governing body fails to submit a proposed plan of correction pursuant to subsection 2, or the Executive Director 
of the Department of Taxation determines that the plan established is not being complied with, he or she must, through the 
Office of the Attorney General, seek a writ from a court of competent jurisdiction to compel compliance. 

(Added to NRS by 198 L 310; A 1983. ?52) 

NRS 354.625 Records relating to property and equipment; control of inventory. The governing body of every 
local government shall: 

1. Cause to be established and maintained adequate property and equipment records and, where appropriate, adequate 
inventory controls. Any local government created after July 1, 1975, shall establish such records and controls within 1 year 
after its creation unless the Department of Taxation grants an extension of time. 

2. Require that all such property, equipment and inventory records clearly indicate specific ownership. 
3. Designate, by entry in the minutes of the governing body, the officer, employee or officers or employees responsible 

for the maintenance of property and equipment records and, where appropriate, inventory records, and notify the Department 
of Taxation of such designation. 

(Added to NRS by 1967. 940; A 1975. 157, 1689) 

NRS 354.6256 Use of proceeds of certain obligations to pay operating expenses prohibited; exceptions. The 
proceeds from any obligation issued by a local government that has a term which is more than 1 year must not be used to pay 
operating expenses, except that: 

1. The proceeds of any obligation issued to construct or acquire a facility may be used to pay operating expenses for the 
period provided in subsection 7 of NRS 350.516. 

2. The proceeds of a medium-term obligation issued by a local government with respect to which the Nevada Tax 
Commission has determined that a severe financial emergency exists pursuant to NRS 354.685 may be used to pay operating 
expenses with the approval of the Executive Director of the Department of Taxation. 

(Added to NRS by 2001. 2318) 

NRS 354.626 Unlawful expenditure of money in excess of amount appropriated; penalties; exceptions. 
1. No governing body or member thereof, officer, office, department or agency may, during any fiscal year, expend or 

contract to expend any money or incur any liability, or enter into any contract which by its terms involves the expenditure of 
money, in excess of the amounts appropriated for that function, other than bond repayments, medium-term obligation 
repayments and any other Jong-term contract expressly authorized by law. Any officer or employee of a local government who 
willfully violates NRS 354.470 to 354.626, inclusive, is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof ceases to hold 
his or her office or employment. Prosecution for any violation of this section may be conducted by the Attorney General or, in 
the case of incorporated cities, school districts or special districts, by the district attorney. 

2. Without limiting the generality of the exceptions contained in subsection 1, the provisions of this section specifically 
do not apply to: 

(a) Purchase of coverage and professional services directly related to a program of insurance which require an audit at the 
end of the term thereof. 

(b) Long-term cooperative agreements as authorized by chapter 277 ofNRS. 
(c) Long-term contracts in connection with planning and zoning as authorized by NRS 278.010 to 278.630, inclusive. 
(d) Long-term contracts for the purchase of utility service such as, but not limited to, heat, light, sewerage, power, water 

and telephone service. 
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(e) Contracts between a local government and an employee covering professional services to be performed within 24 
months following the date of such contract or contracts entered into between local government employers and employee 
organizations. 

(f) Contracts between a local government and any person for the construction or completion of public works, money for 
which has been or will be provided by the proceeds of a sale of bonds, medium-term obligations or an installment-purchase 
agreement and that are entered into by the local government after: 

(l) Any election required for the approval of the bonds or installment-purchase agreement has been held; 
(2) Any approvals by any other governmental entity required to be obtained before the bonds, medium-term obligations 

or installment-purchase agreement can be issued have been obtained; and 
(3) The ordinance or resolution that specifies each of the terms of the bonds, medium-term obligations or installment­

purchase agreement, except those terms that are set forth in subsection 2 of:N"'RS 350.165, has been adopted. 
'=> Neither the fund balance of a governmental fund nor the equity balance in any proprietary fund may be used unless 
appropriated in a manner provided by law. 

(g) Contracts which are entered into by a local government and delivered to any person solely for the purpose of acquiring 
supplies, services and equipment necessarily ordered in the current fiscal year for use in an ensuing fiscal year and which, under 
the method of accounting adopted by the local government, will be charged against an appropriation of a subsequent fiscal 
year. Purchase orders evidencing such contracts are public records available for inspection by any person on demand. 

(h) Long-term contracts for the furnishing of television or FM radio broadcast translator signals as authorized by NRS 
?69.127. 

(i) The receipt and proper expenditure of money received pursuant to a grant awarded by an agency of the Federal 
Government. 

G) The incurrence of obligations beyond the current fiscal year under a lease or contract for installment purchase which 
contains a provision that the obligation incurred thereby is extinguished by the failure of the governing body to appropriate 
money for the ensuing fiscal year for the payment of the amounts then due. 

(k) The receipt by a local government of increased revenue that: 
(1) Was not anticipated in the preparation of the final budget of the local government; and 
(2) Is required by statute to be remitted to another governmental entity. 

(1) An agreement authorized pursuant to NRS 277 A.370. 
(Added to NRS by 1965. 736; A 1969. 801; 1971. 1016, 1345; 1973. 68, 1155; 1975. 40, 279,fil; 1981. 1769; 1985. 

648; 1987, 1720; 1995. 1908; 1997. 573; 1999. 833; 2001. 1812, 2324; 2003, 162,802; 2005. 579: 2009. 432,852; 2011. 
1690,2728;20]3.2715) 
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GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DISTRICT - ONE TEAM 

Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Adoption of Central Service Cost Allocation Plan 

Policy 18.1.0 

POLICY. The District will maintain practices in conformity with the Nevada 
Revised Statute Section 354.107 (Regulations) and 354.613(c) (Enterprise 
Funds Cost Allocation), including: 

0.1 Central Service Cost Allocation Plan for accumulating, 
allocating and developing billing rates on allowable costs of 
services provided by the District's General Fund to 
departments, divisions and Funds. 

0.2 This Policy and related Practice can only be modified by a 
non-consent agenda item during a regular meeting of the 
Board of Trustees. 

The District's adopted other Financial Policies (6.1.0) that should be used 
to frame major practice initiatives and be summarized in the budget 
document. This Policy is specific to the equitable distribution of general, 
overhead, administrative and similar costs incurred by the District's 
General Fund in the process of supporting the operation of the District 
funds. 

The underlying practice, along with any others that may be adopted for 
other financial purposes, will be reviewed during the budget process. The 
Finance and Accounting staff should review the practices to ensure 
continued relevance and to identify any gaps that should be addressed 
with new practices. The results of the review should be shared with the 
Board of Trustees during the review of the proposed budget. Each budget 
year, the current Central Service Cost Allocation Plan will be filed with the 
Nevada Department of Taxation as required. 

Practice categories that should be considered for development, 
adoption and regular review are as follows: 

0.1.1 Costs Allowed 
0.1.2 Allocation Method 
0.1.3 Billing rates for services provided 

Revised and Adopted May 27, 2020 
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-. INCUNE 
VILLAGE 

GENERAL iMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ONE DlST}UCT - ONE TEAM 

Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Central Service Cost Allocation Plan 

Practice 18.2.0 

RELEVANT POLICY: 18.1.0 Adoption of Central Service Cost 
Allocation Plan 

1.0 COSTS ALLOWED 

1.0.1 Costs will be determined in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and approved by the Board of 
Trustees as part of the annual budget process, including any 
budget augmentation. 

1.0.2 Costs incurred by a department, division or Fund specifically 
associated with their activities and operation will be Direct 
Costs to those departments, divisions or Funds. 

1.0.3 Costs incurred for a common or joint purpose, benefitting 
more than one objective, will be considered Indirect Costs. 
These Indirect Costs must be necessary and reasonable for 
proper and efficient performance and administration. 

1.0.4 Costs incurred may include, without limitation: 

1.0.4.1 
1.0.4.2 
1.0.4.3 
1.0.4.4 
1;0.4.5 
1.0.4.6 
1.0.4.7 
1.0.4.8 
1.0.4.9 
1.0.4.10 
1.0.4.11 
1.0.4.12 
1.0.4.13 

Legislative costs for the Board of Trustees 
Legal Costs 
General Administration 
Emergency Services 
Public Relations 
Property Management 
Grants Management 
Contract, Procurement and Accounts Payable 
Grounds and Building Maintenance 
Budgeting, Accounting, Payroll and Audit 
Human Resources and Risk Management 
Information Technology and Communications 
Warehouse and Storage 

Effective for the year ended June 30, 2012 upon 
acceptance by the Board of Trustees 
Adopted February 29, 2012 1 
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GENERAL IMPROVEMEN;r"DISTRICT 
ONE OlSTRICT - ON.E TE.AM 

Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Central Service Cost Allocation Plan 

Practice 18.2.0 

1.0.5 Applicable Credits 

1.0.5.1 Applicable Credits will reduce the total costs 
allowed, when the credit relates directly to a 
transaction included in total costs. 

1.0.6 Costs allowed should be deemed reasonable, ordinary and 
necessary for the operation of an Enterprise Fund. 

2.0 ALLOCATION METHOD 

2.0.1 The District's Proprietary Funds include both Enterprise and 
Internal Service Funds. The Internal Service Funds have and 
will continue to develop specific billing rates for services based 
on individual units of service to each department, division or 
Fund. Enterprise Funds will be billed an annual allocation of 
Indirect Costs Allowed, net of applicable credits, as evidenced 
by the adopted budget. The General Fund and Internal 
Service Funds be allocated a portion of these costs, but will 
not be billed, as it would only add a layer to recalculating their 
related rates and charges to the other funds. 

2.0.2 The proportion of the allocation will be based on budget data 
in the form of statistics or amounts. 

2.0.3 The basis of the allocation will be scheduled in support of 
current rates and be presented to the Board of Trustees in 
conjunction with establishing the Operating Budget for each 
fiscal year. 

2.0.4 The Allocation Method for each Cost will be appropriate in 
relation to the cost's objective or measurement. 

Effective for the year ended June 30, 2012 upon 
acceptance by the Board of Trustees 
Adopted February 29, 2012 2 
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GENERAL IMPROV£ MENT DISTRICT 
O NE D IST J<.JCT - ON E T E.AM 

Budgeting and Fiscal Management 
Central Service Cost Allocation Plan 

Practice 18.2.0 

3.0 BILLING RATES 

3.0.1 Monthly bi llings will be recorded and paid from the Enterprise 
Funds to the General Fund, based on a total as adopted with 
the District's Annual Operating Budget, including any Board 
approved amendments or budget augmentation. 

3.0.2 The June billing each year, may be adjusted such that the 
total charges to the Enterprise Funds, for the fisca l year 
ending that respective June, does not exceed the actual 
allowed incurred costs net of actual applicable credits . The 
District may bill less than the budgeted total fo r a fiscal year, 
but in no case can the total billing exceed the total approved 
with the adoption of the District Annual Operating Budget for 
that fiscal year, including any Board approved amendments or 
budget augmentation. 

3.0.3 Payment for billings will be considered completed by an entry 
in the general ledger for the District, through the Cash 
Clearing Fund, with appropriate amounts posted to the 
General Fund and the respective Enterprise Fund(s). 

Effective for the year ended June 30, 2012 upon 
acceptance by the Board of Trustees 
Adopted February 29 , 2012 3 
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Number 1 

Improper change in Accounting and Reporting from Business Activities (Enterprise) to 

Governmental Activities 

There could be no basis in changing the accounting and reporting of the Community Services and Beach 

Funds from Enterprise funds to Government funds. 

Historically, up until June 30, 2015, the activities of the recreational venues of the Community Service 

and Beach venues were accounted for and reported as Enterprise funds based on a bedrock of facts: 

1) Nevada Revised Statutes 354.517 defines an enterprise fund as a fund established to account for 

operations (1) which are financed and conducted in a manner similar to the operations of private 

business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is to have expenses (including 

depreciation) of providing goods or services on a continuing basis to the general public, financed or 

recovered primarily through charges to the users. 

2) Paragraph 67 of GASS #34 states: 

that an enterprise fund may be used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external 

users for good or services. 

Activities are required to be reported as enterprise funds if any one of the three criteria are met 

Two of the three conditions are met as follows: 

Laws and regulations require that the activity's cost of providing services, including 

capital costs (such as depreciation), be recovered with fees and charges, rather than 

with taxes or similar revenues. 

Note: NRS 318-197 

The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its 

cost, including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service) 

Note: Board Policy 6.1.0 

All of the above requirements for enterprise accounting are met by the facts from the citations above. 
Historically, IVGID reported 

Mr. Eick, Director of Finance for f IVGID in conjunction with the former GM Pinkerton and Legal Council 

Jason Guinasso chose to ignore the facts and created an aftemative set of facts. 

1) Decided the recreational venues were not co,nducted in a manner similar to a private business. Other 

than providing services for Parks, all remaining venues Golf, Ski, Facilities, Recreation Center and Tennis 
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are operated similar to a private business and most revenues are obtained from these business 

activities. 

2) Ignored that the primary sources of revenues from the activities were charges to users. Substantially 

ail revenues of both Community Services and Beach venues are charges to users (which include the 

Facility Fees). 

3) Decided that the Facility Fees collected pursuant to NRS 318-197 were no longer charges for services 

but somehow were a tax and subsequently considered an imposed non exchange transaction (which 

are defined as taxes, fines, penalties, Gift/donations, grants, entitlements, and promises to give). This is 

totally false. The Facility Fees are exchange transactions. In exchange for payment of the Facility Fee, 

parcel owners can obta in Resident Cards and Punch Cards which can be used to obtain lower user rates 

at the recreational venues. Approximately 22,000 Resident Cards and 11,000 Punch Cards are obtained 

annually by residents. These residents obtain the Cards because they obviously believe that an equal 

value or more value is received via lower user rates at recreations venue in exchange for the payment of 

the Facility Fees. 

4) Decided that the Districts pricing policies had changed yet Board Policy 6.1.0 adopted by the Board 

and effective on July 1, 2015 had not changed 

5) Created Note 19 - Subsequent Events in the CAFR for f jscal year ending June 30, 2014 

"Effective July 1, 2015, with its new fiscal and budget year, the District began utilizing Special Revenue, 

Capital Projects and Debt Service governmental fund accounting for the Community Services and the 

Beach Fund. , which have to date been accounted for as enterprise funds. The District has changed its 

approach to the pricing of services and in particular recognizes that the use of the facility fee to provide 

recourses for capital expenditures and debt service cannot be displayed in a readily understandable 

fashion for its constituents. " 

There is no evidence that the approach to the pricing of services has ever changed. A change in 

accounting and reporting is not guided by constituents not being able to understand how funds are 

displayed. 

At the December 16, 2015 JVGID Audited Committee meeting, Mr. Dan Carter of Eide Bailly provided 

answers to questions by members of the Audit Committee regarding the change in accounting. In 

response Mr. Carter stated: ''/ guess I'll caveat the discussion with the fact that you know again that's a 

management decision and a board approved decision. We can't be in anyway be seen as approving those 

functions because we have to keep our independence with management what goes on up here." 

In another statement fy?r_. Carter stated: It is unusual up here .when we use: the word fe_e. like the 

Community Services fee and the Beach fee because it's actually technically a tax. 

It is quite cle.ar that EideBai lly never provided an opinion on the accounting transition, however, it was 

stated by IVGID management that the auditors provided consent for the transition. In addition, IVGID 

management stated that the Department of Taxation had approved the transition. This was totally false. 
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The basis assumption that the Facility Fees was a tax rather than a charge for services created a 

misguided understanding of the actual revenues being collected from parcel owners .. 

A separate opinion by EdieBailly is required that the change in accounting and reporting for the 

Community Services and Beach venues from Business activities to Governmental activities was either 

appropriate or inappropriate, based on GASB #34 and NRS. 
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Number2 

Error in Capitalizing conditions assessments and temporary repair work on the Effluent Pipeline which 

must be expensed 

Statement of Net Position {CAFR page 21}, Statement of Activities (CAFR page 22) Statement of Net 

Position (CAFR page 30), Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (CAFR Page 

31) and Notes to Financial Statements (CAFR pages 34-56). Also Management Discussion and Analysis 

and Transmittal Letter will be affected. 

Since 2012, IVGID intended on replacing 6 miles of Effluent Pipeline in State Highway28 and increased 

customer utility rates to provide resources for the replacement. 

After a major spill from a leak in the effluent pipeline occurred in 2014, the Nevada Department of 

Environmental Protection ("NDEP") required IVGID to "provide a plan that shall immediately 

implemented to evaluate and repair or replace the export pipeline to protect Lake Tahoe and the Tahoe 

Basis from future unanticipated discharges" . IVGID immediately conducted a conditions assessment on 

the 6 miles of pipeline which had cumulated costs of approximately $1.4 million over a three year 

period. These costs were initially recorded as construction in progress then transferred to Capital Assets 

to be depreciated. These assessments were required by the NDEP mandate and should be expensed. 

Approximately $1.2 million was spent in 2017 and 2018 to repair only 1,080 linear feet of effluent 

pipeline which costs was recorded as construction in progress and then transferred to Capital assets in 

2019. Thes~ repairs were temporary in nature to satisfy NDEP mandates and should have been 

expensed as incurred. The District intends to relocate the existing effluent pipeline to the center of 

Highway 28 which will result in abandoning the existing pipeline within the next three years. The costs 

do not meet the requirements of Board practices or required minimum life of 10 years. According to 

Board Practice 2.9.0 - 1.2.4 any repair or refurbishment that will be capitalized, the outlay will 

substantia/Jy prolong the life on an existing fixed asset, rather than returning the asset to a functioning 

unit or making repairs of a routine nature. 

An additional $546,000 (21%) of charges from the Internal Services Engineering Department relating to 

the assessments and repairs was also transf~rred from Construction in Progress to Capital Assets. 

These charges must be expensed. 

By capitalizing these costs and depreciating the costs over an extended time period the financial 

statements of the Utility Fund are distorted and hides the actual expense impact of mandated 

assessments and temporary repairs. 

According to Note 1J Significant Accounting Policies (CAFR page 40) the capitalization depreciable life 

for infrastructure assets are between 10 and 50 years. As such these repairs costs must be expensed. 

These charge offs of approximately $3,100,000 will have a material impact on the Utility Fund 

Statement of Net Position (CAFR page 30), the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
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Position (CAFR page 31) and the Statement of Cash Flows (CAFR page 32). Also the Statement of Net 

Position for the entire District (CAFR page 21) will required restatement. 

In addition, Note 4 (CAFR page 46) and Management Discussion and Analysis (CAFR pages 15 & 19) will 
require corrections 
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Number 3 

Feasibility and Master Plan Studies should be reclassified from Construction in Progress to expenses of 

Special Revenue Funds and Utility Fund affecting Statement of Net Position - (CAFR page21), Statement of 

Activities (CAFR page 22), Statement of Revenues and Expenses {CAFR page 25}, Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses {CAFR pages 28 &29) Statement of Net Position (page 30} Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

(page 31}, Statement of Cash Flows (page 32), Notes to Financial Statements {CAFR page 46} 

Feasibility and Master Plan Studies 

Several consultants have provided studies on recreational venues which costs have been recorded as construction in 

progress. These studies are updates to master plans, recommendations for rehabilitation of existing facilities or 

potential new facilities. There was no construction in progress nor is there any assurance that any recommendations 

will be accomplished. 

The following is the list of stud ies that have been recorded as construction in progress. 

Governmental Funds 

Ski Area Master Plan Implementation - Phase 1 $67,302.73 Speculation - on short term ground lease 

Ski Area Master Plan Update & Summer Activities Assessment 156.029.78 Speculation - on short term ground lease 

Tennis Facility Study 40 142.24 Did not follow recommendations 

Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update 261,501.64 Speculation 

Incline Beach Facility Study 133,759.86 Speculation 

Enterprise Fu.nd 

Cost sharing with Tahoe Transportation District - Environmental 

Assessment Effluent Pipeline Co-Location in Bike Path 

$658,736.25 

$300,000.00 Speculation - Probably of abandonment 

These studies should be expensed and removed from construction in progress 
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Number4 

Improper recording of revenues described in Note 1T as a significant Accounting Policy called "Punch 

Cards Utilized" and in Note 18 as a Segment Information and failure to disclose the resulting cash 

interfund transfers in Note 7 and required payments to parcel owners that have no Beach access. 

This accounting scheme was initiated in fiscal year 2013 to increase noncash charges for services 

(revenues) in the Beach Fund (through 6/30/2014) and the Beach Special Revenue Fund (effective 

7/1/2016 ("BSRF") and subsequently offset 100 % of those revenues by a contra revenue charge in the 

Community Service Fund (through 6/30/2014) and the Community Services Special Revenue Fund 

(effective 7/1/2016 ("CSSRF"), resulting in a cash transfers of approximately $2,230,000 since 2013. In 

fiscal year 2019 $468,000 was transferred from the CSSRF to the BSRF. 

As a result for fiscal year 2019 revenue from charges for services of the BSRF have been overstated by 

43% and correspondingly revenues from charges for services of the CSSRF has been understated by 

3.7%. 

In addition, based on the May 22, 2019 board resolution 1871, a total of 455 parcel owners have been 

charged a facility fee which allows the use of only Community Services venues but their share of those 

facility fees have been transferred to the Beach venues in which they do not participate. These parcel 

owners represent 5.55% of all parcel owners and their share of the facility fee paid or $26,000 

($468,000 X 5.55%) has been transferred to the Beaches. Since 2013 $124,000 of revenues from parcel 

owners not participating in the Beach venues have been transferred to the Beach Fund. 

No revenues should have been recognized as the value of each punch card had been paid and recorded 

as revenues when the Recreation Facility Fee and Beach Fee was paid. No revenues were created by 

subsequently using a punch card to obtain a lower charge for services (user fees) at the recreational 

venues. This accounting scheme is a double booking of revenues with unrelated contra revenue offsets. 

At the December 16, 2015 IVGID Audit Committee meeting, Mr. Dan Carter, provided answers to the 

Committee members questions, which indicate he did not have an understanding-of what false 

accounting was transpiring and stated that IVGID had a policy for the accounting. There is no policy. 

According to GASB #34 paragraph 122 Segment Information in Financial Statement Notes should be 

used only for enterprise funds. The CCRS and BSRF are not enterprise funds. 

EideBailly must provide an opinion on the validity of the accounting and reporting complying with 

Nevada law, GAAP and GASB for "Punch Cards Utilized" transactions. 
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Number 5 

Unallowable transfer of Funds for Central Services Cost Allocations. (Note 1S) {CAFR page 42) 

Since July 1, 2015 certain unlawful transfers have been made from the Community Services Special 

Revenue Fund (CSSRF) and the Beach Special Revenue Fund (BSRF)to the General Fund based on 
provisions of NRS 354.613 subsection C and Board of Trustee Policy 18.1.0. Both the NRS and Board 

Policy only relate to EnterJJrise Funds. Both the CSSRF and the BSRF are governmental funds not 

enterprise Funds. 

After a September 23, 2019 letter from Clifford F. Dobler and Linda Newman, Incline Village citizens, 

expressing concern about the illegal transfers made based on the above NRS and Board Policy, the /VGID 

Director of Finance, Gerald Eick, indicated in a memorandum to the IVGID Audit Committee dated 

November 27, 2019 that the transfers were made based on "fol/owing State guidance to share defined 

costs in the Gel']eral Fund between operating governmental and enterprise funds." A subsequent public 

records request revealed that IVGID cannot produce the State Guidance. There is also no evidence that 

the Auditors opined. 

Since July 1, 2015 and including the budget for fiscal 2020, a staggering $3,874,900 has been transferred 

from the CSSRF and the BSRF to the General Fund under the guise of Central Services Cost Allocations. 

Several Basic Financial Statements will require restatement if the Central Services Cost Allocations were 

not allowed. 

A written opinion from EideBailly must be obtained. 
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Number 6 

Use of a false assertion to record Utility Fund deferred revenues (unearned) of $433,980 as current 

revenues in the Proprietary Funds - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position 

{CAFR page 31) causing an increase in Net Position on Proprietary Funds - Statement of Net Position 

{CAFR page 30. 

IVGID currently bills customers monthly in advance a minimum base rate for water and sewer service 

which will be delivered in the subsequent month. The billings are recorded as a receivab le but a portion 

of the billing has historically been deferred and recorded as unearned revenue because the base rate is 

billed in advance of the services being provided. 

In fiscal year 2019, Mr. Eick, Director of Finance, decided on his own, that the advanced billings of base 

water and sewer rate should be considered current revenues based on a fa lse assertion that base rates 

are a "non-exchange transaction" because the billing components are not tied to the receipt of any 

quantity of water and sewer services" (item #4 of Memorandum dated November 27, 2019 from Gerald 

W. Eick to the IVGID Audit Committee). 

The base rates for water and sewer services are charged to customers in EXCHANGE for providing a 

future service and could not be considered as a tax, a fine, or donations which are examples of NON 

EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS. Mr. Eick's narrative is NOT A LOGICAL EXPLAINAT!ON FOR NO LONGER 

DEFFERING BASE RATES BILLED IN ADVANCE 

Apparently during the course of the audit performed by Eide Bailly L.P. {Auditor) this change in 

accounting was discovered by the Auditor and considered the change to be a misstatement Rather 

than correct the misstatement, Mr. Eick and Lori Pommerenck, Controller, provided the following 

statement in the Management Representation Letter to Auditor dated November 18, 2019: 

"The effects of the uncorrected misstatement below aggregated by you during the current engagement 

is immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the applicable op inion units and to the financial 

statements as a whole : 

Revenues 

Net Position 

417,402 

417,402 

To pass on recording the prior year impact to revenue fo r nonexchange fees billed in advance 

It is quite apparent, the decision NOT to correct the misstatement was by IVGIO management and the 

Auditor may be seeking legal protection through reliance on Managements representatons. 

Also note the amounts used in the Memorandum to the Audit Committee and the Representation 

Letter to the Auditor do not agree and are different by $16,578. How is it possible that the 

Memorandum to the Audit Committee dated November 27, 2019 would have different amounts than 

the CAFR and Representation Letter delivered on November 18, 2019? 
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Materiality is not the issue as Utility Fund revenues have been overstated by only 3.4%. The 

false assertion created by Mr. EICK was delineated in the Memorandum to the Audit 

Committee involving E-ideBailly which stated:"However further discussions with the Auditors 

found a more compelling factor is that they are a non exchange transaction because the billing 

components are not tied to the receipt of any quantity of water or sewer services." 

Question for EideBailly-Are advanced billings for basic water and sewer services considered a non 

exchange transaction and if so why would that matter on not deferring advanced billing? 
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Number7 

Incorrect statements and failure to report all commitments in Note 19 - Commitments Affecting 

Future Periods (CAFR pages 54-55), and failure to report contractual arrangements as committed fund 

balance on the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds. 

• Capital Improvement Project Budget Carryover -

The following projects had committed Budgets outstanding but were not included 

Incline Park Facility Renovation - $1,174,741 affecting Comm unity Service 

Purchase of Vactor Truck-$416,564 affecting Utility Fund 

Incline Creek Park Restoration - Amount of the carryover should be $303,895 which is the unspent 

amount of two contracts. Only $214,000 was included in the project carryover thus understating the 

carry over amount by $89,895. 

- The District has committed to these contractual arrangements for capital improvement projects.­

Failure to report a roofing contract with Kodiak Roofing & Waterproofing dated 9/13/2017 for $77,535. 

Work on the contract did not start until September 2019. The contract amount was included as a Capital 

Improvement Project budget carryover. 

NOTE: The contracts reported in this section plus the contract above relating to governmental funds 

should be reported as a committed fund balance on the Balance Sheet (CAFR page 23} Total amount 

$1,685,966 

GASB Statement #54 paragraph 10 provides the requir.ements for Committed Fund Balance 

"Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action 

of the government's highest level of decis ion-making authority should be reported as committed fund 

balance" 

The specific purpose would be the future contract costs. There is no longer intent to be an 

"Assigned" fund balance as an obligation was created. 

The constraints imposed would be approval of the contracts by IVGID Board of Trustees 

(they being the highest level of decision-making authority) 

• Budgeting for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 

The General Fund 2019/2020 Budget provided for a TRANSFER of fund to the Community Services 

Special Revenue Fund for only $561,800 and DID NOT include a transfer of $145,000 in contingency. 

These transfers violate NRS 354.6117, as the funds were specified for the Mountain Golf Course 

Clubhouse Renovation . The $788,870 transfer exceeds the limitation imposed in NRS 354.6117 which 

is 10% of the total amount of the budgeted expenditures of the general fund. 
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The narrative fails to address the actual Fund name. 

According to the narrative a total of $4,037,091 of cJCCumulated resources in the Community Services 

Special Revenue Fund and $625,729 in the Beach Special Revenue fund will be used for capita) projects 

in direct violation of GASB Statement #54 paragraph 30 

As Stated: "Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service 
or capital projects". 

Note: Separate capital project and debt service fun·ds for the Community Services venues and the Beach 

venues were established by Resolution by the Board of Trustees effective July 1, 2015 and were 

discontinued as stated in the Letter of Transmittal (page 4) of the CA.FR. Disclosure in the Notes to the 

Financial Statements would be required. 

Edie Bailly must opine on apparent non compliance with GASB #54 
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Number 8 

Improper Classification of Revenues in the Statement of Activities 

for the year ended June 30, 2019 (CAFR page 22) 

A. The Statement of Activities li~ts $1,169,000 as Program Revenues -Charges for Services as received 

by the General Fund. These charges were generated by Central Services Cost Allocations (which may 

have been illegal transfers). 

These charges are not revenues but reduction of expenses as indicated in the Governmental Funds 

Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenses (CAFR - page 25) and the General Fund Statement of 

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (CAFR - page 27). 

B. The Statement of Activities also lists Facilities Fees of $6,756,410 as General revenues of 

Governmental activities. The Facility Fees are NOT General revenues but are fees charged to parcel 

owners for the specific use of making facilities available for all Community Services and Beach 

•recreational venues. These Facility Fees are not general revenues but are specific revenues for the two 

funds mentioned aove. 

Trye Facilities Fees are authorized to be collected by NRS 354.197 as fees (charges for services) for 

specific purposes. 

The Facility Fees must be listed as a Program Revenues under Charges for Services for the Community 

Services and the Beach and must be reclassified. 

C. The Internal Services fund has been named Fleet, Engineering, Bldgs. & Workman's Comp apparently 

to confuse the reader and should be corrected. 
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Number9 

Failure to report a grant for the Incline Park Ball Fields 

Failure to report a major grant of $1,409,201 from the Incline-Tahoe Parks and Recreation Vision 

Foundation, Inc. via a 'Memorandum of Understanding dated March 18, 2019, as a Grant Receivable and 

also a Deferred Revenue (possibly a current revenue) which effects the Statement of Net Position (CAFR 

page 21 and the Balance Sheet (CAFR page 23): GASS #33 (paragraph 19, 20, 21) clearly states that 

once all of four eligibility requirements are satisfied (there is no time limit) the grant commitment 

should be recorded as a receivable and as a revenues even thought expenditures have not occurred. 

The $1,298,341 construction contract for the Ball fields project was issued in May, 2019 and was 

disclosed as a contractual arrangement in Note 19, however, was NOT included the Capital 

Improvement Project Budget Carryover section of Note 19. 

Edie Bailly should provide an opinion on compliance with GASS #34 regarding accounting treatment for 

this grant. 
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Number 10 

Mountain Golf Course Clubhouse Fire Damage Short Term Rehabilitation 

Improper classification of temporary fire damage repairs as construction in progress rather than an 

operating expense 

Fire damage repairs of $150,751 were complete~ on the interior of the Mountain Golf Course 

Clubhouse during fiscal 2019 in order to operate the facility for the 2019 golf season and thereafter 

would be abandoned as a complete renovation of the exterior and interior of the facility would begin in 

September 2019. These repairs were recorded as construction in progress. On August 14, 2019, 

contracts, staff time and a contingency budget for $1,192,000 was approved by the Board of Trustees 

for a complete renovation of the facility. 

The fire damage repairs must be removed from Construction in Progress and charged off as an expense. 

There was never an intend to extend the life of these repairs past the 4 month golf season. 

There are several financial statements which wiH have to be restated together with Management 

Discussion and Analysis 
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Note 11 

Failure to disclose major leases with the U. S Department of Agriculture Forest Service and Parasol 

Foundation Inc. in Note 16 - Lease Obligations (CAFR page 53) 

IVGID has a Special Use Permit (effectively a lease) dated 7/17/2014 with the following basic terms: 

361 acres of National Forest Service Land is leased to IVGID which is 49% of the Diamond Peak 

Ski area 

Expires on 12/23/2023 

Permit is not renewable 

New permit is required. Sole discretion of Forest Service 

Land use fees are various percentages based on 49% of the adjusted gross income from sales of 

Alpine and Nordic lift tickets, passes and ski school operations. 

Monthly payments are required if previous year payments exceed $10,000 

Total payment in fiscal year 2019 is unknown. 

IVGID leases 2.35 acres of land which IVGID owns to the Parasol Foundation Inc. who constructed a 

31,500 square foot building with a grant from an outside donor. 

The lease was executed 1/12/2000 

The lease is for 30 years with 3 options for 10 years each 

The lease is for $1 per year 

Only charities/non profits can occupy the building 

Parasol must maintain a $1,325,000 replacement endowment account during term of the lease 

Parasol must keep the building substantially occupied during term of the lease 

THE LAND WAS APPRAISED FOR $1,000,000 ON JULY 7, 2017 
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Number 12 

False statement in Note 1P Significant Accounting Policies to Financial Statements relating to Fund 

Balance 

Note 1P (CAFR page 41) regarding information provided on Furid Balance which states: 

"An assigned fund ba/qnce can be specified by the District's General Manager" 

It is quite unclear what that statement actually means. A reader may conclude that the $14,036,495 

reported as an assigned fund balance for the Community Services and Beach Special Revenue Funds 

(CAFR page 23) may have been given to the General Manager to be used as that person sees fit. 

GASB # 54 paragraph 13 states there are three choices who would determine intent to have a Fund 

Balance Assigned 

a) the governing body itself 

b) a body (a budget or finance committee) 

or official to which the governing body has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used 

for specific purposes 

Tpere is no Board Policy or practice which would support the statement made in Note 1P and it should 

be removed. 
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Number 13 

Failure to report committed amounts of the fund balance for the Community Service Special 

Revenue Fund on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2019 (CAFR page 23} 

to reflect commitments for three construction contracts executed in fiscal year 2020. 

Three construction contracts for$ $1,608,341 as disclosed in Note 19 (CAFR page 55) were budgeted 

and executed in fiscal year 2019, however, construction was not started. As such, the fund balance of 

the Community Services Special Revenue Fund shoul.d reflect the commitment of the Fund Balance for 

these contracts. 

In add ition, a contract for $77,535 executed on 9/13/2017 for replacing the roof at the Mountain Goif 

Course Clubhouse was outstanding at June 30, 2019. Construction did not commence until September, 

2019. This contract should be also included in Note 19. 

GASB Statement #54 paragraph 10 provides the requirements for Committed Fund Balance 

"Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposedbyformal action 

of the government 's highest level of decision-making authority should be reported as committed fund 

balance " 

The specific purpose would be the future contract costs (there is no longer intent to be an 

"Assigned" balance as an obligation was created. 

The constraints imposed would be approval of the contracts by IVGID Board of Trustees 

(they being the highest level of decision-making authority) 

"Committed fund balance also should incorporate contractual obligations to the extent that existing 

resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 

requirements." 
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Number 14 

Improper reporting of Notes to Financial Statements 

The Notes to Financial Statements - Index (page 34) lists Note 1E as Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

yet Note 1E in the text (page 37) states: Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and Nevada 

Administrative Code. 

This error needs correction. 
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From: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 
Date: 

Hi Susan, 

Matthew Dent 
Herron . Susan 
Winquest. Indra S. ; Paul C. Navazio; Tim Ca ll icrate 
Fw: Audit Committee & Questions for Auditors 
Wednesday, July 29, 2020 8:57:54 AM 

Please share with the Audit Committee and CC me on the email. Thanks, Matthew 

From: Matthew Dent <matthew.ivgid@gmail.com> 

Sent: Wednesday, July 29, 2020 8:26 AM 

To: Matthew Dent 

Subject: Fwd: Audit Committee & Questions for Auditors 

Susan, 

Please forward the correspondence below to the Audit Committee and CC me. Thank you, 

Matthew 

L_. ___ _ 

Matthew Dent 
Incline Village GID Board of Trustees 
893 Southwood Blvd. Incline Village. NV 89451 
775.530.1345 I www.matthewdent.com 

---------- Forwarded message---------

From : Tiffany Williamson <tawilliamson@eidebailly.com> 

Date: Tue, Feb 25, 2020 at 4:17 PM 

Subject: RE: Audit Committee & Questions for Auditors 

To: Matthew Dent <matthew .ivgid@ gmail.com> 

Matthew, 

I am looking into what we discussed this morning and have a few preliminary thoughts : 

First, as to criteria (b}, I looked at NRS 318.197 (copied below) and I am not seeing how this 

requires that the activity's costs are fully recovered with fees and charges. It does state that 

fees can be set, but doesn't require a calculation that all costs are recovered. 

NRS 318.197 Rates, tolls and charges; liens; regulations governing connection and disconnection for 
facilities and services of district; collection of charges and penalties. 

1. The board may fix, and from time to time increase or decrease, electric energy, cemetery, swimming pool, 
other recreational facilities, television, FM radio, sewer, water, storm drainage, flood control, snow removal, 
lighting, garbage or refuse rates, tolls or charges other than special assessments, including, but not limited to, service 
charges and standby service charges, for services or facilities furnished by the district, charges for the availability of 
service, annexation charges, and minimum charges, and pledge the revenue for the payment of any indebtedness or 
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special obligations of the district. 
2. Upon compliance with subsection 9 and until paid, all rates, tolls or charges constitute a perpetual lien on 

and against the property served. A perpetual lien is prior and superior to all liens, claims and titles other than liens of 
general taxes and special assessments and is not subject to extinguishment by the sale of any property on account of 
nonpayment of any liens, claims and titles including the liens of general taxes and special assessments. A perpetual 
lien must be foreclosed in the same manner as provided by the laws of the State of Nevada for the foreclosure of 
mechanics' liens. Before any lien is foreclosed, the board shall hold a hearing thereon after providing notice thereof 
by publication and by registered or certified first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the last known owner at 
his or her iast known address according to the records of the district and the real property assessment roll in the 
county in which the property is located. 

3. The board shall prescribe and enforce regulations for the connection with and the disconnection from 
properties of the facilities of the district and the taking of its services. 

4. The board may provide for the collection of charges. Provisions may be made for, but are not limited to: 
(a) The granting of discounts for prompt payment of bills. 
(b) The requiring of deposits or the prepayment of charges in an amount not exceeding 1 year's charges from 

persons receiving service and using the facilities of the enterprise or from the owners of property on which or in 
connection with which services and facilities are to be used. In case of nonpayment of all or part of a bill, the 
deposits or prepaid charges must be applied only insofar as necessary to liquidate the cumulative amount of the 
charges plus penalties and cost of collection. 

( c) The requiring of a guaranty by the owner of property that the bills for service to the property or the 
occupants thereof will be paid. 

5. The board may provide for a basic penalty for nonpayment of the charges within the time and in the manner 
prescribed by it. The basic penalty must not be more than 10 percent of each month's charges for the first month 
delinquent. In addition to the basic penalty, the board may provide for a penalty of not exceeding 1.5 percent per 
month for nonpayment of the charges and basic penalty. The board may prescribe and enforce regulations that set 
forth the date on which a charge becomes delinquent. The board may provide for collection of the penalties provided 
for in this section. 

6. The board may provide that charges for any service must be collected together with and not separately from 
the charges for any other service rendered by it, and that all charges must be billed upon the same bill and collected 
as one item. 

7. The board may enter into a written contract with any person, firm or public or private corporation providing 
for the billing and collection by the person, firm or corporation of the charges for the service furnished by any 
enterprise. If all or any part of any bill rendered by the person, firm or corporation pursuant to a contract is not paid 
and if the person, firm or corporation renders any public utility service to the person billed, the person, firm or 
corporation may discontinue its utility service until the bill is paid, and the contract between the board and the 
person, firm or corporation may so provide. 

8. As a remedy established for the collection of due and unpaid deposits and charges and the penalties thereon 
an action may be brought in the name of the district in any court of competent jurisdiction against the person or 
persons who occupied the property when the service was rendered or the deposit became due or against any person 
guaranteeing payment of bills, or against any or all such persons, for the collection of the amount of the deposit or 
the collection of delinquent charges and all penalties thereon. 

9. A lien against the property served is not effective until a notice of the lien, separately prepared for each lot 
affected, is: 

(a) Mailed to the last known owner at his or her last known address according to the records of the district and 
the real property assessment roll of the county in which the property is located; 

(b) Delivered by the board to the office of the county recorder of the county within which the property subject 
to such lien is located; 

( c) Recorded by the county recorder in a book kept by the county recorder for the purpose of recording 
instruments encumbering land; and 

( d) Indexed in the real estate index as deeds and other conveyances are required by law to be indexed. 

Second, as to criteria (c), I looked at the policy you mentioned (copied below) and am not sure 

that this would meet the criteria that pricing policies are designed to recover the costs. It 

does state that there should be an adopted process for how fees and services are set and the 

extent to which they cover the costs of the service, but not that they do recover all costs. 

2.0 Revenue Understanding the revenue stream is essential to prudent planning. Most of 

these policies seek stability to avoid potential service disruptions caused by revenue shortfalls. 

2.1 Revenue Diversification. The District shall adopt a process that encourages a diversity of 

revenue sources in order to improve the ability to handle fluctuations in individual sources. 

2.2 Fees and Charges for Services. The District shall adopt process that identifies the 

manner in which fees and charges for services are set and the extent to which they cover the 
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cost of the service provided. 

Lastly, I am still researching this, but I believe that the facility fee charged is an imposed 

nonexchange transaction as the homeowner must pay it. I understand that the homeowner 

does receive a benefit for this fee, but it is an assessment imposed on the homeowner. In this 

case, this would not go toward fees and charges for services. 

Please let me know your thoughts on reading the NRS and the Board policy and I will continue 

my research as well. 

Thanks, 

Tiffany 

From: Tiffany Williamson 

Sent: Sunday, February 23, 2020 2:51 PM 

To: Matthew Dent <matthew.ivgid@gmail.com> 

Subject: RE: Audit Committee & Questions for Auditors 

Matthew, 

It was nice to speak with you as well. Please see my comments below regarding each of your 

questions. 

1. As I noted on the phone, the facility fee and punch cards are included in our audit of 

revenue each year, but we· do not have documentation that was provided to IVGID in 

2016. I would suggest the Board meeting with management to obtain an understanding 

of the accounting for the punch cards. We can also discuss this if we set up a meeting. 

2. In our audit of IVGID (and all of our audits), we considered internal control relevant to 

the District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements so that we 

could design audit procedures that are appropriate, but not to express an opinion on 

the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

What that means is that we gain an understanding of internal controls in areas that are 

significant to the financial statements. We then walkthrough certain controls in each area 

that we determine are key by interviewing those involved in the control and reviewing 

documentation of the control occurring. We do not currently test internal controls. We can 

also further discuss this if we set up a meeting. 

To obtain documentation of the District's internal processes and controls, this would need to 

be provided to you by management. 

3. As I noted on the phone, we obtained the memos the Board received from concerned 

citizens and discussed them with the audit committee and management. For purposes 

of our audit, we gained an understanding of the memos and concluded that 

management's treatment of the issues was reasonable. We did not provide any 
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response to the memos, however we can discuss further if we set up a meeting. 

4. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District determined that it was more appropriate 

to account for the Community Services and Beach Funds as governmental type funds 

rather than as enterprise funds, which is how they had been previously accounted for. 

Below is an excerpt from Section 1300 of the Codification of Governmental Accounting 

and Financial Reporting Standards (GASS). I have highlighted the first sentence that 

Enterprise funds may be used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to 

external users for goods or services. The next sentence describes when enterprise 

funds are required to be used. Management determined, and we concurred, that they 

did not meet the three criteria that would require the use of enterprise funds and 

therefore it was acceptable to set up governmental funds for the Community Services 

and Beach Funds. Below the Proprietary Funds section, I have also include excerpts 

regarding the three types of governmental funds that the Community Services and 

Beach Funds use for your reference. 

Proprietary Funds 
. I 09 Enter'Jrise unds may be used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to 
external users for 0 oods or services or fiduciary activities that have the characteristics in 
paragraph .116 of this section. Activities are required to be reported as enterprise funds if 
any one of the following criteria is met. Governments should apply each of these criteria in 

the context of the activity's principal revenue sources.4 

4 These criteria do not require insignificant activities of governments to be reported 
as enterprise funds. For example, state law may require a county 's small claims court 
to assess plaintiffs a fee to cover the cost of frivolous claims. However, taxes, not 
fees, are the principal revenue source of the county's cornt system, and the fees in 
question cover only the cost of frivolous small claims court cases. Jn this case, the 
county would not be required to remove its cornt system or the small claims comt 
activity from its general fund and repo1t it in an enterprise fund . Conversely, a state 
department of environmental protection regulation may require a water utility to 
recover the costs of operating its water plant, including debt service costs, through 
charges to its customers-the utility 's principal revenue source. Because these 
charges are the activity ' s principal revenue source and because the water utility is 
required to recover its costs, the utility should be reported as an enterprise fund. 
[GASBS 34, fn33) 

a. The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees 
and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a pledge of net revenues from fees and 
charges and the full faith and credit of a related primary government or component unit-even if 
that government is not expected to make any payments-is not payable solely from fees and charges 
of the activity. (Some debt may be secured, in part, by a po1tion of its own proceeds but should be 
considered as payable "solely" from the revenues of the activity.) 
b. Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, including capital costs 

(such as depreciation 5 or debt service), be recovered with fees and charges, rather than with taxes or 

sim ilar revenues6. 

5 As used in this section, the term depreciation (and related forms of the term) includes 
amortization of intangible assets. [GASBS 51, ,rs ] 

6. Based on this criterion, state unemployment compensation funds should be 
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reported in enterprise funds. [GASBS 34, fn34] 

c. The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs, 

including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service).7 
7 The focus of these criteria is on fees charged to external users. [GASBS 37, fi14] 

[GASBS 34, fi67 , as amended by GASBS 84, fil 9 ] 
Governmental Funds 
. l 05 Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other 
than debt service or capital projects . 
. 106 Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays including the acquisition 
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets . 

. l 07 Debt service funds are used to account for and repmt :financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 

I did look at the 2/26 Board meeting agenda, and did not see this item, although I may be 

missing it. I would note that while both types of funds may be technically allowed, I would not 

recommend repeatedly switching between these types of funds as that leads to inconsistency 

and incomparability. Also, it would be beneficial to let the new Director of Finance research 

this matter and provide a recommendation before moving forward on this. 

Please let me know if you would like to schedule a time to discuss further. I am available for a 

call to clarify anything prior to your Board meeting Wednesday and I am mostly available the 

week of March 2 if you would like to meet in person. As I noted on the phone, I am happy to 

look into the matters above and meet with you, but the time I am incurring is falling outside 

the scope of our engagement letter to issue an opinion on the June 30, 2019 financial 

statements and I will need to bill the District for my time. Please let me know if that is an 

issue. 

Thank you, 

Tiffany Williamson 
Senior Manager 

Eide Bailly LLP 

5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 

Reno, NV 89511-2094 

775.337.3961 

775.689.9299 

What inspires you, inspires us. 
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Independent member of HLB - the global advisory and accounting network. 

From: Matthew Dent <matthew.ivgid@gmail.com> 

Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 11:20 AM 

To: Tiffany Williamson <tawill iamson@e idebail ly.com > 

Subject: Audit Committee & Questions for Auditors 

Hi Tiffany, 

It was a pleasure speaking with you today, I appreciate you taking the time! As discussed, I 

was recently appointed the Audit Committee Chair and I have been tasked with getting a few 

answers to questions for the Board. Please provide the following: 

1. Please provide the documentation or working papers regarding the $4,200 response by 

Eide Bailly on the punch cards . The District can speak to this issue and we need to have 

an understanding as Board in order to do what is best for our community. 

2. Since Eide Bailly stated they reviewed interna l controls related to the audited financial 

statements, what specific internal controls were reviewed? What were the 

representations made by staff? We have tried to get this information from Staff and are 

being to ld Eide Bai lly is in possession of this and Staff doesn't have anything. 

3. Please provide the responses given to the audit committee and reviewed with staff 

regarding all the 2019 memos the Board received from concerned cit izens . 

4. What is the regulation or law that requires the Community Services venues to be a 

"Special Revenue Fund" and also what documentation or language Eide Bailly still has 

that was given to staff or could help us further understand this issue . (This item is the 

most pressing since the Board has agend ized making the change back to Enterprise 

Fund at the 2/26 Board Meeting) 

I appreciate you taking the time to review my questions and get us a response or provide the 

requested documentation . If you have any questions or need further clarification, please do 

not hesitate to reach out. Thank you, Matthew 

Matthew Dent 
Incline Village GID Board of Trustees 
893 Southwood Blvd. Incline Village, NV 89451 

775.530.1345 I www.matthewdent.com 
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Confidentiality Note: This email message, including any attachment(s), is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain 
information that is confidential, privileged, or otherwise protected by law. Any unauthorized use, disclosure, or distribution of this 
communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please contact the sender immediately by reply 
email and destroy the original and all copies of the email, including any attachment(s). 
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